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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
ESEN

DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Liang, aged 56, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in January 2017 and the Chairman of the board of directors of
the Company (the “Board”) since June 2017, and acted as the Managing
Director of the Company from January 2021, in order to re-comply with
the requirement under code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) in relation to the roles of chairman and the chief executive
should not be performed by the same individual, he has resigned as the
Managing Director of the Company with effect from 29 March 2021.
Mr. Xu is also the Chairman of each of the Executive Committee and
the Nomination Committee, as well as a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He is also the chairman of the board of
directors of Beijing West Business Factoring Company Limited* (“Beijing
West Factoring”, R PaE ¥ RIZH R F]), Beijing West Factoring is
held as to 41.41% equity interests by the Company. Mr. Xu joined the
group of Shougang Group Co., Ltd (“Shougang Group”) in 1988 and
held various senior positions. He is the managing director of Shougang
Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang Holding”). Shougang Holding
is a substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") while Shougang
Group is the holding company of Shougang Holding. Mr. Xu is also
an executive director and the member of the executive committee of
Shoucheng Holdings Limited (“Shoucheng Holdings”). He is currently the
chairman and an executive director, and the chairman of the executive
committee and the nomination committee, and the vice chairman
of the remuneration committee of Global Digital Creations Holdings
Limited (“GDC"). The shares of Shoucheng Holdings and GDC is listed
on the Main Board and the GEM of the Stock Exchange, respectively.
Mr. Xu is a senior accountant, graduated from Fudan University and
obtained a bachelor degree in statistics and a master degree in business
administration from Tsinghua University. He has extensive experience in
management.

- Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited Annual Report 2021
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Mr. Liang Hengyi, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive Director,
Managing Director and a member of Executive Committee of the
Company in March 2022. Mr. Liang joined the Company in March 2021
served as a General Manager. He served as a managing director, an
executive director and a member of each of the executive committee
and the nomination committee of Shoucheng Holdings. Mr. Liang also
served as a managing director of Shougang Fund, the general manager
of non-fare business unit of Beijing Infrastructure Investment Co.,
Ltd. GE R EM R EIEE AR A F]), the general manager of Beijing
Capital Investment Rail Transit Assets Management Company (1t %
BHELBEELLEIEEGMR AR and the president of Beijing Urban
Underground Space Development and Construction Co., Ltd. (1t F 3%
N 2= 3 R AR 2 7)) He holds a master degree in Economics
and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Management and is a senior
economist.

Mr. Tian Gang, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in March 2021 and is a member of Executive Committee.
Mr. Tian joined the Company in July 2017 and is currently the deputy
general manager of the Company and the managing director of South
China International Leasing Co., Ltd., a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. He worked at China Construction Bank Beijing Branch
from August 1990 to July 2017. Mr. Tian successively served as branch
accountant, deputy director and director of the business department,
manager of the real estate credit department, director of the company
and institutional business center, assistant to the president and branch
president. He obtained a postgraduate degree (on-the-job) from the
Party School of the Central Committee of the Chinese Communist Party.
Mr. Tian has worked in the financial field for more than 30 years and has
extensive experience in the financial industry.

Mr. Huang Donglin, aged 61, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in May 2018 and is a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, he was
also appointed as a member of the Audit Committee in March 2021.
Mr. Huang held positions in The People’s Bank of China, Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China and Bank of China. He has worked in the
finance industry for over thirty years and led the equity reorganization
and restructuring of a number of domestic companies. Mr. Huang holds
an executive master of business administration from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University and a doctor’s degree from United Business Institutes in
Belgium. He has extensive experience in finance, and has been engaged
in relevant enterprise management and diagnosis for a long time.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
E=EN

Mr. Zhang Jianxun, aged 42, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in March 2021. Mr. Zhang is currently the
managing director of Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd.* (Jt R EHES
BRR2AF], "Shougang Fund”), the Chairman and General Manager of
Jingxi Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Jingxi Holdings”). Shougang Fund and Jingxi
Holdings are the substantial shareholders of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO, Shougang Group is the holding company
of Shougang Fund, while Shougang Fund is the holding company of
Jingxi Holdings. Mr. Zhang had served as the deputy general manager
of Beijing E-Town International Investment & Development Co., Ltd.,
the chairman of Beijing E-Town International Industrial Investment
Management Co., Ltd., and the general manager of Cultural Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd. (stock code: SH600715, formerly named as Song Liao
Automotive Co., Ltd.), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, the director of China Integrated Circuit Industry
Investment Fund Co., Ltd., the director of AVIC Automotive Systems
Holdings Co., Ltd., the director of Nexteer Automotive Group Limited
(stock code: 1316), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, the director of Beijing Sicheng Semiconductor Co.,
Ltd.* LR ERE B R A F]) and the director of Integrated Silicon
Solution Inc.. He holds a master degree of engineering from Tianjin
University and a master degree of science from the University of Leeds.
Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in mergers and acquisitions and
capital operation of listed companies.

Mr. Tam King Ching, Kenny, aged 72, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in February
1996 and is the Chairman of each of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, as well as a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Tam is a practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tam is a Past President of The
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. He also serves as an
independent non-executive director of certain listed companies on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, namely, BeijingWest Industries
International Limited, CCT Fortis Holdings Limited, GBA Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Greater Bay Area Investments Group Holdings
Limited), Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited, Starlite Holdings
Limited, Hong Kong Shanghai Alliance Holdings Limited, West China
Cement Limited and Wisdom Education International Holdings Company
Limited. Mr. Tam holds a bachelor degree in commerce from Concordia
University, Canada.

n Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited Annual Report 2021
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Mr. Zhang Xingyu, aged 37, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in March 2020 and is the
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhang currently serves as the chief
strategy officer of Gaoteng Global Asset Management Limited. He had
served as the department cadre and confidential secretary of main leader
of National Council for Social Security Fund and the vice president and
the special assistant to the chairman of Shanghai Zhaogang Netcom
Corporation Limited. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor degree of management
from China Youth University of Political Studies and master degree of
economics from Renmin University of China. He has extensive experience
in company strategy, government affairs, assets management and capital
operation etc.

Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in March 2021 and is the
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Ng is an executive director of
Mingfa Group (International) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 846), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and its main
business is real estate development and investment in the People’s
Republic of China. He had served as an analyst in CEF Brokerage
Limited from July 1996 to June 1998 and a vice president of research
department in GK Goh Securities Limited from December 1998 to July
1999, responsible for the analysis of the internet, retail and traditional
manufacturing companies and their related markets. In addition, Mr. Ng
served as the head of corporate finance of Nan Hai Corporation Limited
(stock code: 680) from July 1999 to January 2015, responsible for
mergers and acquisitions and corporate financing activities. The shares of
Nan Hai Corporation Limited are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He also served as the chief financial officer of MEML Holdings
Limited and DoDoPal Holdings Limited from March 2015 to September
2017 and from September 2017 to September 2019 respectively. Mr. Ng
holds a bachelor degree in economics from Oregon University.
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Ms. On Danita, aged 45, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in March 2021 and is the
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Ms. On is currently the investor and
corporate communications director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company
Limited (stock code: 1929). She has worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Morgan Stanley, Citadel Investment Group and Ying Sheng Science
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 209). The shares of both Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Co., Ltd. and Ying Sheng Science Co., Ltd. are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Ms. On holds a bachelor degree in business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a master
degree in finance from the London School of Business. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. On has
more than 20 years of experience in auditing, management consultation,
securities research, asset management and investor relations.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

TURNOVER BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY FOR THE YEAR 2021
—EC-ERIBRBIBzBE
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TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION FOR THE YEAR 2021
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For the purpose of this report, “Mainland China” refers to the mainland of the

People’s Republic of China and does not include Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
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| am pleased to present the 2021 annual report of the Group. Adhering
closely to the development philosophy of empowering industrial
upgrading through financial services, Shougang Concord Grand deeply
developed its financial services along the supply chain of the steel
industry. On the basis of providing satisfactory service to the upstream
and downstream customers of Shougang Group, we actively targeted the
core enterprises of other industries, and enhanced the Group’s capability
to manage supply chains and provide financial services.

In 2021, the Group adhered closely to its key strategy of carrying out
foundation work, paying attention to the efficient allocation of resources
and steady growth of effectiveness, as it continued to achieve excellent
operating results of substantial year-on-year growth in both revenue
and profit. We overcame the negative impact of the pandemic, with the
revenue and business scale of each of our business units maintaining
growth momentum. Our profitability improved significantly, while the
asset quality and structure of our business segments remained at a high
level. We worked hard together to overcome hurdles, thus achieving
remarkable operating results and providing substantial dividend returns
to our shareholders for the first time in many years.

We also convened a special general meeting in January 2022 to change
the name of the Company to “Capital Industrial Financial Services
Group Limited” (referred hereafter as “Capital Industrial Financial
Services”), with a view to better reflecting the Group’s future strategic
positioning and business development. With the advancement of internet
technologies, the field of bulk commodity trade is seeing a sea change.
Driven by the forces of policy support, technology push, transformation
of the banking industry as well as the changes of the industry, supply
chain financing has become the best aid for bulk commodity trade.
Therefore, Capital Industrial Financial Services is committed to forging
a "three-in-one” product system, who provides solutions that combine
new finances, new technologies and new services and gives full play to
the potential of supply chain financing in real economy, thereby realizing
the brand’s vision of “understanding its way and amplifying its effects”.

Looking back on 2021, with unwavering confidence and pragmatic
actions, we effectively turned our business tasks into specific plans and
specific measures. We stressed our efforts in key aspects and strove
to achieve operating results and growth results through effective
implementation. With the innovative implementation and the support of
information technology, we were committed to building a professional
industrial financial service platform which integrates numerous industrial
enterprises, financial institutions and other participating parties. With
improved means of connection between upstream and downstream
enterprises as well as better means of financing and risk control for
them, we worked hard on promoting synergy, improving efficiency and
reducing costs. Linked by capital and with a win-win as their common
goal, the financial industry and other industries complemented each
other and developed together, from which each participant could
benefit.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
IRBRESE

In 2021, we achieved remarkable results by focusing on steel companies
and domestic conglomerates as well as their upstream and downstream
customers. The financial leasing business to domestic conglomerates
continued to grow steadily in terms of project scale. A supply chain
management company achieved breakthrough in terms of revenue from
steel companies and their upstream and downstream customers and
continued to expand in scale. The assets management business model of
asset securitization was further optimized and underwent expansion. The
commercial factoring business also continued to generate profit. During
the year, we endeavored to expand our strategic customer and strategic
partner base to enhance project scale and improve profitability. While
putting emphasis on business expansion, the Group also attached great
importance to business quality and asset safety. As a result, the asset of
each business segment was ensured to be of good quality. In addition
to pushing ahead with cost reduction and efficiency enhancement, we
strengthened system and mechanism building, exercised stringent cost
control, continuously optimized financial structure, and enhanced capital
utilization efficiency.

Looking forward to 2022, in the context of industrial transformation
and upgrading as well as rapid technological iteration, finance will
provide strong support for industrial upgrading and development. As
the integration of the financial industry and other industries continues
to deepen and evolve, it will form a new ecosystem along the industrial
chain. We will continue to focus on the provision of financial leasing,
commercial factoring, supply chain management, asset securitization and
other portfolios of services and products to steel companies and domestic
conglomerates as well as their upstream and downstream customers, in
order to provide customized financial service solutions to core enterprises,
meet the strategic needs of core enterprises and their upstream and
downstream companies for industrial upgrading and give full play to the
important role of financial services in empowering real economy and
proactively facilitate the linkage between the business segments so as to
strengthen our customer service capabilities.

In recent years, the asset quality of Capital Industrial Financial Services
has been gradually optimized and its capital scale has significantly
increased. We will continue to optimize our customer structure, risk
control management, and handling of historical bad debts, thus paving
the way for our future development. In respect of business expansion,
we will broaden the scale of market-oriented business while deeply
developing its steel industry. In view of our existing business approach,
we will regroup our customer structure and focus on serving central and
state-owned enterprises such as Shougang Group. The financial leasing
business will be carried out mainly with the Group and its subsidiaries,
while the external market business will focus on local government
customers. We will also enhance the review and management of the
whole process of project implementation, and strictly control risks.
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In respect of developing new business, the focus will be on the Group’s
positioning regarding the supply chain financial technology platform, the
domestic and foreign financing platform and the pre-listing guidance
platform for new industries. We will carry out our supply chain financial
business mainly with the upstream and downstream companies of
central and state-owned enterprises such as Shougang Group, striving
to become an “amplifier” for the revenue of core enterprises, an
“accelerator” for their business development and a “stabilizer” for their
customer loyalty. Through diverse financing tools (both domestic and
overseas) and different market and currency cycles, we will bring low-
cost funds and equity capital to central and state-owned enterprises such
as Shougang Group, and help conglomerates reduce debts and optimize
their capital structure. We will also actively leverage the advantages
of internal investment banks to assist Shougang Group in promoting
mixed-ownership reform, transformation and sowing industrial seeds for
innovative development. Guided by the above expansion approaches,
the Group will achieve sustainable growth in its business scale and create
greater business value for its customers, shareholders and society.

The Group attaches great importance to risk control and has
implemented various risk management measures. While striving to
expand its business, the Group constantly optimizes its risk management
system, coordinates the establishment of its risk management system
and improve its risk management framework. In particular, the Group
focuses on enhancing its ability to identify and prevent risks in key areas
and critical processes. The Group firmly believes that a sound and stable
risk management and governance framework is an important basis for
realizing long-term development of the Company and safeguarding the
interests of shareholders. With a sound risk management framework, the
Group will combine strategic targets with risk management and actively
use various resources to seize market opportunities while keeping risks
under control, focus on the development of segmented industries and
respond to customer demands.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks
to our customers, suppliers and shareholders for their continuous support
to the Group. | would also like to extend my gratitude and appreciation
to the management and staff for their hard work and dedication
throughout the year.

Xu Liang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERRED

In 2021, Shougang Concord Grand continued to push ahead the
development philosophy of financial leasing, commercial factoring,
supply chain management services and assets management services as
core businesses, and endeavored to build an integrated service platform
with financial empowerment. In 2021, adhering to our philosophy of
persistence in pandemic prevention and control as well as operational
development, we monitored closely key business functions and the
implementation and enhancement of risk control measures. As the
revenue and business scale of each of our business units maintained
growth momentum, we continued to achieve year-on-year growth in

BEROG-ZE-_—FHREZNEEURENR
T mERE - HEBEERGNEEERE
MBESBZOXRBOEREE - BMHITER
TRMEENEERE TG -  —T=-—F DR
BERBHENEEZRIMIRNES B
S 8 4 5% 75 5 B % B 42 I 48 e B0 A 1T B A
# o BEBEMRABRBERBORFER
HZEE - BN T 2XRA FERLE
BEMKEES -

both revenue and profit.

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The key financial performance indicators are analysed as below:

FTEMBREER

TEUBREREONOT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETFF +/(-)
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
BT T BT T b2
Financial performance B &
Revenue Woas 1,898,003 85,378 2,123%
Gross profit margin (%) FEF (%) 6% 86% -80%
Profit for the year FERF 42,493 18,194 134%
Profit attributable to owners of the RATFEB AEMLRET
Company 27,294 5,980 356%
Key financial indicators FEHMBER
Total cash BEE 387,095 318,818 21%
Total assets BEE 2,325,595 2,161,473 8%
Total liabilities BaE 435,216 397,484 9%
Bank borrowings HRITIEK 290,922 290,303 0%
Capital and reserves attributable to RRBIFEE AEMLBRER R
owners of the Company G 1,537,657 1,445,637 6%
Current ratio TR EDE 2 528% 458% 70%
Basic earnings per share (HK cent) FREARBF G 0.68 0.15 353%
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$27,294,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021,
as compared with profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$5,980,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020,
which was mainly due to an increase in profit from the sale and leaseback
arrangements services segment and the supply chain management
business segment, and fair value of investment properties. Revenue of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$1,898,003,000, which represented an increase of approximately 22
folds when compared with that of approximately HK$85,378,000 for the
year 2020. The increase was mainly attributable to an increase in revenue
from the supply chain management business segment. The Group
recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$105,100,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021, representing an increase of approximately
42% when compared with the gross profit of approximately
HK$73,760,000 for the year 2020. The Group recorded a gross profit
margin of approximately 6% for the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing a significant decrease when compared with the gross profit
margin of approximately 86% for the year 2020. Basic earnings per share
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 was HK0.68 cent
(2020: basic earnings per share was HK0.15 cent).

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$1,898,003,000, representing an increase of approximately 22
folds when compared with that of approximately HK$85,378,000 for
the year 2020. The increase was mainly attributable to the significant
increase in revenue from the commencement of business covering full-
process services including steel product trading and logistics under
the supply chain management business segment by approximately
HK$1,797,751,000. Meanwhile, the sale and leaseback arrangements
services segment also recorded an increase in revenue of 17% to
approximately HK$91,816,000.

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$105,100,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2021, representing an increase of 42%,
when compared with the gross profit of approximately HK$73,760,000
for the year 2020. The Group recorded a gross profit margin of
approximately 6% for the year ended 31 December 2021, representing
a significant decrease when compared with the gross profit margin of
approximately 86% for the year 2020, which was mainly attributable to
the lower gross profit margin of the supply chain management business
segment.

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$5,998,000 (2020: HK$12,388,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 52%. The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in interest income from deposits.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WM R A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WM R AT

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW (Continued)

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately HK$60,938,000 (2020: HK$68,079,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 10%. The decrease was mainly
due to the reduction in staff cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, share of profit of associates
amounted to approximately HK$2,328,000 (2020: HK$1,258,000), as
our associates continued to make contributions to the Group's profit.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Closely following the strategy of integration of industry and finance for
its core business and market competitiveness, we built an integrated
financial service platform with financial empowerment leveraging on
the business synergies arising from the financial leasing, commercial
factoring, supply chain management and assets management businesses.
Taking the provision of supply chain management services, financial
services and assets management services as our core businesses and
competitive strengths in the market, the Group endeavors to provide
financial leasing, commercial factoring, supply chain management,
investment and financing advisory services and other portfolios of
financial products to the two groups of target core enterprises including
steel companies and domestic conglomerates, as well as their upstream
and downstream customers, in order to provide customized financial
service solutions for core enterprises, meet the strategic needs of core
enterprises and their upstream and downstream companies for industrial
upgrading and give full play to the important role of financial services in
empowering real economy.

During the year, revenue from the sale and leaseback arrangements
services segment increased by approximately 17% to approximately
HK$91,816,000 (2020: HK$78,691,000), and the segment recorded
a profit of approximately HK$67,501,000 (2020: HK$65,976,000).
The increase in revenue from the sale and leaseback arrangements
services segment was mainly due to the increase in new projects while
the slowdown of the segment’s performance was mainly due to the
investment of more resources in research and development of products,
risk control and compliance to develop the C-end business.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

During the year, revenue from the supply chain management business
segment was approximately HK$1,803,045,000 (2020: HK$5,294,000).
The supply chain management business segment recorded a profit of
approximately HK$8,525,000 (2020: HK$2,431,000). Our supply chain
management business segment considers the business scenarios of
the target companies and makes detailed analyses of the capital flow,
information flow, product flow and logistics of the industry chain on
which these companies operate, and then provides the most accessible
and diversified products to them, thereby satisfying their capital and
management needs. In this way, the segment also helps to reduce the
transaction cost incurred on the industry chain and thus empowers
the industry. With its newly commenced business which covers full-
process services including steel product trading and logistics, the supply
chain management business segment saw a significant increase in both
revenue and segment results.

During the year, revenue from the assets management and
consultancy services segment was approximately HK$2,409,000 (2020:
HK$1,054,000), and the segment recorded a loss of approximately
HK$136,000 (2020: HK$5,259,000). The increase in revenue from
the assets management and consultancy services segment and the
reduction in segment loss were mainly due to the commencement of the
consultancy business.

During the year, revenue from the property leasing services segment
increased to approximately HK$733,000 (2020: HK$339,000), and the
segment recorded a profit of approximately HK$796,000 (2020: loss of
approximately HK$970,000). The increase in revenue from the property
leasing services segment was mainly attributable to the improved vacancy
rate. The significant increase in segment results was mainly attributable
to an increase in fair value of investment properties of the Group of
approximately HK$300,000 (2020: decrease in fair value of investment
properties of approximately HK$1,000,000).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WM R A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WM R AT

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Looking ahead into 2022, under the policy environment and market
environment of promoting financial innovation, Shougang Concord
Grand will grasp opportunities brought by the policies in relation to
China’s innovation of modern supply chain area and the upgrading
strategies of industries in which target core enterprises operate to provide
innovative financial products and service portfolios to those target core
enterprises and their upstream and downstream customers, so as to
serve the real economy. We will strive to capitalize on the advantage of
cross-border operation while actively exploring new models of innovative
financial service business and taking advantage of Hong Kong's excellent
geographical location and favorable financing environment as an
international financial market. Through diverse financing tools (both
domestic and overseas) and different market and currency cycles, we will
bring low cost funds and equity capital to our customers and optimize
their capital structure, help the Group to achieve sustainable growth in
its business scale and create greater business value for our customers,
shareholders and society.

In terms of risk management infrastructure, prudent and effective risk
management can help in untapping the commercial value of long-
term investments, as well as laying a solid foundation for the Group’s
sustainable development. We will put emphasis on strengthening our
risk control system, introducing information technology platform, and
adjusting our management and control strategies in a timely manner and
continuously improving our management by improving and optimizing
our risk control mechanism. In addition, we will also continue to promote
the development of our online risk management platform based on asset
securitization and industry supply chain business so as to provide an
effective tool for the Group's risk management.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCING RESOURCES AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The Group aims to maintain stable funding sources and financing is
arranged to balance between business requirements and cash flows. The
financial leverage of the Group as at 31 December 2021 as compared to
31 December 2020 is summarized below:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WM R A
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31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
+=—B=+—H +=-A=+—8H
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Total borrowings RIS

Current borrowings MENE K 196,603 143,308

Non-current borrowings JERENE K 94,319 146,995

Sub-total NE 290,922 290,303
Total cash W%

Cash and cash equivalents ReMkRe&EEER 387,095 318,818
Total equity BiE 1,890,379 1,763,989
Total assets BEE 2,325,595 2,161,473
Financial Leverage MBERLX
Current ratio MBI =X 528% 458%

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$387,095,000 (31 December 2020: HK$318,818,000),
which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and
Renminbi. The increase was mainly attributable to the net cash generated
from operating activities of approximately HK$48,956,000, net bank
borrowings of approximately HK$6,708,000 and proceeds from the
disposal of debt instruments of approximately HK$15,957,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WM R AT

LIQUIDITY, FINANCING RESOURCES AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$290,922,000 (2020: HK$290,303,000), of which
approximately HK$196,603,000 (2020: HK$143,308,000) were repayable
within twelve months from 31 December 2021 and approximately
HK$94,319,000 (2020: HK$146,995,000) were repayable after twelve
months from 31 December 2021. During the year, the Group obtained
new bank borrowings of approximately HK$148,382,000 (2020:
HK$283,683,000) for the financial leasing business and working capital
of the Group. All borrowings bore interest at market rates.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,537,657,000 as at 31 December 2021
(31 December 2020: HK$1,445,637,000). The increase was mainly due
to the profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$27,294,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021, the exchange
differences arising on translation of approximately HK$32,379,000
in total, and revaluation of buildings upon transfer from property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to investment properties
of approximately HK$42,274,000 during the year. The Company did
not issue any new shares during the year. The issued share capital
of the Company was approximately HK$39,846,000 (represented by
approximately 3,984,640,000 issued ordinary shares).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

During the year, the Group had no material acquisitions, disposals and
significant investment.
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had the following charge on assets:

(i)  The Group’s investment properties with an aggregate carrying value
of approximately HK$38,400,000 were pledged to banks to secure
for bank borrowings with outstanding amount of approximately
HK$5,315,000.

(i)  The Group's receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements
with a carrying value of approximately HK$243,289,000 were
pledged to banks to secure for bank borrowings with outstanding
amount of approximately HK$205,607,000.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The normal operations and investments of the Group are mainly in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, with revenue and expenditure denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Directors believe that the
Group does not have significant foreign exchange exposure. However, if
necessary, the Group will consider using forward exchange contracts to
hedge against foreign exchange exposures. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had no significant foreign exchange exposure.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2021.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 47 (31 December 2020:
50) full time employees (excluding those under the payroll of associates
of the Group). The Group remunerated its employees mainly with
reference to the prevailing market practice, individual performance and
work experience. Other benefits such as medical coverage, insurance
plan, mandatory provident fund, discretionary bonus and employees
share option scheme are also available to employees of the Group.
Remuneration packages are reviewed either annually or through special
increment.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company and its
subsidiaries have not paid or committed to pay to any individual any
amount as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company and/or its
subsidiaries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERRE

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and procedures to safeguard the interests of all shareholders
and to enhance accountability and transparency.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) during the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10(1), 3.10A,
3.21 AND 3.25 OF THE LISTING RULES AND PART 1
MANDATORY DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS B(F) OF
THE CG CODE

Following the pass away of Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 8 January 2021, the Company only had
two Independent Non-executive Directors, thus the number of the
Independent Non-executive Directors fell below the minimum number
required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. As a result
of the insufficient number of Independent Non-executive Directors, the
Company had also failed to comply with the requirements set out in
Rules 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules and Part 1 Mandatory Disclosure
Requirements B(f) of the CG Code with regard to the minimum number
of members and the composition of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee.

Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter (“Mr. Ng”) and Ms. On Danita (“Ms. On")
were appointed as Independent Non-executive Directors on 19 March
2021, which was within three months from the date of pass away of
Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson as required by Rules 3.11 and 3.23 of the
Listing Rules.

Upon the appointment of Mr. Ng and Ms. On as Independent
Nonexecutive Directors on 19 March 2021, the number of Independent
Nonexecutive Directors satisfied the minimum number required under
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. In addition, the Company
had complied with the requirements set out under Rules 3.21 and 3.25
of the Listing Rules and Code Provision Part 1 Mandatory Disclosure
Requirements B(f) of the CG Code with regard to the composition of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises a total of nine Directors, being three
Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and four Independent
Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors is set out in the section
headed “Report of the Directors” of this annual report. In addition, an
updated list of the Directors and their roles and functions is published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The Board is characterised by significant diversity and has a balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company. The Directors’ biographical information is set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Biographies” of this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). All Directors are required to
disclose to the Company at the time of their appointment and annually
the number and the nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments with an indication of
the time involved.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies”
as set out on pages 4 to 8 of this annual report, the Board members have
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
with each other.

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Nonexecutive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
so that there is a sufficient independent element on the Board, which

can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and calibre for their
views to carry weight. The functions of Non-executive Directors include:

o bringing an independent judgement at Board meetings;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

o serving on Board committees if invited; and

o scrutinising the Company’s performance and monitoring
performance reporting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) have made a positive contribution to the development of the
Company'’s strategy and policies through independent, constructive and
informed comments. They give the Board and the committees on which
they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied backgrounds and
qualifications through regular attendance and active participation.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent Nonexecutive
Directors are identified, in all corporate communications to shareholders.

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out its approach to achieve diversity on the Board
with a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Company will also take into
account factors based on its own business model and specific needs
from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

During the year, the board of directors consisted of two Executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors, and four Independent
Nonexecutive Directors, of which 87.5% are male and 12.5% are
female. In addition, 37.5% of our directors aged between 30-49 years
old and 62.5% of our Directors aged 50 or above. The members of the
Board have extensive business and professional backgrounds, and have a
diverse range of business, financial services and accounting experience.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The composition, experience and balance of skills in the Board are
regularly reviewed and assessed to ensure that the Board retains a core
of members with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside with
new Director(s) to be appointed from time to time who bring(s) fresh
perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The Nomination
Committee has the primary responsibility for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying out such
responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity
Policy. Following the appointment of Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter and Ms.
On Danita as Independent Non-executive Directors during the year, the
Nomination Committee believes that the current composition of the
Board is based on the history and actual conditions of the Company and
demonstrates a thorough consideration of the factors for achieving board
diversity.

The Board Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the Company.

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and performance
monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day operations of the
Company to the Executive Committee and senior management within
the control and authority framework set by the Board. In addition, the
Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Further
details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board meets regularly and holds at least four Board meetings a
year. Additional meetings will be arranged, if and when required. The
Directors can attend meetings in person or through electronic means of
communication in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the
"Bye-laws").
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in drawing up the agenda
of each Board meeting. Draft agenda of each regular Board meeting
will be sent to all Directors for review before the agenda is issued and
all Directors may request for inclusion of other matters in the agenda.
The Chairman will take into account the matters proposed by the
Directors and where appropriate, approve the inclusion of such matters
in the agenda of the Board meeting. Generally, at least 14-day notice
of a regular Board meeting is given and the Company aims at giving
reasonable notice for all other Board meetings. The Company also aims
at sending the agenda and the accompanying board papers, which are
prepared in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make
informed decisions on matters placed before it, to all Directors at least
3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. Where queries are
raised by Directors, prompt and full responses will be given if possible.

There has been procedure in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to, upon reasonable
request, provide separate independent professional advice to Directors to
assist them in performing their duties to the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings and Board committee meetings, draft and final versions of
which would be sent to Directors for comments and records respectively,
within a reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes are recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views (if any) expressed.
Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by any Director/
committee member.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter (including material transaction with connected persons) which the
Board has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical Board meeting, rather than a written resolution. Independent
Non-executive Directors who, and whose close associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at the Board
meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board meetings (Continued)

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Bye-laws and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote on any
Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he or any of his close associates (or associates where
the transaction or arrangement is a connected transaction under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules) has a material interest nor shall he be counted
in the quorum present at the meeting.

Attendance records

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have
made active contribution to the affairs of the Group and seven physical
Board meetings were held to consider, among other things, various
projects contemplated by the Group and to review and approve the
interim results and annual results of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ attendances in 2021 are as follows:
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to attend Note(s)

HESBRE
Directors BEE EEBEHESRRE Hat
Executive Directors HITES
Xu Liang (Chairman) B 2FE) 717
Tian Gang B 6/6 1
Su Guifeng BRIESR 1/1 2
Li Jing E 11 3
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Huang Donglin |EM 7/7
Zhang Jianxun RIEE 6/6 4
You Wenli i 11 5
Independent Non-executive Directors VIHTES
Tam King Ching, Kenny R IE 717
Zhang Xingyu o B 55 717
Ng Man Fung, Walter hxz 6/6 6
On Danita LR R 6/6 7
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson Ik 0/0 8
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Attendance records (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Tian Gang appointed as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

2. Mr Su Guifeng resigned as a Director with effect from 19 March 2021.

S Ms. Li Jing resigned as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

4. Mr. Zhang Jianxun appointed as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

5. Ms. You Wenli resigned as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

6. Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter appointed as a Director with effect from 19 March
2021.

7. Ms. On Danita appointed as a Director with effect from 19 March 2021.

8. Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson passed away on 8 January 2021.
Access to information

The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and information by
the management to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of financial and other information put before it for approval. The
management provides all Board members with monthly updates which
give a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. Where
any Director requires more information than is volunteered by the
management, each Director has the right to separately and independently
access to the Company’s senior management to make further enquiries if
necessary.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. In considering the candidates for directorship,
the Nomination Committee will provide adequate consideration to the
Board Diversity Policy, review the profiles of the candidates and take
into account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates. The Nomination Committee
will make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and nomination of Directors for consideration and approval.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cContinued)

According to the Bye-laws, any Director so appointed by the Board shall
hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy, only until the next
following general meeting of the Company or, in the case of an addition
to their number, until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company who shall then be eligible for re-election at such general
meeting. Every Director, except for the Chairman, is subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. In order to comply with
applicable laws of Bermuda, the Bye-laws do not require the Chairman
to retire by rotation. However, they will voluntarily retire and offer
themselves for re-election at least once every three years in order to
comply with part 2 of code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Detailed information of the Directors standing for re-
election will be set out in the circular of the Company in relation to
the forthcoming annual general meeting to be despatched to the
shareholders.

All Directors (including all Non-executive Directors) have entered into
service agreements or engagement letters with the Company for a term
of not more than three years.

During the year, pursuant to Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed four Independent Non-
executive Directors, represents not less than one-third of the Board, with
one of them has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Board confirms that the Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors a confirmation of independence for
the year ended 31 December 2021 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers such Directors to be independent.

Pursuant to code provision B.2.3 of the CG Code, any re-election of an
independent non-executive director who has served the board for more
than nine years, his/her further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Where an individual is proposed to be elected as an Independent
Nonexecutive Director at the general meeting, the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant
general meeting will include:

o the process used for identifying the individual and why the Board
believes the individual should be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

o if the proposed Independent Non-executive Director will be holding
their seventh (or more) listed company directorship, why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to devote sufficient time
to the Board;

o the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can bring
to the Board; and

o how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.
Insurance for directors’ and officers’ liability

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been
in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group from their risk
exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.

Directors’ training and professional development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction of
regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated on the latest
development of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements
to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance
practice. Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company Secretary facilitates induction and professional
development of Directors and the Company is responsible for arranging
and funding suitable training for the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EEgm
Directors’ training and professional development ESRIIREXRR @

(Continued)

During the year, the Directors as at 31 December 2021 have providedto HRZ-ZE=Z—F+=-A=+—HZEFHAR
the Company they have participated in training, and the summary is as A IREHRERFR L EE I OB Z B 000
follow: ™

Continuous professional development

BESERE
Type (Note ) Subject Note2) Note(s)
Directors 2= EgeEn AR E HtaF
Xu Liang B =2 A, B I
Tian Gang Ml B I, 3
Huang Donglin =AM B Y
Zhang Jianxun SRIEZB) B | 4
Tam King Ching, Kenny BEIE A, B LIV
Zhang Xingyu o B 55 A [,
Ng Man Fung, Walter hxz A, B 1,01, 10 5
On Danita T B R A, B I 6
Notes: ez
1. A. Attending seminars, conferences, forums, in-house briefings or in-house 1. A. HEHSE @i wE ASEN S
training AIEB1E )
B. Reading newspapers, journals and updates B. RIE#HRE - FlY R E#EF
2. . Laws, rules and regulations 2. A SEB - JEHRAR
. Finance, accounting or taxation . B - B
Il Management 1. B

V. Business relating to the Group

V. HEREEFEFEE

2021 FEHE a%m%mr&mam
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ training and professional development
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

3. Mr. Tian Gang appointed as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

4. Mr. Zhang Jianxun appointed as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

5. Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter appointed as a Director with effect from 19 March
2021.

6. Ms. On Danita appointed as a Director with effect from 19 March 2021.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are separate and
exercised by different individuals to reinforce their independence and
accountability. During the year, Mr. Xu Liang is the Chairman and Mr.
Liang Hengyi served as the General Manager of the Company since 29
March 2021 and is currently the Managing Director of the Company.
The Chairman provides leadership for the Board and ensures that the
Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities. The Managing
Director has overall chief executive responsibility for the Group’s business
development and day-to-day management generally. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Managing Director is
clearly established and set out in writing. Since Mr. Liang Hengyi was
appointed as the General Manager, he has been performing the duties of
Managing Director.

During the period from 1 January 2021 to 28 March 2021, due to the
resignation of Mr. Su Guifeng as the Managing Director of the Company,
the time needed by the Company to identify suitable candidate to fill
the vacancy, Mr. Xu Liang served as the Chairman and the Managing
Director of the Board at the same time.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (Continued)
The responsibilities of the Chairman include, amongst other things:

o taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established,;

o ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
Board meetings, and ensuring that Directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate information which must be accurate, clear,
complete and reliable;

J encouraging all Directors to make a full and active contribution to
the Board’s affairs and taking the lead to ensure that the Board
acts in the best interest of the Company;

o encouraging Directors with different views to voice their concerns,
allowing sufficient time for discussion of issues and ensuring that
Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus;

o ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communications with shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole; and

o promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of Non-executive Directors in particular
and ensuring constructive relations between Executive and
Nonexecutive Directors.

During the year, the Chairman met with the Independent Non-executive
Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the execution of
the Board’s responsibilities. All committees have their own terms of
reference. All resolutions passed by the committees will be reported to
the Board at the next Board meeting.

Executive Committee
An Executive Committee of the Board was established in September

2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Executive Committee (Continued)

The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general powers
of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved for the Board) to
manage and oversee the operations of the Group and has been assigned
with the responsibilities to perform the corporate governance duties as
follows:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group’s employees
and Directors;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

o to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.

The Executive Committee comprises all Executive Directors of the
Company.

During the year, five physical meetings of the Executive Committee were
held. Amongst those meetings, one meeting was held for the purpose
of performing the corporate governance duties. The attendances of the
members of the Executive Committee at those meetings are as follows:

EEEETZES @
HITEES (@)

WITREGREESFT SN —MREN (HEEHIR
BTYEFENFERINDUNEEREBAEE
MEE  URBEREITMIRXERRE

o HIERBMAARRMNEREGHRELT
B WAEESRLER

s RULEREFLREHEEARNEI
RFEFEEEERR

«  BHRERARAESTERREEN
S EEEE R

o HE  BREMERERNRAKEEER R
EEnBRTEANARTFM@EAE)

s MEAARAETEREIETANERNR
TEEERAMEANNEE &

. WMFEFETHAERALTNEGER
BB SR BIAR S T ARTE © 353
IR

HMITZEERARR2RBMTESTENX -
FR G- BTREGEETIRERE  EFE

—REFRRBETLEERBAMARM - 117
ZEEEKENZSTEZNHFRENT ¢

Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible

to attend Note(s)
HESBERE
Committee members ZEgRE BERBESBERY HaF
Xu Liang (chairman of the committee) B E2ZEZEE) 5/5
Tian Gang MMl 4/4 1
Su Guifeng BRIE 8% 1/1 2
Li Jing = 1/1 3
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Tian Gang appointed as a member of the Executive Committee with effect
from 24 March 2021.

2. Mr. Su Guifeng resigned as a member of the Executive Committee with effect
from 19 March 2021.

3. Ms. Li Jing resigned as a member of the Executive Committee with effect from
24 March 2021.

The major work in relation to the corporate governance of the Group
performed by the Executive Committee during the year includes, among
other things, the following:

o reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

An Audit Committee of the Board was established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with its authorities and duties. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst other
things:

o overseeing the relationship with the Company’s auditor;

o reviewing the interim and annual financial statements of the
Group;

o reviewing the Company's financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

o reviewing the arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference and the authority to obtain outside legal or
other independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to
perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary. It is given access to
and assistance from the employees and reasonable resources to perform
its duties properly.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Audit Committee comprised all Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. None of the members of the Audit
Committee are former partners of the auditor of the Company.

During the year, two physical meetings of the Audit Committee were
held and the attendances of the members of the Audit Committee at
those meetings are as follows:

EEEETZES @
ERZEEG @)

ERREENIFA—BBUIFNTESE
T BERZEEHARAEZEBEVIIANTE
EHX - BEEZZEENBERARRZH
RREIRTES A -

FREZZBEELETMAEH  BXZ
X

(BRZEERNBFCERAT -

Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible

to attend Note(s)
HESBRE
Committee members ZEgNE EERBESERHY HaF
Tam King Ching, Kenny (chairman of the committee) —B#E(ZE @ T /&) 2/2
Huang Donglin | 11 1
Zhang Xingyu oK B 2/2
Ng Man Fung, Walter i&= 1/1 2
On Danita T B AR 1/1 3
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson Ik EE 0/0 4
Notes: Btet -

1. Mr. Huang Donglin appointed as a member of the Audit Committee with effect
from 19 March 2021.

2. Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter appointed as a member of the Audit Committee with
effect from 19 March 2021.

3. Ms. On Danita appointed as a member of the Audit Committee with effect from
19 March 2021.

4. Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson passed away on 8 January 2021.

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year
included, amongst other things, the following:

o reviewed the final results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2020;

o reviewed the interim results of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2021;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

o reviewed the reports on the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

o monitoring, analyzing and reviewing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the year.

During the year, the Board had no disagreement with the Audit
Committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditor.

Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee of the Board was established in September
2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include, amongst
other things:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company's corporate strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board;

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;

o assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

° reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and reviewing
the measurable objectives that have been set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy, and reviewing the progress on achieving the
objectives.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

Where vacancies exist at the Board, candidates are proposed and
put forward to the Nomination Committee for consideration. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be tendered
to the Board for approval. In considering the nomination of a new
Director, the Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy and take into account the qualification, ability,
working experience, leadership and professional ethics of the candidates.
In determining the independence of Directors, the Board follows the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any necessary
information from the employees within its scope of duties and the
authority to obtain outside independent professional advice, at the
Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers
necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is the Chairman of the
Board and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
constitute the majority of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, two physical meetings of the Nomination Committee
were held and the attendances of the members of the Nomination
Committee at those meetings are as follows:

EEEETZES @
RBEEZEES @)

EZHRTHRE  BRENOEREARRIE
%?E’/\* h%xﬁﬁm@ Hig&R

REEGER - IRREZEE EA%J%TE%%ﬁﬁ
EH -8R0 %ﬁé%AlﬂZE\ TTAEBUR
WEBZIREANER - 887 - TIEER
BETRMEFREST %%SEJ&E%%E@
B MRS ER EMRAMERE -

REZESEAARERS  AIREABERE
REBBKEMNAFER LERERFE
RERIISEIEXER - UWETERSE
BRBARFN -

REZBENEIFHEFSEFELT - A0
ANBLERTESHERBZEENAS

FAR-RZZBEGELERTMASRE  REZ
BeERERZEeR E’Uﬁf;.ﬂfﬂuT

Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible

to attend Note(s)
HESBRE
Committee members EZEEgHE EERHESBERH BtaF
Xu Liang (chairman of the committee) B 2(ZEZEE) 2/2
Huang Donglin BEEM 2/2
Tam King Ching, Kenny Lo 2/2
Zhang Xingyu o B 55 2/2
Ng Man Fung, Walter hxzE 1/1 1
On Danita 7R AR 11 2
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson BIKE 0/0 3
Notes: Btat -
1. Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee 1. EXEFEE T -_—F=AF+LALEZHF
with effect from 19 March 2021. RieEZEEKE -
2. Ms. On Danita appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee with effect 2. CRHRXTE-E - —F=AFTNAEEZF

from 19 March 2021.

3. Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson passed away on 8 January 2021.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee during the
year included, amongst other things, the following:

o assessing the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors;

o considering and making recommendations to the Board on the re-
election of Directors at the annual general meeting;

o considering and making recommendations to the Board for the
appointment of Mr. Tian Gang as an Executive Director, the
appointment of Mr. Zhang Jianxun as a Non-executive Director, and
the appointments of Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter and Ms. On Danita
as Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company, and the
appointments of Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter and Ms. On Danita as a
member of each the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee respectively; and

o reviewing the structure and composition of the Board with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

A Remuneration Committee of the Board was established in September
2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include, amongst
other things:

o making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group;

o reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Company’s goals and objectives;

o determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

o reviewing and approving compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management and compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

o ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman of the Board
and/or the General Manager of the Company about their remuneration
proposals for other Executive Directors. It has explicit authority to seek
any necessary information from the employees within its scope of duties
and the authority to obtain outside independent professional advice,
at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers
necessary.

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the Directors are
market alignment and reward for performance. The Company reviews
the remuneration package annually taking into consideration of the
market practice, competitive market position and individual performance.

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is an Independent
Nonexecutive Director and the Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company constitute the majority of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year, three physical meetings of the Remuneration Committee
were held and the attendances of the members of the Remuneration
Committee at those meetings are as follows:
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Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible

to attend Note(s)
HESBRE
Committee members ZEgNE BERBESBERY it
Tam King Ching, Kenny (chairman of the committee) B (ZE & /&) 3/3
Xu Liang ® =2 3/3
Huang Donglin | 3/3
Zhang Xingyu o B 55 3/3
Ng Man Fung, Walter (i1D°€-= 2/2 1
On Danita LR R 2/2 2
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson Rk EE 0/0 3
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 19 March 2021.

2. Ms. On Danita appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee with
effect from 19 March 2021.

3. Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson passed away on 8 January 2021.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the
year included, amongst other things, the following:

o considering, reviewing and determining the remuneration and the
terms of service agreement/engagement letters of Mr. Tian Gang,
Mr. Zhang Jianxun, Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter and Ms. On Danita;

o considering, reviewing and determining the bonuses for the
year 2021 and the remuneration for the year 2022 for Executive
Directors;

° considering, reviewing and determining the Director’s fee for Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company; and

o considering, reviewing and determining the bonuses for the
year 2021 and the remuneration for the year 2022 for General
Manager.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors and senior management for
the year are set out in notes 35 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
The Company Secretary is also responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and/or the General Manager of the Company on corporate
governance and the implementation of the CG Code. The Company
Secretary is an employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge
of the Group's affairs.
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COMPANY SECRETARY (Continued)

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the General
Manager. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures, and all applicable
laws, rules and regulations are followed. The selection, appointment and
dismissal of the Company Secretary are subject to the Board approval.

The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is of the opinion that an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system will contribute to the
operational effectiveness and efficiency of the Group and to the
safeguard of the Group’s assets as well as the shareholders’ investment.

The Board of the Group acknowledges its accountability to the risk
management and internal control system and its responsibility to review
the effectiveness of the system. The Board also clarifies that the system
is purported to manage, but not eliminate, the risk of failure to fulfill
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Our risk management and internal control system is embedded within
our business processes so that it functions as an integral part of the
overall operation of the Group. The system comprises a comprehensive
organization structure with assignment of definite accountabilities and
delegation of corresponding authorities to each post. Based on our
organization structure, a reporting system has been developed including
reporting channels from division heads of every principal business unit to
the Executive Committee.

Business plans, the responsibility statement of business objectives, and
budgets are prepared by division heads of every principal business unit
annually. In preparing them, our management identifies and evaluates
any potential risks. Measures will be put in place to ultimately manage,
control, or lessen such risks.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

These business plans and budgets are also subject to review and approval
by the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee reviews monthly
management reports on the operational and financial results of every
principal business unit and measures the actual performance of the
Group against the business plans and budgets concerned. In this course,
the Executive Committee also reviews and assesses the effectiveness
of all material controls and ensures the adequacies of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The Executive Committee holds meetings with the senior management
of every principal business unit on a regular or irregular basis to address
the issues in such controls, identify areas of improvement and put the
appropriate measures in place.

The internal control systems of the Group are documented and, if any
revision is required, such information will be submitted to the Audit
Committee for evaluation.

The Audit Committee assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role over the
Group's risk management and internal control function by reviewing and
evaluating the effectiveness of our overall risk management and internal
control system at least annually.

The Company set up an Internal Audit Department in February 2006,
and re-appointed the professional internal auditor to further strengthen
the internal control in the year, which assists the Board and the Audit
Committee to discharge its duties in risk management and internal
control aspects. The Internal Audit, independent to the operational
departments of the Group, is responsible for conducting regular audits
on the major activities of the Group and carrying out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group to cover all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
as well as risk management, are in place and functioning reasonably and
effectively, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Internal Audit Department
and professional internal auditors report to the Board and the Audit
Committee with its findings and makes recommendations to improve the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)
The framework of risk management and internal control systems

Establish Assess

risk

AHEERR

risk content

EIRBAR

Based on the risk-based approach, the Internal Audit Department and
professional internal auditor continuously review and monitor the
sufficiency of the risk control measures of every business unit of the
Group and to examine if relevant measures have been implemented.
The procedures involve assuring of the existence of related risks in the
first place, then assessing the levels to which the potential risks are
attributed based on the following two risk factors, i.e., the possibility
of occurrence and the level of significance of the risk, and carrying out
internal and external communications. After these procedures, audit
recommendations will be made and further discussed with the relevant
management.

In addition, each key business unit of the Group has put in place a
risk control mechanism specializing in risk management and internal
control in respect of project approval and subsequent follow-up works
of the business unit. The mechanism will be improved and optimized
continuously in response to the development of the Group’s business.
The Internal Audit Department and professional internal auditor will
review on a regular and irregular basis the performance of the risk control
personnel of each key business unit and will report to the management
of the Group and members of the Audit Committee any audit issues
found, the potential risks and appropriate audit recommendations in the
internal audit reports every half a year.

At the same time, it is the duty of the General Manager of the Group to
review whether or not the Group’s overall risk management and internal
control system is under appropriate and effective management, and
to provide a written statement in this regard to the Board during the
yearend audit.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Based on the said written statement as provided by the General
Manager, the advices provided by the Audit Committee and the audit
recommendations as set forth in the reports issued by the Internal Audit
Department and professional internal auditor, the Board will continue
to oversee management of the Group in supervising the relevant
departments to set up initiatives to handle various kinds of deficiencies
found in risk management and internal control. Regular reviews on
the improvement progress will be conducted by the Internal Audit
Department and professional internal auditor, and the result of which
will be reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Board considers that it is an ongoing and continuous process for the
Group to review and improve its risk management and internal control
systems in order to ensure that they can deal with the dynamic and ever
changing business environment.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has been, through
the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee with the assistance
from the Internal Audit Department and professional internal auditor,
continuously reviewing the effectiveness of the Group'’s risk management
and internal control systems based on the following considerations:

° the changes, since the last review, in the nature and extent of
significant risks and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in
business and the external environment;

o the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems;

o the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the Audit Committee and the Board which enables
them to assess control of the Group and the effectiveness of risk
management; and

o the effectiveness of the Group’s processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rules compliance.

During the year, internal audit reports in respect of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group have been submitted by the
Internal Audit Department and professional internal auditor to the Audit
Committee and the Board for review. The Board considered that the risk
management and internal control system of the Group is adequate and
effective. The Group has adopted appropriate audit recommendations to
further improve its risk management and internal control system.
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INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company adopted an inside information disclosure policy (the “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy”) on 21 December 2015 which sets out the
procedures for the handling and dissemination of inside information with
a view to preventing uneven, inadvertent or selective dissemination of
inside information and ensuring shareholders and the public are provided
with full, accurate and timely information about the activities and the
financial condition of the Group. The Inside Information Disclosure Policy
covers the following:

o setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and escalating
potential inside information to the Board,;

o setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving the
confidentiality of inside information, escalating upwards any
such potential information and cascading down the message and
responsibilities to relevant staff; and

o identifying who are the Company’s authorized spokespersons and
their responsibilities for communications with stakeholders of the
Company.

In addition, the Company has communicated to all relevant staff
regarding the implementation of the Inside Information Disclosure Policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures are effective
and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard the Company and
its officers in discharging their disclosure obligations in respect of inside
information.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") of the Listing Rules as a
code of conduct of the Company for Directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and the Company’s
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions throughout
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Employees who are likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Company or its shares are required to prohibit from dealing in shares of
the Company during the black-out period.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the auditors of the
Company is set out as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELRHRSE
% BT B <=

FRE XN BN T AR BB B &
FIgN

HK$'000

Services rendered FriR AR 7 BT

Audit services EE R 1,200
Non-audit services: IEEETARTS -

Interim review HhEAZR R 480

Others Hib 460

2,140

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing financial
statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis and in presenting the
annual and interim reports and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules, the Directors aim to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group's position and prospects.

The statement of the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report
on pages 121 to 129 of this annual report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to develop and maintain continuing
relationships and effective communication with its Shareholders and
investors. Since 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy reflecting the current practices of the Company
for communication with its shareholders. Such policy aims at ensuring
the shareholders of the Company are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company, in order to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow shareholders to engage actively with the
Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The Company provides comprehensive information to Shareholders and
the investors through its annual and interim reports and announcements,
all of which have been published on the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(www.shougang-grand.com.hk).

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All Directors will
make an effort to attend. External auditor is also available at the annual
general meeting to address shareholders’ queries. In case of any general
meeting to approve a connected transaction or any other transaction
that is subject to independent shareholders’ approval, members of the
independent Board committee will also make an effort to attend to
address shareholders’ queries.

The auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, attended the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 May 2021 (the
“2021 AGM") during the year. Details of the Directors’ attendances at
the 2021 AGM are as follows:
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Attendance at the

2021 AGM Note(s)

HE-B-—F
Directors BE= BRREAFAE Htat
Executive Directors HITES
Xu Liang (Chairman) " BEE) v
Tian Gang S v 1
Su Guifeng ERAEDR 2
Li Jing > 1B 3
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Huang Donglin =AM v
Zhang Jianxun RIZE) v 4
You Wenli i 5
Independent Non-executive Directors BAKHTES
Tam King Ching, Kenny e v
Zhang Xingyu o L5 v
Ng Man Fung, Walter hxz v 6
On Danita ZERFR v 7
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson BRI 8
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Tian Gang appointed as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

2. Mr. Su Guifeng resigned as a Director with effect from 19 March 2021.

3. Ms. Li Jing resigned as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

4. Mr. Zhang Jianxun appointed as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

5. Ms. You Wenli resigned as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

6. Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter appointed as a Director with effect from 24 March
2021.

7. Ms. On Danita appointed as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

8. Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson passed away on 8 January 2021.

During the year, all notices of general meetings despatched by the
Company to its shareholders for meetings held were sent for annual
general meeting at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and
at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings. Separate
resolutions were proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Directors, and all
resolutions put to the vote of the general meetings were taken by
way of a poll. At the general meetings, the chairman of the meetings
explained the procedures for conducting a poll and answered questions
from shareholders on voting by poll, if any. The results of the poll were
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company can make a requisition to convene a special general
meeting pursuant to Clause 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended). The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at
the registered office of the Company.

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company or of not
less than 100 shareholders of the Company may by requisition, at their
own expense unless the Company otherwise resolves, to put forward
proposals at general meetings of the Company pursuant to Clauses 79
and 80 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). A written
notice to that effect signed by the shareholder(s) concerned together
with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the expenses in giving effect
thereto must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not
less than six weeks before the meeting for requisition(s) requiring notice
of a resolution, or not less than one week before the meeting for any
other requisition(s).

Shareholders may at any time send their specific enquiries or suggestions
to the Board or the Company Secretary in writing at the Company’s
principal office in Hong Kong or by email to the Company. In addition,
shareholders may contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the Company branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, if they have any
enquiries about their shareholdings and entitlement to dividend. Relevant
contact details are set out on page 3 of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

On 21 December 2018, the Company adopted a Dividend Policy. Such
policy aims at providing stable and sustainable returns to shareholders
through paying stable dividends.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company intends to provide Shareholders
with interim or final dividends, and to declare special dividends from time
to time. The Company intends to pay out an annual dividend payment
at a payout ratio of not less than 35% of the Group’s consolidated net
profit after tax for the then financial year after taking into consideration
of, inter alia, the following factors:

the Group’s

J current & future operations;

° earnings;

. financial position;

° cash requirements, cash expenditure & availabilities;

° investment requirements;

o future development prospects; and

other factors as it may deem relevant at such time.

The recommendation of the payment of dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend for
the year will be subject to the approval of our Shareholders.

Whilst the Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash flow position of the Group, such Dividend Policy will
continue to be reviewed from time to time and it is subject to change.
The Board will consider the dividends, if declared, will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period. The payment of dividend is also
subject to any restrictions under the Laws of Hong Kong, the Laws of
Bermuda, and the Company’s Bye-laws.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R - HERERRS

ABOUT THE GROUP

Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group” or “we"” or “us”) are principally
engaged in financial services, property investment and management,
assets management, and supply chain management. Our headquarters is
located in Hong Kong, with three operating points set up in Beijing and
Shenzhen, China. Our main subsidiaries, located in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, are as follows:

BAREHE

BEROS (EE)BRAREEMBARTUAT
FRIAEEIRBMAD A —KEZUE AR
B MERENERE BEBENALMER
EEERZOEBNEERR - ARENA
RN ER - Lo B F BRI R BRI R
E-AZEH AKEUNTEAUMEEE
MEIEMERRMAT

Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited
BEROG(RE)ARAF

South China International
Leasing Co., Ltd.

Hong Kong headquarters
office

Beijing Shouhua Fangtai
Investment Management Co.,
Ltd.*

Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd.*

BREHEAMAE M BEEEERRAR

This report is the annual environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
report (the “ESG Report”) published by the Group, which aims to
describe the Group’s sustainable development policies, measures,
performance as well as its management approach to coping with climate
change risk. This report has been prepared in both Chinese and English
and uploaded to the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (http://www.shougang-grand.com.hk).

*  For identification purposes
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report covers the operations of the Group’s core businesses
(including financial services, property investment and management,
asset management, and supply chain management) in Beijing, Shenzhen
and Hong Kong, China during the period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 (the “Reporting Period” or “2021"). The disclosures in
this report are generally made at the group level, with the disclosure of
environmental performance indicators adjusted according to the actual
situation of our different operating points. For the actual scope, please
refer to the notes in the relevant section.

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the latest version
of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules issued
by the Stock Exchange, and in compliance with the reporting principles
of materiality, quantitative, consistency and balance.

Materiality Based on industry characteristics, the Group’s operations
as well as stakeholder opinions, we have identified and ranked material
issues, which form the disclosure framework of the report, to ensure
that the report has been prepared in accordance with the materiality
principle. For the process and results of our materiality assessment, please
refer to the section headed “Assessment of Key Issues and Materiality
Assessment”.

Quantitative To evaluate and understand the Group's performance
more effectively, we have followed the recommendation of the ESG
Reporting Guide to disclose the relevant KPIs as well as the standards,
methods, assumptions and reference data used for each quantitative
indicator, such as the source of the conversion factors for calculating
carbon emissions.

Consistency To ensure meaningful comparison, the scope and boundary
of disclosure in this report remain the same as those in our last report,
and the methodology adopted for this report is consistent with that
adopted for our last report.

Balance To ensure that all stakeholders can obtain comprehensive
information on, and correctly understand, the Group’s performance,
we have made comprehensive disclosure in this report in an impartial
manner without concealing any performance data regarding any material
issue.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEREARES

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Reporting Standard (Continued)

The ESG Report has fully complied with the “mandatory disclosure
requirements” and the “comply or explain” requirement in the ESG
Reporting Guide. Except for provisions that the Group considers are
inapplicable to our business operations or provide partial disclosure,
explanations have been provided in the relevant sections. A summary of
the environmental KPIs and performance data are set out in the section
headed “Summary of Environmental Performance Data”. The information
and data contained in the ESG Report are derived from the Group's
internal documents, records and estimates. The content of this report has
been reviewed and confirmed by the Board.

Contact and Feedback

We attach great importance to stakeholder opinions, and therefore
actively communicate with stakeholders through different channels and
platforms, with a view to helping the Group establish better sustainable
development governance and strategies in the future. If you have any
comments or suggestions on this report, please contact us through the
following channels:

Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited

5/F., Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2877 4500

E-mail: csr@shougang-grand.com.hk
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE GROUP’S SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGIES

Organizations and companies around the world have been exploring
and working towards sustainable development. The Board also believes
that sustainable development is crucial to the future development of
the Company, and thus attached great importance to our sustainable
development performance and plans during the Reporting Period.
The Board believes that a company’s sustainable development should
start with its internal management. Therefore, according to the actual
situation of our internal operations, we identify and manage those of
our operational activities that have an impact on the environment and
society. In this way, we can reduce the Group's operational risks and, at
the same time, improve its operational efficiency, and establish a stable
value chain for stakeholders in the long run.

The Board undertakes to assume overall responsibility for formulating
and monitoring the direction and strategies of the Group’s sustainable
development, and actively engage with stakeholders to ensure that
the Group’s ESG performance meets their expectations. During the
Reporting Period, the Board helped our ESG task force (the "ESG Task
Force”) to discharge its duties through internal reviews, stakeholder
engagement and policymaking, thus enhancing the Group’s performance
in sustainable development.

To effectively enhance the elements of sustainable development in the
Group’s governance structure, we established an ESG task force (the "ESG
Task Force”) under the leadership of the Board during the Reporting
Period. The ESG Task Force is responsible for overseeing our ESG-
related risk management and internal control systems and incorporating
sustainable development management, tier by tier, into our corporate
governance structure. Comprising senior management, functional
departments and employee representatives of our subsidiaries, the ESG
Task Force is responsible for collecting performance data on the Group'’s
overall ESG measures, and reviews relevant performance and reports to
the Board on a regular basis. The ESG Task Force also maintains effective
communication with stakeholders to identify material ESG-related issues
and monitor and manage these issues.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEREARES

ABOUT THE GROUP’S SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGIES
(Continued)

ESG Risk Management

Through communication with internal and external stakeholders, we
have become aware of the uncertainties that sustainability risks bring to
our business operations. Therefore, the Group continuously reviews its
operational risks, identifies and evaluates potential material risks related
to ESG, and takes into account ESG-related factors in its risk response
strategies and management procedures. For example, we have now
included in our Procurement Guidelines policies to regulate suppliers’
sustainability performance to ensure that ESG risks along the supply
chain can be effectively prevented, identified and addressed.

Among these risks, we understand that climate change risk may bring
more uncertainties to our future development, and we must therefore
formulate corresponding policies and measures to ensure the long-term
development of our business. As a result, in the Environmental Policy
Statement made by the Group during the year, we undertake to actively
incorporate climate change-related factors into our risk management,
strive to adapt to the impact caused by climate change and try our best
to reduce the impact of our business operations on the environment.

In the future, the Group will continue to formulate a more comprehensive
and targeted ESG risk management framework, conduct regular reviews
on relevant ESG risks, and update relevant policies, measures and
goals so as to improve the Group’s sustainable development and risk
management and build a high-performance governance team.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE GROUP’S SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGIES
(Continued)

Our Development Goals

The Group will set appropriate sustainability goals based on its actual
operating conditions, stakeholder opinions as well as changes in the
external environment. For the coming year, we will focus on improving
the Group’s operational compliance, health and safety, customer
satisfaction and other issues, and propose solutions and actions in
response to the concerns of stakeholders. In addition, the Group will also
conduct a preliminary climate risk assessment to understand the climate
risks facing it, identify financial and non-financial impacts, and make
preparation for the formulation of relevant risk mitigation measures.

In terms of environmental goals, each member of the ESG Task Force is
responsible for identifying, analysing and evaluating the environmental
impacts related to our operations, setting appropriate environmental
goals, and reporting to the Board and reviewing the Group's risk
management and environmental policies and measures on a regular basis
to ensure their relevance and validity.

ASSESSMENT OF KEY ISSUES AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group attaches great importance to the opinions of stakeholders.
We hope to enhance their understanding of the Group’s operational
performance and target-setting by knowing their concerns, and to
guide the Group's sustainability direction by collecting their opinions.
During the Reporting Period, besides regular communication channels
such as meetings and interviews, the Group appointed an independent
sustainability consultant to conduct a survey with stakeholders to further
understand their expectations of and opinions on the Group in different
areas.

During the year, when trying to identify material issues, the Group invited
internal and external stakeholders as well as the management to share
their thoughts, so that we could understand the importance of different
sustainability issues to stakeholders and the impact of those issues on
them. According to the Group’s actual operations, the main stakeholders
we have identified include the Directors, senior management, employees,
investors/shareholders, suppliers/contractors/subcontractors, and
customers/business partners.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  -dHE@REBRE

ASSESSMENT OF KEY ISSUES AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT (continued)

According to the requirements under the latest guideline issued by the
Stock Exchange, our consultant assisted the Group in identifying 18 ESG
issues most relevant to the Group’s operations, which cover the four
areas of Environmental Protection, Employment and Labour Practices,
Operational Practices and Community. The stakeholder survey was
conducted online, with a total of 44 valid questionnaires received. The
results of the materiality assessment are as follows:
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Importance to the Group's Business
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ASSESSMENT OF KEY ISSUES AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT (Continued)

As shown in the above materiality matrix, a total of 6 material issues have
been identified on this occasion of stakeholder communication, namely:

Material ESG Issues

(in descending order of importance)

1 Employment System

2 Training and Development

3. Anti-corruption

4. Occupational Health and Safety
5 Product Responsibility

6 Fair and Open Procurement

The material issues identified on this occasion of stakeholder
communication fall under two major areas, namely Employment and
Labour Practices and Operational Practices. For Operational Practices,
anti-corruption, product responsibility as well as fair and open
procurement are new material issues. For Employment and Labour
Practices, occupational health and safety continues to be a concern for
all stakeholders, while employment system and training and development
are new material issues.

In the future, we will continue to expand the collection of opinions from
stakeholders through more communication channels. We also undertake
to fully consider the needs and concerns of stakeholders when making
decisions to help us determine our future governance approach and
realise our vision of sustainable business development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEREARES

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE

The framework of this report is based on the results of the materiality
analysis above to ensure meaningful disclosures of different issues on a
compliance basis. During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to
implement its philosophy of sustainable development, comprehensively
review and improve its policies, measures and regulatory performance in
ESG-related areas, with a view to laying a solid foundation for sustainable
development and paving the way for future actions.

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes that employees are the most valuable assets of an
enterprise, and their efforts and contributions are one of the main drivers
behind the Company’s long-term development. Therefore, the Group
is committed to establishing a diverse, inclusive and respectful working
environment for our employees, and enhancing their development by
providing them with a sound employment system.

During the Reporting Period, the Group reviewed and improved its
existing policies and measures, and updated its Employee Handbook to
describe the Group's policies on compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 47 employees. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not violate any relevant laws and
regulations on compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -HEREARE

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued) FEARHEZRRRRE@®

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued) EBREKRSE IER@E

Employment System EEHE

Compensation and Dismissal

The Group is committed to providing employees with competitive
remuneration and benefits to enhance their work performance and
sense of belonging to the Company with a view to attracting and
retaining talents. The Group monitors closely the prevailing wage
rates, and regularly conducts remuneration reviews through an
open and fair employee performance appraisal process, taking into
account employee attendance records, work performance, years of
service and other factors. Quantitative performance indicators such
as attendance records, employee performance, years of service,
overall market conditions and other relevant factors are used
during the appraisal process to ensure a fair evaluation of employee
performance.

High-performing employees will receive discretionary bonuses and
other development opportunities to ensure that their efforts are
rewarded and their contributions to the Group are appreciated.
On the contrary, if an employee is found to have misbehaved,
committed fraud, provided false information, forged documents,
or is often negligent in his or her duties, he or she will be dismissed
and paid according to and in fully compliance with relevant laws
and regulations.

Recruitment and Promotion

The Group always recruits and promotes employees on a
meritorious basis. During the recruitment and screening
processes, we abide by the Group’s Recruitment Policies and Anti-
Discrimination Policies to provide equal opportunities to everyone.
For example, the Group uses quantitative performance indicators
to evaluate the performance of employees, and provides each
employee with open and equal opportunities for training and
promotion based on his or her performance.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEREARES

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Employment System (Continued)
o Recruitment and Promotion (Continued)

We also promote diversity and inclusiveness. When looking for
suitable candidates to fill job vacancies, we undertake to select
applicants or employees based on objective criteria only, such as
work experience, academic qualifications and abilities, and not
on age, gender, sexual orientation, disability, race, marital status,
religion or political background. Any discrimination against any
applicant or employee is strictly prohibited. If there are violations
of employees’ personal rights, they can report to management
through various communication channels, such as the Company’s
internal mailbox.

. Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group arranges working hours in accordance with its
Employee Handbook and implements a standard working hour
system. Employees may work irregular shifts and/or work for a total
number of hours according to the nature of their position, and
their working hours must comply with local laws and regulations.
If employees work overtime in urgent cases and due to actual
business needs, overtime pay or compensation leave will be given
to them in accordance with relevant labour laws and regulations.
The Group also provides different kinds of leave for employees.
Employees can enjoy annual leave, sick leave, marriage leave,
bereavement leave, maternity leave, etc. according to their position.
If there are violations of employees’ personal rights, they can report
to management through various communication channels.
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ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued) @ FEAEERRERR @

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued) EBREKRSE IER@E
Employment System (Continued) & 17 I B ()
Other Benefits and Welfare Hint5B REF

We care about and value our employees, providing statutory
benefits to them based on their location. Therefore, we provide
the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) to our employees in
Hong Kong, and endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, employment injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing provident fund to our employees in
Mainland China. In addition, we have an employee recognition
programme. The Group will grant employees with long years of
service a certificate of long service, a long service award as well as
souvenirs to recognise their contributions. We also have a special
care programme to extend our care to our employees’ families.
For example, we send gifts to those of our employees who are
newlywed or have become parents to share their joy. Through
these programs, the Group strives to foster a corporate culture that
treats the whole company as a big family and to express our sincere
care and gratitude to our employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRSE
ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Employment System (Continued)
o Other Benefits and Welfare (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 47 employees, including

47 full-time employees. The following table provides a breakdown
of our total workforce by gender, age group, employment type and
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—E-—F
Employee
Number of turnover
employees rate (%)

BETAY EBIRKEE%)

Total Rt

By gender RER &S
Male S
Female it

By age group RERERE S
Below 30 305 A T
30-50 30E505%
Over 50 50B% A 1=
By geographical region Rt EE 5
Hong Kong B

China Bl A

47 31.91
26 38.46
21 23.81

8 50.00
35 28.57

4 25.00
14 28.57
33 33.33
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ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Development and Training

We care about the career path and development of our employees and
believe that good training can help them improve their work quality
and become integrated into the Company as soon as possible, thereby
enhancing the overall development and competitiveness of the Group.
Therefore, we are committed to cultivating and unleashing the potential
of our employees. We provide different training courses and activities
for employees of different ranks, such as induction training, internal
comprehensive training, departmental training and external training.
We also invite experts to hold special seminars according to the specific
needs of our employees. All training activities are organised by relevant
departments or the human resources and administration departments,
covering management systems and regulations, market trends, as well as
industry-related expertise.

During the Reporting Period, we held various training activities, including
6S management workshops, seminars related to auto industry financing,
electronic financial technology products, supply chain asset management
and financing, for our employees to help them acquire management
skills and understand the latest trends in the market. When a training
course is completed, we will collect the opinions of the participating
employees on the course in order to evaluate it. We will then review the
results and effectiveness of the course based on our employees’ feedback
and continuously optimise our training arrangement.
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RE HERERRSE

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued) ~ FE W[5 E % B R B (@)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued) EBREKRE ITER @
Development and Training (Continued) BR KRB

The data about the Group’s employee training during the Reporting RBEH A - A&EE B TE M EHE N

Period are as follows: N
2021
—E-—F
Percentage of Average
employees training hours
trained per employee
BE2IEIH FHYBUEIH
ETEH S IR E)
Total Mt 87.23 10.40

Percentage of employees trained by gender in 2021

2021 F BRI B D WZINE T LA

Employees trained by gender Average training hours per employee
RUERBSNZINET VB TRIRE
20
16
11.79
56% M "
0 0

3.68
8
4
0

[ Male I Female Male Female
St it Elid 7t
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RE -HEREARE

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued) FEEAZFERERE @)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued) EBEKRE TER @

Development and Training (Continued) BR KRB

Percentage of employees trained by employee category in 2021

2021FERETHERESHNZINE T LA

Employees trained by employee category Average training hours per employee
RETEANEINZIET PN E TRAIRE
25
20
" 11.69
© 0.88
5
0
1 Senior Management Senior Middle General
SHEEAS IYI_anamgemegt Manamgemegt Staif
BREBRAE FREEAE —MET
I Middle Management
PREBAE
I General Staff
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2021 F EHE Eﬁﬁ(im)ﬁmaa



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  -dHE@REBRE

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety

We are committed to providing a safe, efficient and harmonious working
environment to our employees to protect their physical as well as
mental health and safety. We also advocate a work-life balance lifestyle.
Therefore, outside of work, we actively organise various sports and
fitness activities for our employees, such as badminton and yoga. We also
provide fitness equipment to our employees to encourage them to keep
fit and healthy, thereby enhancing their vitality at work and overall work
efficiency.
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ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)

The health and safety of our employees is the very foundation of the
stable operation of the Group. Therefore, we try to maintain a working
environment that is safe and healthy in all aspects to promote the
physical and mental health of our employees. During the Reporting
Period, we further improved the Group’s safety management procedures
and provided our employees with necessary personal protective
equipment to prevent work-related injuries. If any serious accident with
major risks occurs and our employees feel unwell or need first aid, we will
first calm them down and then provide them with necessary assistance
until the arrival of professional paramedics. We also maintain first aid kits
and common over-the-counter medicines in the human resources and
administration departments of our subsidiaries for the treatment of minor
injuries.

As to preventive measures, the Group encourages its employees to
participate in fire drills regularly organised by property management
companies to familiarise themselves with evacuation routes and raise
their emergency awareness so that, when accidents occur, they will be
able to respond to and deal with them promptly and reduce losses and
casualties. During the year, the Group did not have any accident resulting
in work-related injury or death.
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ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)

In response to the ever-changing situation of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group set up a special task force in its Hong Kong office as well as
in each of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period. The task force
is responsible for the overall pandemic prevention and control work to
reduce the risk of our employees being infected. The Group has taken
the following preventive measures in its subsidiaries to minimise the risk
of infection and the spread of COVID-19:

o Keep the environment clean and regularly disinfect frequently
touched surfaces such as doorknobs, furniture and shared items

o Require employees to undergo daily temperature checks to ensure
they are fit for work and to maintain good personal hygiene

o Ask employees to stay home, seek medical advice, and report to
relevant authorities if they feel unwell and/or have symptoms of
COVID-19

o Circulate/attach hygiene advice and updates on the COVID-19
situation via email and notice boards to remind employees to
maintain hand hygiene and cough etiquette to prevent COVID-19
infection

o Try to replace physical meetings with online meetings or
teleconferencing

o If it is necessary to attend physical meetings or events, employees
are advised to maintain appropriate social distancing during meals
and meetings

The above measures were effectively implemented during the Reporting
Period. We will continue to encourage our employees to comply with
these and other measures to minimise the risk of infection and protect
their health.
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ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Labour Standards

The Group protects and respects human rights, and strictly prohibits the
employment of child labour and any form of forced labour. To prevent
the employment of underaged persons by mistake, we strictly follow the
recruitment policy as set out in our Employee Handbook and conduct
background checks on applicants and new hires during the recruitment
process. We require all applicants and new hires to provide identification
documents for the easy access and verification by our human resources
and administration departments to ensure that the age of the employed
person is not lower than the legal working age and meets local labour
laws and regulations.

The Group also prohibits forced labour. All new recruits are required
to sign an employment contract to ensure that they are employed
voluntarily and legally. If there are suspected violations or violations of
employees’ personal rights, they can report to management through
various communication channels. The Group will first suspend the work
of the involved employees, conduct in-depth investigations, and will
review and improve the relevant systems to plug any loopholes.

During the year, there were no cases of violations of laws and regulations
on child or forced labour.
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RE #HEREARES

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Operational Management
Anti-corruption

The Group has zero tolerance for any form of corruption including
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. To crack down on
corruption and protect the Group’s reputation and long-term business
development, we regularly review the Group’s disciplinary code,
formulate corporate corruption prevention policies and implement
a corruption prevention management system, thereby reducing the
probability of corruption in a comprehensive manner.

To prevent commercial bribery and maintain good business discipline,
we require our employees in Mainland China to sign an Anti-Commercial
Bribery Agreement or Confidentiality, Intellectual Property and Non-
compete Agreement with our subsidiaries according to the nature of
their business, thereby protecting the Group'’s legal rights and interests.
In addition, we also require all units and departments of the Group
to include clauses on integrity and self-discipline when entering into
business contracts and contracts related to economic activities, and to
sign the business-related Integrity Clause and abide by our Employee
Handbook and employee contracts. Our employees are strictly prohibited
from accepting unnecessary hospitality and gratuities such as gifts,
accommodations, or food. To avoid actual or apparent conflicts of
interest, we also require our employees to complete a written conflict
of interest declaration, disclose all relevant interests or relationships that
may involve actual or potential conflicts of interest, and report to our
human resources department for management review.
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ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Operational Management (Continued)
Anti-corruption (Continued)

The Group will handle all corruption reports seriously and formulate
a report management policy to provide employees and relevant
stakeholders with clear reporting guidelines and channels, such as
phone calls, emails and letters. To protect the personal information of
whistleblowers and their legal rights, all our whistleblowing procedures
are conducted anonymously, thus preventing whistleblowers from any
unfair treatment and retaliation. Upon receipt of relevant reports and
complaints, the Group will appoint designated personnel or establish
special committees to investigate and verify the reported incidents and
take timely remedial measures if necessary. If the reported incident
of corruption is found to have occurred, we will, depending on the
seriousness of the case, take disciplinary action against the offender or
refer the case to the judicial authorities for their handling.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its employees.

To maintain its high ethical standards of integrity and self-discipline
in the process of business development, the Group provided more
anti-corruption training to its employees during the Reporting Period,
thereby helping them and management to have a better understanding
of relevant laws and regulations and enhancing their anti-corruption
awareness. For this purpose, we made our employees watch training
videos produced by the Independent Commission Against Corruption
(ICAC) of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, and conducted
group discussions after that, so as to enhance our employees’
understanding of the scope and importance of anti-corruption.
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RE HERERRSE

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Operational Management (Continued)

Anti-corruption (Continued)

The data about the Group’s anti-corruption training during the Reporting
Period are as follows:

FENFEEERA @
EIEEE (#)
R &S ()

SS9 Ao SR SRR S 4R AR 4 5
AR -

2021

—E-—F

Hours of anti-corruption training provided to BB TRFRESHBEE RSN 1.5
employees

Hours of anti-corruption training provided to AEEERPNHREFIFIRECNE) 1.5
the Board

Service Responsibility

The Group understands that for an enterprise with service management
as its core business, the provision of stable and high-quality services
is one of the main drivers behind its success. We are committed to
providing high-quality services to our customers, ensuring that each
project or service meets quality requirements and meets their needs and
expectations.

o Quality Management

To maintain its management service in high quality, the Group
has implemented system management in each of its business
segments, including service quality management, project control
and monitoring mechanisms, customer data management and
internal risk management control, thereby enhancing management
efficiency and satisfying customers’ needs. The Group has also
implemented a quality management system certified by the
international standard of ISO 9001:2015 in its subsidiaries engaged
in supply chain management business to carry out systematic
quality management of their business, thereby improving the
efficiency of their business operations and reducing the risk of their
quality management.
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RE -HEREARE

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued) FEARHEZRRRRE@®

Operational Management (Continued) EETE(®)
Service Responsibility (Continued) BR 7% & 1 (&)
Customer Service EFR%

To ensure that our customers are satisfied with our services and
overall performance, we appreciate customers’ feedback on the
Group's services, which helps us maintain a professional service
level and enhance external competitiveness. We have set up
a dedicated department to handle complaints, and undertake
to respond immediately and take prompt actions, including
comprehensive assessments of problems and seeking solutions,
as well as measures to prevent similar incidents from happening
again. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive any
complaints.

Customer Privacy

To fully protect customer privacy and intellectual property rights,
all employees of the Group are required to accept and abide by
the confidentiality clauses contained in the Employment Contract
and Confidentiality Agreement. All confidential data can only be
accessed on a “need-to-know"” basis by authorised and designated
departments or personnel. We also change our network service
passwords regularly to improve network security and ensure that
customer privacy is protected. When entering into employment
contracts, the Group also requires its employees to sign the
Confidentiality, Intellectual Property and Non-compete Agreement
and to pledge that, unless authorised by the Group, they will not
use any of the Group's confidential and sensitive information
(including but not limited to information on the Group’s
transactions, trade secrets or other confidential information of
its customers) or disclose such information to any unauthorised
third parties. In the event of any breach of confidentiality (such
as the violation of customer privacy and the leakage of contract
information), the person involved may be subject to disciplinary
actions and liability.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
violation of relevant laws and regulations on service responsibility
and customer privacy that had a significant impact on the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEREARES

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Operational Management (Continued)
Service Responsibility (Continued)
. Advertising

Due to the nature of its business, the Group considers that
advertising or labelling does not have a significant impact on its
daily operations, so this report does not provide disclosure of
relevant policies and measures.

Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to providing high-quality services to its
customers and aims to be their professional and trusted business partner.
Therefore, the Group insists on the strict selection of suitable and high-
quality intermediaries and suppliers for cooperation to standardise and
strengthen the service quality of its group companies and ensure that
the intermediaries or suppliers we work with are not only in compliance
with laws and regulations, but also share our sustainability vision. We
also actively maintain close communication with intermediaries and
suppliers to identify their impact on society and the environment during
the production processes or along the supply chain. In accordance with
the Group’s Procurement Guidelines, procurement applicants regularly
monitor the performance of the relevant suppliers and make appropriate
procurement suggestions to management as and when necessary.

To further identify the operational and governance risks along the supply
chain, we have conducted a comprehensive review of our supply chain
management system to ensure that there are no systemic problems
and to effectively maintain the stable operation of the supply chain.
When selecting partners along the supply chain, we will evaluate their
qualifications and capabilities based on their internal management
system (such as their quality management system), training qualifications,
equipment conditions, service quality, social reputation, after-sales service
and other related professional skills to ensure that their service quality is
qualified, stable and reliable and to achieve full compliance without any
adverse effects.

During the Reporting Period, the Group engaged 70 suppliers, including
45 suppliers in Mainland China and 25 suppliers in Hong Kong.
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RE -HEREARE

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued) FEARHEZRRRRE@®

Operational Management (Continued) EETE(®)
Supply Chain Management (Continued) 14t 8 B 2 ()
Fair and Open Procurement . AERABHEE
The Group carries out its procurement based on the principles of AEBERUIAE - 2F - 2RIHER

justness, fairness and openness, and selects intermediaries and
suppliers through price comparison, invitation to tender or public
tender to ensure that procurement risks are controlled on the basis
of equality and mutual benefit, thereby establishing long-term and
stable cooperation with suppliers. To ensure that intermediaries
and suppliers can provide high-quality services and meet the
needs and expectations of our customers, we only cooperate with
intermediaries and suppliers with high ethical standards. We also
encourage suppliers and intermediaries to adopt and implement
the Group’s relevant policies and procedures to prevent any breach
of policies or contractual provisions established between us. To
safeguard the best interests of the Group and its customers, if
any irregularities are found, the Group will terminate or consider
terminating its cooperation with the supplier until the supplier
takes remedial actions.

Green Procurement

To promote the sustainable development of the industry more
actively, the Group revised its Procurement Guidelines during
the Reporting Period, with a view to improving the sustainability
performance of the industry in the long run by promoting
improvements along the supply chain. When selecting suppliers,
we will endeavour to promote “green procurement”, actively
exert our influence, and adhere to the principle of purchasing
environmentally friendly products with lower carbon emissions.
Therefore, the Group expressly states in the revised provisions
of its Procurement Guidelines that, when selecting suppliers,
it will refer to their relevant internal documents to review their
environmental protection performance, while encouraging them to
implement energy saving and carbon reduction measures. We will
also follow the suppliers’ environmental protection policy set out in
the Procurement Guidelines to give priority to the procurement of
products and equipment that cause less pollution, as long as their
quality is good and the prices are reasonable.
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RE #HEREARES

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Operational Management (Continued)
Compliance Management

Compliance with all applicable laws and regulations is a basic requirement
for the Group’s operations. The Group understands that violation of
laws and regulations will have an impact on the Group’s business
operations, for example tarnish its reputation, incur penalties, or drag it
into litigation. With the continuous refinement and implementation of
laws, regulations and policies in China, the Group will continue to regard
ensuring operational compliance as an important goal. We have also
formulated and implemented a series of internal policies and systems to
strengthen compliance management. Our Audit Committee is responsible
for overseeing the Group's policies and practices regarding compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, while the Board reviews the
Group’s compliance performance annually.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no violations of laws and
regulations related to ESG matters. For a detailed look at the Group's
ESG-related policies and its compliance with ESG-related laws and
regulations, please refer to Appendix I.

Environmental Protection

To facilitate the implementation of its sustainable development and
the fulfillment of its responsibility for environmental protection, the
Group will continue to review, identify and assess potential major risks
related to the environment, and implement environmental management-
related policies and measures, thereby reducing the negative impact
of its operations on the environment. The Group also undertakes to
continue to promote environmental protection among its employees
and stakeholders, and to help and encourage them to reduce emissions
and save energy in different aspects of life, thereby contributing to
environmental protection.
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ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Climate Change

The Group understands that environmental risks will bring uncertainties
to its sustainable development. Therefore, during the year we formulated
the Environmental Policy Statement, in which we undertake to identify
the environmental impacts caused by our operations and reduce energy
consumption and pollutant emissions. We hope to take into account
the factor of climate change in our business operations by formulating
policies and measures related to climate change, thereby being in line
with China’s goal of achieving carbon neutrality by 2050 and reducing
the impact of our business on climate change.

As demonstrated by the Environmental Policy Statement, the Group
aims to improve the monitoring of its energy consumption performance,
enhance the efficiency of its resource utilization and resource recycling,
create a more healthy and safe working environment, minimise its
impact on climate change, and raise the environmental awareness
of its employees, thereby laying a solid foundation for its long-term
development.

Use of Resources

To protect the environment and enhance the efficient use of resources
at the Group’s operating points, the Group has formulated and
implemented measures related to the use of resources, such as
encouraging our employees to pay attention to the details of energy
conservation as well as minimising waste, thereby improving energy
efficiency and avoiding waste.

To further improve the effect of energy saving and waste reduction, the
Group has conducted internal discussions on target setting, and will
carry out preliminary data collation and analysis. The Group undertakes
to, after a comprehensive review of the data and the formation of
basic policies, draw up and disclose more plans and targets on energy
conservation and emission reduction, thus contributing to the national
and global efforts to reduce carbon emissions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s resource consumption mostly
included electricity, water, paper used in its offices and gasoline used
by its own vehicles. For the above resources, the Group has formulated
various policies and measures to actively reduce their consumption.
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RE  -dHE@REBRE

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Use of Resources (Continued)
o Energy Efficiency

The Group is committed to optimising its operational processes
to save energy, and thus strives to raise its employees’ awareness
of energy conservation through administrative measures and
encouragement. The details of the measures are as follow:

> Maintain indoor temperature at a comfortable and energy-
efficient level between 24 and 26C;

> Use automated electricity management systems;

> Encourage employees to switch off office appliances and
devices, such as air conditioners, computers, personal
electronic devices and common office equipment after work
or when not in use;

> Purchase office equipment and electrical appliances with
higher energy efficiency (such as those with a Grade 1
energy label or the China Energy Label) to reduce the use of
electricity; and

> Put up "green reminders” and energy-saving signs near

office equipment, light switches and main entrance to further
enhance employees’ environmental awareness.
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ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Environmental Protection (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

o Energy Efficiency (Continued)

The Group's electricity consumption during the Reporting Period is

BE dHEaREARE

FEAFERRRA@
RIBRE@®

R 1 A (8)

o UM (M)

AEBRREMANPEENT

as follows:
2021 2020 Change
—E-—F —EZEF =X(d
Electricity consumption? (MWh) B2 ELE) 55.34 74.89 N/AN 3 B
Intensity (MWh/employee) RE KRB, 1.18 1.44
BHEI)
2021 2020 Change
—=-— —E-EE 21
Gasoline consumption (litre) RBAE 4,440.94 8,968.22 -50.48%
Intensity (litre/employee) mEH/8%8I) 94.49 172.47 -45.21%
Besides electricity, gasoline is also commonly used by the Group, BRTASEI  ARTEALEETEROR
mostly by its vehicles. As we take public transport for commuting B T ERAREWMES - AR EEER
purposes whenever possible and have switched to video AARZBIART  UERKESHE
conferencing for most of our meetings due to the pandemic, our FEEEERCEAREGEN#ET K
use of vehicles became less frequent, resulting in a significant SEHBEWEREITAL T TFE - B8
decrease in overall gasoline consumption as compared to 2020. FUBEREK RS T FRIE T -
The Group'’s total energy consumption during the Report Period is BEMES  AEEmEHANLREHAE
as follows. 20T
2021 2020 Change
—B-—F p et 22 21t
Energy consumption* (MWh) BERFEE KRR 95.09 161.80 N/AT3E
Intensity (MWh/employee) B KR, 2.02 3.11
BHEI)
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RE  -dHE@REBRE

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Use of Resources (Continued)
o Energy Efficiency (Continued)

In the future, the Group will continue to monitor its energy
consumption performance and, according to actual needs, develop
more systematic guidelines to implement further energy saving
and carbon reduction plans. Moreover, we require our employees
to report regularly to management on the progress of their energy
saving efforts, thereby enhancing efficiency and reducing the
consumption of energy and resources through effective oversight
and control.

° Water Conservation

The Group’s business does not require a large amount of water,
and our daily water consumption is mainly water for our offices and
drinking water for our employees. Therefore, we aim to achieve
water saving mostly by encouraging our employees to cherish
water and raising their awareness of water saving. For example, we
put up water saving signs in pantries and toilets. The Group'’s water
consumption during the Reporting Period is as follows:

FEAUFEZER&XA@
RIBRE ()

R 1 A ()

o BEENEE (M)

AR REBHFERIEREAR
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HHAE

o HIMAK

AEENEBSTEFTEREAK BE
AAKIEABRATRAKRE THRANK -
At  AEEXZFEBREEHETZER
K IREEKEF  EDEH AR
R PIEEEOKE R %EF ERA &L A
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-

2021 2020 Change

—E-—F —ECEF =3[

Water consumption® (cubic metre)  FB7KE5(37 75 3K) 13.25 272.67 N/A 3 A
Intensity (cubic metre/femployee) mEGLHKS 0.28 5.24

BZET)

We will continue to enhance the responsibility of our employees for
water saving and their awareness of it to avoid water waste.

m Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited Annual Report 2021

AR AEBGEBR NN MBE THE
AOBAKNETLEHS B2 REH
K o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -HEREARE

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued) @ FEAEERRERR @

Environmental Protection (Continued) RIBRE @)
Use of Resources (Continued) EREA (&)
Paper Use HoREA

We advocate green office policies and keep encouraging our
employees to reduce waste through paper saving. Therefore, we
strive to promote digital and paperless offices. We encourage our
employees to carefully select the documents to be printed, and
to consider using electronic files to transmit documents whenever
possible. If printing is necessary, they should choose double-
sided printing. They should also reuse single-sided printouts for
document drafting and collect double-sided printouts for recycling.

The Group's paper consumption during the Reporting Period is as
follows:

AEBEREREMAZTRE  FHEXE
BTHHRE  BIRE - Bt K&
BRI ERAEHEERBCRERLET
1M BB THEITERZIRRERT
ZITHM XM - AFEAI L EBEME
FRELANEEXX - MuBERITH
NEERBEEITEHNEREMEmMT
R REXHREEZR - ARk
B RSR B UK -

AEBENHEHANBEENT -

2021 2020 Change

—B-—-F —EBEF =414

Paper consumption (tonne) F#t= (188) 0.83 0.82 1.22%
Intensity (tonne/employee) mEME, §EB8TI) 0.02 0.02 -11.70%

The Group’s paper consumption during the Reporting Period was
comparable to that of the previous year, although the consumption
per employee decreased significantly. We undertake to continue to
promote paper reduction in our offices.
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RE #HEREARES

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Emissions Management

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of finance services,
property investment and management, assets management and supply
chain management, and our operations are within an office setting
without any manufacturing activities involved. Hence, the greenhouse
gases generated from our operations are mainly due to the electricity
use in our offices, the fuel consumption by our vehicles and the
business travels of our employees. We encourage our employees to
take public transport when commuting and adopt videoconferencing or
teleconferencing for meetings to replace business trips, thereby reducing
the greenhouse gases generated by vehicles and planes.

o Greenhouse Gases and Air Pollutants

The Group endeavours to monitor and reduce direct and
indirect greenhouse gas emissions, it calculates its greenhouse
gas emissions in accordance with the guideline set out in the
Greenhouse Gas Protocol as well as appropriate regional emission
factors.

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions during the Reporting Period
are as follows:

FENFEEERA @
RIBRE @
By ER

AEBTFENFSRESRRY  WERER
Mﬁ BEEENMMERERER  MES

BEZEAPMAE U AP REMEESF
E Mk - BRMIEBEEMELENBEZERE
SR EBRERAENENFER  BF
HOMEERERE IR E - KEEINER
ETFIRZERARTAETE - WHEAB
R ERRERSENREEEREE - LUK
DEFRLIRERREHEMEEZRER
BEBER

TR

A

RZER

i
it
P
i

RENEREMEIERLEAZNAER
%%FE&Z AEEERBCREREZT
2>>E’J%a%l)§2m THEBE R A
BEBEZREREHMEE -

RBEHA - AERERKREHANEE
REHENENT

2021 2020 Change
Greenhouse gas emissions’ BEREHEN —EB-—-F —E-EF 21t
Scope 1 (tCO,e) &E— WAt 13.57 24.28  N/A (Please refer
= to the Notes)
Scope 2 (tCO,e) 0 E — (W — ALk 35.32 64.63 A iE
=i (RAE R H)
Scope 3 (tCO,e) %ﬁl_( g — &b fix 10.45 28.45
2)
Total (tCO,e) %@%(Wﬁ AREE) 59.34 117.36
Intensity (tCO,e/employee) mEM_athEs 1.26 2.26
BEEI)
2021 2020 Change
Air emissions? BER B2 —B-—-F —EBEF =414
Nitrogen oxides (kg) REW(Fe) 1.04 417 -75.06%
Sulphur oxides (kg) ma iy (T5) 0.082 0.13 -36.92%
Particles (kg) R (F7) 0.11 0.31 -64.52%
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ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued) @ FEAEERRERR @

Environmental Protection (Continued) RIBRE (@)

B EE ()

Emissions Management (Continued)

Greenhouse Gases and Air Pollutants (Continued)

The Group's air emissions are mostly due to its use of vehicles.
During the Report Period, as we switched to video conferencing
for most of our meetings due to the pandemic, our use of vehicles
became much less frequent, resulting in a significant reduction in
air emissions.

In the future, the Group will continue to encourage the use of
webconferencing or teleconferencing and invest more resources in
the enhancement of electricity efficiency and green travel to reduce
carbon emissions.

Waste

The Group has adopted relevant waste management measures to
minimise the negative impact of waste on the environment. During
the Reporting Period, the waste produced by the Group was mainly
domestic waste and office waste produced by our employees,
and a small amount of hazardous waste such as toner cartridges
and ink cartridges, which were handed over to qualified recyclers
for disposal. To further reduce the amount of waste produced,
we have placed recycling bins in different parts of our offices (for
example, next to copiers, in workplaces and pantries) to collect
recyclable waste such as paper, metal and plastic.
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RE #HEREARES

ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Emissions Management (Continued)
. Waste (Continued)

Since the Group is not in a highly polluting industry and does not
generate a large amount of waste and, according to the materiality
assessment, stakeholders do not attach great importance to this
issue, we believe that this issue is not a material issue and have not
disclosed the relevant data in this report.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s business, because of its nature, has no significant impact
on the environment and natural resources. However, we believe that
the cultivation of environmental awareness is essential for protecting
environmental resources. No matter what industry a company is in, it
should have the awareness to ensure that potential impact is minimised
in each of its business processes. Therefore, we continue to pay attention
and attach great importance to environmental protection issues, and
actively strengthen the environmental protection awareness of our
employees and business-related stakeholders. We hope to use our
actions as a starting point to promote environmental awareness along
the supply chain and across the industry and join hands with all walks of
life to create a green society.

To ensure that the Group is always aware of the impact of our business
on the environment, we annually review, identify and evaluate the
environmental and natural resource risks related to our operations and
enhance relevant policies and measures to increase their effectiveness.
We will continue to fulfill our social responsibility during the process
of our sustainable business development, thereby contributing to
environmental protection.
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ANNUAL SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE (Continued)

We believe that a company should give back to society and use part of its
profit to help building communities, so that all walks of life can develop
sustainably. Therefore, we always keep in mind our corporate social
responsibility and strive to make contributions to communities. Moreover,
we actively promoted the development of the industry and contributed
to the establishment of industry standards.

The Group believes that the development of the industry is closely tied
to the development of the Group’s business and is thus committed to
promoting the healthy and standardised development of the industry.
During the Reporting Period, Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain Management
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain"), one of our subsidiaries, served
as Vice-president Unit of Beijing Metal Materials Circulation Industry
Association and Beijing Federation of Industry and Commerce Metal
Materials Industry Chamber of Commerce, as we hope to promote the
development of industry standards through holding public offices and
ensure that the industry will move towards the direction of sustainable
development. Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain also won the third edition of
the China Supply Chain (Finance Industry) Role Model Awards — Best
Supply Chain (Finance) Best Growth Value Award. This award recognises
our long-term contributions to the supply chain financial services in the
steel industry as well as our efforts.

Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain will continue to actively create good financial
credit ecology along the supply chain in the steel industry and hopes to
enhance the self-regulatory system of the industry, thereby enhancing
the reputation and social influence of the industry. Meanwhile, we hope
to reduce systemic risks of the industry and promote its sustainable
development by sharing our own experiences as well as our perspectives
and opinions on regulatory measures.
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BRE dHEaREARE

SUMMARY OF ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE REEERRAEFE
DATA
Unit 2021 2020 2019
By —E-—F —EZEF —E-hEF
Greenhouse gas emissions'
BERBHERE
Scope 1 tCO,e 13.57 24.28 30.06
#HE— WE—SELIRE S
Scope 2 tCO,e 35.32 64.63 73.45
&E= W—RLiREE
Scope 3 tCO,e 10.45 28.45 57.29
#HE= WE—SELIRE S
Total greenhouse gas emission tCO,e 59.34 117.36 160.80
RERBALENE W—RbiREE
Intensity tCO,e/employee 1.26 2.26 2.87
#E WE—SbiE S
BRET
Air emission?
BER A E?
Nitrogen oxides Kg 1.04 4.17 5.63
E=ta) TR
Sulphur oxides Kg 0.082 0.13 0.16
mealy Tr
Particles Kg 0.11 0.31 0.14
REHLY) TR
Energy consumption
BERHRER
Gasoline L 4,440.94 8,968.22 11,099
v DF
Intensity L/employee 94.49 172.47 198.20
T AFt/BEET
Electricity? MWh 55.34 74.89 81.65
B JKFLEF
Intensity MWh/employee 1.18 1.44 1.46
#E kR 8RBT
Total energy intensity* MWh 95.09 161.80 -
BEREEmE JKFLEF
Intensity MWh/employee 2.02 3.1 -
#E KEE FHRET
Water consumption® m3 13.25 272.67 212.24
KB REFEES 7K
Intensity m3/employee 0.28 5.24 3.79
#E NHEKR/BERET
Paper consumption Tonne 0.83 0.82 1.28
MRS A
Intensity Tonne/employee 0.02 0.02 0.02
®E We,BEET
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SUMMARY OF ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
DATA (Continued)

Notes -

The Group's greenhouse gas emissions come from electricity consumption and
fuel consumption of its vehicles. When calculating these emissions, we have
mainly referred to How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs (revised version, 2021) published by the Stock
Exchange, the emission factors for electricity in the Sustainability Report 2020
of HK Electric Investments as well as the average emission factors for electricity
published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic
of China.

The main source of air emissions is the consumption of gasoline by our vehicles.
When calculating the total emissions, we have mainly referred to How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs published by the Stock Exchange and the emission factors set out in the
Technical Guidelines for the Preparation of Air Emissions Inventory for Road
Vehicles published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s
Republic of China.

The Group moved to its new offices in Beijing and Shenzhen during the
Reporting Period and the property management company responsible for
the management of these offices was unable to provide the raw data on our
electricity consumption, so we are unable to disclose the relevant data in this
year'’s report. The Group will continue to communicate with the property
management company and actively encourage it to improve its existing data
processing methods, with a view to providing more comprehensive disclosure of
data in the future.

The Group's energy consumption is mainly due to the consumption of gasoline
and electricity. When calculating our overall energy consumption, we have
mainly referred to the relevant conversion factors set out in How to prepare an
ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs published
by the Stock Exchange.

The Group moved to its new offices in Beijing and Shenzhen during the
Reporting Period and the property management company responsible for the
management of these offices was unable to provide the raw data on our water
consumption, so we are unable to disclose the relevant data in this year'’s
report. The Group will continue to communicate with the property management
company and actively encourage it to improve its existing data processing
methods, with a view to providing more comprehensive disclosure of data in the
future.
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BE dHEaREARSE
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Appendix 1: Overview of KPIs gk — @ BARENIEEAE

Material Content Page

Aspect B Index

=] 'R

A1 Emissions

23587

General Disclosure Information on: pp.84-86

— M= (@) the policies; and $£84%
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact 868

on the issuer relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BHERSORERBYN - /KR HHEES BERBEEREVNELS
Hy :
(@ HE: Rk
(b)) EFHETABEATZENRBEZRANNER D —MIKE

AT1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. pp.84, 88
R iR A KRR IR - 884 -

88E

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in pp.84, 88
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per | 584 *
facility). 88E
B (FEE) RUREE (BE2)REREBYHE CAMEH) & (@ER) % E (1
NESESEN - BERETE) -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. | pp.85-86
per unit of production volume, per facility). #85%
FELEEEEDREE UHHE) R(WER)BE (A SESEMN - BIERE 865
FTHE) -

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity | pp.85-86
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). #85%
FEERESEEDES UMAE)RWER)BE (NASEEEN - BIERE 865
FTHE) -

A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. p.85
HMFTET BB E B IR R AET|E L B EMEEIE P8 %858

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction pp.85-86
initiatives and results achieved. #85%
MARERERETERYN L REAMATZORER R AERELE 865
IRFTERERE 8K -
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Appendix 1: Overview of KPIs (Continued) fitéz— : REREFELE @
Material Content Page
Aspect B Index
EmE BiR
A2 Use of Resources
BEREMA
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw pp.79-83
—AR ke materials. $79%
ERERER(BIEER - KEREMEMED)BUR 838

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in pp.81, 88
total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). | 81 -
REAE DM ERE R, LHEEERANE - ﬁiiﬁ)%@ﬁ%%ﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁ%) 888
REEWMLNGESSN - BEXBIE

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per | pp.82, 88
facility). %82 -
BFEKEREEWAGESEN - BIEREAH) 888

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. pp.79-82
A PET I BV RERE A e B IR R R ETE L B IR PTEREREY 8% - $79%

828

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, | p.82
water efficiency initiatives and results achieved. F828
USREGE AR ER BB - ARFTRI I8 Ak B IR R AERE L
B IRATERERE) 2288 -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, pp.83, 88
with reference to per unit produced. %83~
SN mATABEMBNAEE A E) R(NER) BEEBMEE - 885

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

BERRAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and p.86

—R IR natural resources. %868
BWEEITAHRERRAERENERNZENBR

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural | p.86
resources and the actions taken to manage them. %868
M EBEDERERRAERNEATEREHANEEBHETENITE -
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Appendix 1: Overview of KPlIs (Continued) fiték— @ BRENIEFRLE (®)
Material Content Page
Aspect B Index
=] B
A4 Climate Change
RIRE1{E
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which | p.56
—RR IR have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. %568
BRI REHEE A EUBRTAEETENEARARBBESERNBUR
A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and pp.56-57
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them. $E56%8
BB RAIREEHBEITAEEZENEARBREFREE - RELTH - 578
B1 Employment
&=
General Disclosure Information on: pp.60-64
—R iR (@) the policies; and $60%
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact 645
on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BRAHRAEE  BERET  TESH - BY - FEEE  Zalk RER
AR B 5538 R AR A Y
(@ BE: M
(b) BFHETABEATENEBEZNBROINER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (e.g. full- or part-time), age group p.64
and geographical region. F648
IR EREAR (N2 BEFRE) - Fiedn Mt s DES LS -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region p.64
IR FirdRI MR E D ESRKLLE o F64E
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Appendix 1: Overview of KPIs (Continued) fitéz— : REREFELE @

Material Content Page

Aspect B Index

=] B

B2 Health and Safety

REEZR

General Disclosure Information on: pp.68-70

—AR ke (@) the policies; and F68%
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant 708

impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

FARHZE2ITHERRELREREEMEBELEED -
(@ BE: &
(b) BFHETABEARZENHBERLRDINER

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three p.69
years (including the reporting year). #6958
BE=F (BRERFE)SFRITHNHABRMLE -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. p.69
RIGEATHEBRS - 698

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are pp.68-70
implemented and monitored. #68%F
PR ER N R R B 22 2465 - AIBRARRIT REER 0% » 708

B3 Development and Training

R R IE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at pp.65—67

— MR R work. Description of training activities. F65%
BRRHES BT LIERE A H R BUR - fdFINES - 678

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. p.67
senior management, middle management). F678
RUERREEEFN(NERERE  TREBE)ES>NZIEEBDL °

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee p.66
category. #6658
RUEFIREESRMNE D - BREE TR TFHRE -
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Appendix 1: Overview of KPIs (Continued) fiféz— : REREFELE @

Material Content Page

Aspect B Index

= =N

B4 Labour Standards

BT AR

General Disclosure Information on: p.71

— AR B FE (a) the policies; and E718
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAD 1EE T ekaghlss TH) -
(@ HE: Rk
(b) BFHBETABEATENBBEEZRBRONER -

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced | p.71
labour. EyAR=
iR S BB DI R i AR o B T R KI5 T

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. p.71
BB R B ER BB R IR - E71H

B5 Supply Chain Management

R EE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. pp.76-77

— MR EIRHEE N IRE Rt G RRBR - E76E

778

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. p.76
itz DM HEFEE - E76H

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where | pp.76-77
the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored. F762
T AR RHEENED - mERTARENNHEREE - AREBRT 778

REERFIE °

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the pp.76-77
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored. F762
ft BB EE G ERSHORE R GRARAED - LARABRERITRESR 778
T e

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and | p.77
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored. | 778

W ERE R EE R (RS AIRRERRRBHED - ARAAERTRESRD
P
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Appendix 1: Overview of KPIs (Continued) Mitg— - BARERISELAE @

B6 Product Responsibility

EmEE

General Disclosure Information on: pp.74-76

—RR I EE (@)  the policies; and EyrES
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact 768

on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
FRMEHERNBRBNERELZ S  BE  RERMBEEURBRTE
Ky -
(@ BE: &
(b) BFHETABEAXENHBERLRDIGER

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and p.75
health reasons. F758
PENEEXERESTRLT 2 EERIEHMARKMNE DL

B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received and how they are p.75
dealt with. %758
BEREANEmRRGHIRFEE AREBEFE -

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property p.75
rights. $758
it B S ARIE AR EEHE R ARV IB DI -

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. p.75
S 20T RIEREREWIET o F758

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are p.75
implemented and monitored. %£758
HIUE B EERRE RILBBR - U RABBEITRERF X
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Material Content Page

Aspect B Index

= =N

B7 Anti-corruption

RES

General Disclosure Information on: pp.72-74

—RR IR (@) the policies; and E2E
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact 748

on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BEAMILBRE - 9R - HEF RO RES ¢
(@ HE: Rk
(b) BFHBETABEATENBBEEZRBRONER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the | p.73
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases. | 5738
RERAANEETASEEEREITEEENE THFARGOEE LFALE
% o

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are | pp.72—73
implemented and monitored. E2E
P EE M R B RIERF - U RABBRIT RER % - 738

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. pp.72-74
fmEERE TRENRESHF - E72%

748

B8 Community Investment

HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities | p.87

—RH R where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the F87H
communities” interests.

BN E2ERTHEEMEHERTENBEREEK ZDHEZRLERNEN
R

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour p.87
needs, health, culture, sport). 5878
EIERERHE  BRREE BTHER BF b 85)-

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. p.87
EEIHEMEBAER(NE ENAEFRE) - 878
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Appendix 2: The Group’s Compliance with Laws and

Regulations

RE HEREARS

Bf &% ()
Misk— : EEFTETHEDIER

Employees
BT

Employment

(=

Employee Handbook
Recruitment Policies
Anti-Discrimination
Policies

(BIFM
CHRREEEER)
(REAREERD

Employment Ordinance

Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China

Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of
China

Minimum Wage Ordinance

CE RIS

(hE ARKMBE L EE)
(PEARKEMBELEE EE)

(hE ARFAMBE M SREIE)
(AR TE GBI

Health and Safety
fRERZ 2

Retail Safety
Management
Procedures
(ZERETEERE)

Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases

(REL 2 REREED)

(hE ARFEMBEB R X

Development and
Training
B BRI

Employee Handbook
(BIFM

N/A
A

Labour Standards
2T AR

Employee Handbook
CEIFM

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and various anti-
discrimination ordinances

CEAE R RLER) D1 Fs TR AR 51
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Appendix 2: The Group’s Compliance with Laws and
Regulations (Continued)

Bf & ()

By s — : SR AT E T R EPIER (3)

Areas Issues The Group'’s Policies = Laws and Regulations (including but not
gk =32 REBBUER limited to)
EBLER (BIEERRR)
Operation Supply Chain Procurement Law of the People’s Republic of China on Bid
=5 Management Guidelines Invitation and Bidding
HEHEE R Supplier Management | (FREE A R B BIZEIZE)
Procedures
(EREEESD
(HERERRIE)
Product Employee Handbook Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of
Responsibility (BIFM China
EmEE Law of the People’s Republic of China on the

Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(REARKENMBIERE 2K
(hEARANMBEEEEEZREL)
(hEARKEMBERRDER)
(PEARKEMBEE BE)

CEANE# (FLER) 15151

Business Ethics

[SES =L

Anti-Corruption
RER

Employee Handbook
Employment Contract
Integrity Clause
Confidentiality,
Intellectual Property
and Non-compete
Agreement
Anti-Commercial
Bribery Agreement
(BIFM)
(ERELD
CRRRIGFD

(RE - HBERER
i SE IR I AR k)
(R EBRBEE)

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China
Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China

Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China

By 1= BRER 1B )

CEANE R (FLER) 5 151)

(hE ARHEMBERDE)

(P EE AR HEMBE AT IE)
(PEARKEMBERTEERFE)
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Appendix 2: The Group’s Compliance with Laws and Mgk — @ EEFTESFHEBER @)
Regulations (Continued)

Environment Emissions Environmental Policy Environmental Protection
IR 2387 Statement Law of the People’s Republic of China
GRIBECRER) Motor Vehicle Idling (Fixed Penalty) Ordinance

Greenhouse Gas Protocol

(hEE A R EFBIRIBREE)
CRESIZZ=E (EEIFOEH)
CRERBEHRTE)

Use of Resources Environmental Policy N/A

&R Statement i A
CRIBBERER)

The Environment Environmental Policy N/A

and Natural Statement A

Resources CRIBBERER)

RIBRRABIR
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEHRES

The Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) herein present their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 19 and 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 130 to 270 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend in the total
amount of HK$11.95 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: HK$NIl), payable to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on Friday,
27 May 2022. Based on 3,984,639,703 ordinary shares of the Company
in issue, such a final dividend would amount to HK0.3 cent per ordinary
share.

Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed final dividend at the
Company’s annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 20 May 2022,
the final dividend is expected to be paid on or about Friday, 15 July
2022. For determining the entitlement to the final dividend, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 30 May 2022
to Tuesday, 31 May 2022, inclusive, during such period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for the final dividend,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 27 May 2022.
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RESULTS (continued)

The financial performance of the Group has improved since 2020,
both the revenue and business scale maintained a growth momentum,
and the profitability increased significantly. The Board will resume
regular dividend payment, from time to time according to the results
performance, aiming to reward Shareholders continuously and create
returns for Shareholders so as to reflect the value of the Group’s services
to Shareholders. The Company is confident of delivering sustainable
results to support the resumption of regular dividend payments.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Board reserves the right in its discretion
to declare and pay dividends of any specified amount and the manner in
which dividends are paid for any specified period. In deciding whether
to recommend the payment of dividends, the Board will continue to
take into account the factors set out in the dividend policy, which
currently include the Group’s actual and future operating conditions,
profit, financial condition, liquidity requirements, cash disbursement and
liquidity adequacy, investment needs, future prospects and individual
factors that may be relevant.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 11 to 13 and pages 14
to 21 of this annual report respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the pass five financial years is set out on pages 271 to 272 of
this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year (2020:
Nil).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgHEE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Xu Liang

Tian Gang (appointed with effect from 24 March 2021)
Liang Hengyi (appointed with effect from 25 March 2022)
Su Guifeng (resigned with effect from 19 March 2021)

Li Jing (resigned with effect from 24 March 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Huang Donglin

Zhang Jianxun (appointed with effect from 24 March 2021)
You Wenli (resigned with effect from 24 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Tam King Ching, Kenny

Zhang Xingyu

Ng Man Fung, Walter (appointed with effect from 19 March 2021)
On Danita (appointed with effect from 19 March 2021)

Wan Siu Wah, Wilson (passed away on 8 January 2021)

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with clause 102(B) of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Liang Hengyi will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (AGM) and, being eligible, offer himself for re-
election.

In accordance with clause 99 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Xu
Liang and Mr. Zhang Jianxun, will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with clause 99 of the Bye-laws of the Company and Code
Provisions B.2.2 and B.2.3 in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tam
King Ching, Kenny will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company and subject to the provisions
of the Companies Ordinance, every Director or other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Company during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract that is not determinable by
the Company or its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or chief executives of
the Company or any of their associates had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and “Share Option Schemes” herein, at no time during
the year was the Company, any of its holding companies, or any of their
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable the Company’s
Directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts that are significant in
relation to the business of the Company, any of its holding companies, or
any of their subsidiaries was a party, in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the following Director has
declared interests in the following business (other than those businesses
where the Directors of the Company were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or any member of the
Group) which is considered to compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the year:

EERNRS RSN 2 ER

RERKFAEMFMPME - AoaE) - HE[E
AT~ RIREZ AN E AR ERRE
MERRBAEBERLENEEZRS - B
KK AARREFNEF (EERIMEE)#
BEARHE -

EERBFEXB2ER

RIBEETRAUESN0ME - UTEFEEEHERN
UTEBRHAERR(UTBRARREEES
FAEBARZESEURRARTR HA
SEEMKEBRBERZER) - MEEHH
BRNANFEAERNEERBEXEZ XM

ZHF A REBAHT

Description of business

Name of entity whose
business are considered
to compete or likely

to compete with the

of the entity which is
considered to compete
or likely to compete
with the businesses of

Nature of interest of the

Name of Director businesses of the Group the Group Director in the entity
EBEEARELEEER EBEAREEEER
BHBRFATEBRBRTFZ BABFIIATEBERTEZ ESRERSEZ
EEnE BREH BERzEH EmzME
Xu Liang Shougang Holding* Property investment Director
w2 EEilzl MERE %
# Such business may be carried out through the subsidiaries or associates of the — * ZYEA B BT WE LR &

entity concerned or by way of other forms of investments.

The Board of the Company is independent from the board of
the abovementioned entity and is accountable to the Company’s
shareholders. Coupled with the diligence of its Independent Non-
executive Directors whose views carry significant weight in the
Board'’s decisions, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of this entity.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF BERFENPERHIETFREZR
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO REZRAXE

So far as the Directors and chief executives of the Company are aware, MARARESZNRESTHRAEMA  R-Z
as at 31 December 2021, the following companies and persons had ——%+-A=+—H > TR aEALTR
interests or short positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the AR &M% &, s8I (5 # B R IR (B 5
Company that were required to be disclosed to the Company under N HRE A1) EXVERE2 M F 30 B IE X AR AR
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or that were RABIREZ RN AR ABRB(EEFERLYE
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under &) E3361&RTEBELR AR METHE

Section 336 of the SFO: RMAZERSIOAE
Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of the REBZ-—F+ZA=+—-HREAF
Company as at 31 December 2021 B MEERDZHFE

Approximate
Number of percentage of the
shares/underlying total number of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held issued shares  Note(s)
BERSG, HIEEBRITRG

RERERE B4 HEARGHE HBEZEIEL(%) Hfat

Shougang Group Interests of controlled corporations 2,425,736,972 60.88% 1

EEEIE] RIEEE 2 s

Shougang Holding Interests of controlled corporations 2,025,736,972 50.84% 1

EEEE RIEEE 2 s

Wheeling Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 2,025,736,972 50.84% 1
("Wheeling”) BEnEAA

Shougang Fund Interests of controlled corporations 400,000,000 10.04% 1

EFE%A REEE 2 S

Jingxi Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 400,000,000 10.04% 1
("Jingxi Holdings") EmEEA

ROERAR AR (TREZER])

Yip Wang Ngai Interests of controlled corporations 213,600,000 5.36% 2

LN < SPEAE 2 s

HY Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 213,600,000 5.36% 2
("HY Holdings") BEnEA A

Mak Siu Hang Viola Interests of controlled corporations 254,413,000 6.38% 3

2 ZEEEE R
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
(Continued)

Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2021 (Continued)

RiE = 5 K if{NﬁlJé FIREZR
REZNKR

R-E-_—F+=-A=1+t—HREXAQTF
1R13, 1B RE IR 2 I & (1)

Approximate
Number of percentage of the

shares/underlying total number of

Name of shareholder Capacity

BRREHE g

shares held issued shares  Note(s)
BER®G HIEEBITRG
HEROEE #ABZEI(%) k23

VMS Investment Group Limited  Beneficial owner

("VMS Investment”) BEmEA A
RIAREEEFR AT

(TRBILED
Notes:

1. Shougang Group indicated in its disclosure form dated 30 July 2019 (being the
latest disclosure form filed up to 31 December 2021) that as at 30 July 20189,
its interest in the Company was held by Shougang Holding and Shougang Fund
respectively, wholly owned subsidiaries of Shougang Group. Shougang Holding’s
interest in the Company was the Shares held by Wheeling, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Shougang Holding, and Shougang Fund’s interest in the Company
was the Shares held by Jingxi Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang
Fund.

2. Mr. Yip Wang Ngai indicated in his disclosure form dated 1 August 2019 (being
the latest disclosure form filed up to 31 December 2021) that as at 30 July 2019,
his interest in the Company was held by HY Holdings which in turn was held as
to 80% by Mr. Yip Wang Ngai.

3. Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola indicated in her disclosure form dated 20 January 2021
(being the latest disclosure form filed up to 31 December 2021) that as at 20
January 2021, her interest in the Company was held by VMS Investment which
in turn was held as to 100% by Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company has not
been notified of any other person (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares and/or underlying shares of the Company who was required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or who was recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below,
at no time during the year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
and the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) or
any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or any
contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, there is a
sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as required under
the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 7 June 2002, the shareholders of the Company adopted the 2002
Scheme which would be valid for a period of ten years. On 25 May 2012,
the shareholders of the Company approved the termination of the 2002
Scheme (to the effect that no further share option shall be granted by
the Company under the 2002 Scheme) and the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”), which became effective on 29
May 2012 upon the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting
its approval to the listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares of the
Company which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options to be
granted under the 2012 Scheme.

A summary of the principal terms of the 2012 Scheme is set out below:

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to replace the 2002 Scheme and
to continue to enable the Company to grant share options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest (the
“Invested Entities”). The 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective for
the period of ten years commencing on 25 May 2012, being the date on
which the 2012 Scheme was conditionally adopted by the shareholders
of the Company, and ending on 25 May 2022 (both dates inclusive).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer full-
time or part-time employees, executives, officers or directors (including
executive and non-executive directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any of the Invested Entities, and any advisors, consultants,
agents, suppliers, customers and distributors, who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or
any of its subsidiaries and/or any of the Invested Entities, share options to
subscribe for shares of the Company.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its
adoption. The maximum number of shares of the Company available
for issue upon exercise of all share options which may be granted under
the 2012 Scheme is 115,219,246, representing approximately 2.89%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report. The total number of shares of the Company issued and which
may fall to be issued upon the exercise of share options to be granted
under the 2012 Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
to each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of this 1% limit shall
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company, or to any of their associates, which would result in
the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of the offer of such grant (a) representing
in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of the grant; and (b) having an aggregate value of in excess of
HK$5,000,000 (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of each grant), such further grant of options shall be subject to the issue
of a circular by the Company and shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting on a poll at which the grantee, his/her associates and all core
connected persons of the Company shall abstain from voting in favour
of the resolution concerning the grant of such options, and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
A connected person of the Company will be permitted to vote against
the grant only if his intention to do so has been stated in the circular.
Any grant of share options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, is required to
be approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors (excluding the
Independent Non-executive Director who is the grantee of the options).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cContinued)

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no share
option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted
under the 2012 Scheme. There is no requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised but the
Board is empowered to impose at its discretion any such minimum period
at the time of offer of any share options.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
guotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of share
options; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of share options;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer of share options. Each of the grantees is required to pay HK$1.00
as a consideration for his acceptance of the grant of share options in
accordance with the 2012 Scheme. The offer of share options must be
accepted within 30 days from the date of the offer.

Share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme do not confer rights
on the holders to dividends or to vote at general meetings.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its
adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2021, there was no share
option outstanding under the 2012 Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Schemes” herein,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into
by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (whether on the Stock
Exchange or otherwise) during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately HK$549,598,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, revenue from sales of goods and rendering
of services to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 82% of the total revenue from sales of goods and
rendering of services for the year and revenue from sales of goods and
rendering of services to the largest customer included therein amounted
to approximately 35%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 99% of the total cost of sales for the year
and cost of sales from the largest supplier included therein amounted
to approximately 67%. None of the Directors of the Company or any of
their close associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of issued shares
of the Company) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.
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EEeHRLsE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BEEXS

The following connected transactions were entered during the year and M NARAFERAREEZAFHRTIZRAHE
up to the date of this annual report: AN AERS

On 26 December 2018, Eldex Investment Company Limited (“Eldex
Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a joint venture agreement with Chengdu Shougang Silk Road
Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd.* (FX#B & iM4AEEARER EE S
BBR A F], “Shougang Silk Road”) and Chengdu Wuhou Capital
Investment Management Group Co., Ltd.* (K&REERKEE
BEBEBRAT], “Wuhou Capital”) to establish a joint venture,
namely Shoucheng Finance Lease (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.* (HK L&
FAE (A E) AR A R], “Shoucheng Finance Lease”) to engage in
the business of finance lease and related services. Shougang Silk
Road is a corporate fund 50% owned by Shougang Fund which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group. Wuhou Capital
and its ultimate owners are independent of and not connected
with the Company and its connected persons. Shoucheng Finance
Lease would have a registered capital of RMB100,000,000, which
has been determined by the parties after arm’s length negotiations
by reference to its expected capital requirement. According to
the joint venture agreement, the amount of registered capital
to be contributed by Eldex Investment, Shougang Silk Road and
Wuhou Capital were RMB25,000,000, RMB40,000,000 and
RMB35,000,000 respectively. In view of the changes in market
environment and policies, Shoucheng Finance Lease has been
unable to carry out business, therefore, the board of directors
of Shoucheng Finance Lease intends to liquidate Shoucheng
Finance Lease. For the details of the transaction, please refer to
announcement of the Company dated 26 December 2018.

On 27 October 2021, Long Cosmos Investment Limited (an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), as tenant entered into
the Tenancy Agreement with Billioncorp Development Limited
(an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang Holding (Hong
Kong) Limited), as landlord, in relation to the renewal of the lease
of the Premises at a monthly rent of HK$195,500, exclusive of rates
and management fees (Long Cosmos Investment Limited will enjoy
a rent-free period of one month during the thirteenth month of the
term), for a term of three years commencing on 1 November 2021
and ending on 31 October 2024. For the details of the transaction
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 27
October 2021.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgHEE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The following continuing connected transactions were recorded during
the year and up to the date of this annual report:

As the 2015 Master Facilities Agreement between the Company
and the Shougang Group in relation to the provision by the
Group of the 2015 facilities to the Shougang Group expired on
18 June 2018, the Company entered into another master facilities
agreement with Shougang Group on 8 June 2018 (the “2018
Master Facility Agreement”).

Pursuant to the 2018 Master Facility Agreement, the Company has
agreed to provide, or procure its subsidiaries to provide facilities by
way of entrusted payment, finance lease and/or credit financing
to Shougang Group and/or its subsidiaries in an amount of up to
RMB5,000,000,000 for a term of 3 years from 8 June 2018, the
date on which the condition precedent for the 2018 Master Facility
Agreement was fulfilled and the 2018 Master Facility Agreement
became effective (the “2018 Facilities”).

For the 2018 Facilities provide by way of entrusted payment,
finance lease and/or credit financing, the interest rate payable by
the borrower or the lessee shall be at a rate equal to the cost of
lending of the Company (or its subsidiaries) plus 1% to 5%, subject
to a cap of 10%.

The annual cap of the 2018 Facilities for each of the financial years
ending 31 December 2018 to 2024 shall be RMB1,500,000,000
each year, taken into account of the expected level of financing
required by Shougang Group and its subsidiaries based on
published public information on Shougang Group, and the amount
of financing that the Group is expected to be able to secure to
finance the 2018 Facilities, for each relevant year.

The entering into of the 2018 Master Facility Agreement will enable
the Group to earn a net interest income under the 2018 Master
Facility Agreement.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

As at the date of the 2018 Master Facility Agreement, Shougang
Group was the holding company of Shougang Holding which
in turn was a controlling shareholder and connected person of
the Company. As such, the transactions contemplated under the
2018 Master Facility Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for
the transactions contemplated under the 2018 Master Facility
Agreement (including the annual caps) exceed 5%, the 2018
Master Facility Agreement constituted a non-exempt continuing
connected transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The 2018 Master Facility Agreement was subject to approval by the
independent shareholders of the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The 2018 Master Facility Agreement and the annual caps
thereunder were approved, confirmed and ratified by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 7 December 2018.

As the 2018 Master Facilities Agreement between the Company
and the Shougang Group in relation to the provision by the
Group of the 2018 facilities to the Shougang Group expired on
18 June 2021, the Company entered into another master facilities
agreement with Shougang Group on 2 August 2021 (the “2021
Master Facilities Agreement”).

Pursuant to the 2021 Master Facilities Agreement, the Company
has agreed to provide, or procure its subsidiaries to provide facilities
by way of entrusted payment, finance lease and/or credit financing
to Shougang Group and/or its subsidiaries in an amount of up
to RMB2,000,000,000 for a term of 3 years from 2 August 2021
(the date on which the condition precedent for the 2021 Master
Facilities Agreement was fulfilled) and the 2021 Master Facilities
Agreement became effective (the “2021 Facilities”).

For the 2021 Facilities provide by way of entrusted payment,
finance lease and/or credit financing, the interest rate payable by
the borrower or the lessee shall be at a rate equal to the cost of
lending of the Company (or its subsidiaries) plus 1% to 5%, subject
to a cap of 10%.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgHEE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The annual cap of the 2021 Facilities for each of the financial years
ending 31 December 2021 to 2027 shall be RMB1,500,000,000
each year, taken into account of the expected level of financing
required by Shougang Group and its subsidiaries based on
published public information on Shougang Group, and the amount
of financing that the Group is expected to be able to secure to
finance the 2021 Facilities, for each relevant year.

The entering into of the 2021 Master Facilities Agreement will
enable the Group to earn a net interest income under the 2021
Master Facilities Agreement.

As at the date of the 2021 Master Facilities Agreement, Shougang
Group was the holding company of Shougang Holding which in
turn was a controlling shareholder and connected person of the
Company. As such, the transactions contemplated under the 2021
Master Facilities Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for
the transactions contemplated under the 2021 Master Facilities
Agreement (including the annual caps) exceed 5%, the 2021
Master Facilities Agreement constituted a non-exempt continuing
connected transaction for the Company under Listing Rules.

The 2021 Master Facilities Agreement was subject to approval by
the independent shareholders of the Company in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The 2021 Master Facilities Agreement and the annual caps
thereunder were approved, confirmed and ratified by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 25 January 2022.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 8 June 2018, 20 November
2018 and 23 August 2021 and in the circular of the Company
dated 20 November 2018 and 24 December 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 31 October
2018, the Company entered into the following transactions on 31
October 2018:

(A)  Long Cosmos Investment Limited (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), as tenant, entered into a tenancy
agreement with Billioncorp Development Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Holding) as landlord,
in relation to the lease of office premise at a monthly rent
of HK$195,500, exclusive of rates and management fees,
for the three years ending 31 October 2021 (the “Tenancy
Agreement”). The payment under the Tenancy Agreement
should be made in advance on the first day of each and
every calendar month without deduction. The annual cap
of the tenancy agreement for each of the years ending 31
October 2019, 31 October 2020, and 31 October 2021
is HK$2,541,500, HK$2,346,000 and HK$2,346,000
respectively, taken into account of the payment commitment
of monthly rent under the tenancy agreement. The Tenancy
Agreement was expired on 31 October 2021.

(B) the Company entered into a master services agreement with
Shougang Holding for a term of three years commencing
from 31 October 2018 to 31 October 2021 (the “Master
Services Agreement”). Under which, Shougang Holding
would provide to the Company advisory services covering
areas in business and operational, investment management
and financial management disciplines, treasury and risk
management, key managerial recruitment and retention as
well as other operating practices and procedures, accounting,
corporate advisory, legal, company secretarial and other
services. The Company agreed to reimburse the actual costs
of the services incurred by Shougang Holding by reference
to a specified percentage of the remuneration of members
of the staff providing the Services to the Company, with
annual payment capped at HK$2,880,000 each of the three
years ending 31 October 2019, 31 October 2020, and 31
October 2021. The annual caps were determined after taken
the maximum payment obligation under the Master Services
Agreement.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgHEE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

On 27 October 2021, the Company entered into the Master
Services Agreement with Shougang Holding, pursuant to which
Shougang Holding has agreed to provide to the Company with
business and operational advisory, investment management and
financial management disciplines, treasury and risk management,
key managerial recruitment and retention as well as other
operating practices and procedures, accounting, corporate advisory,
legal, company secretarial and other services (the “Services").
The Company has agreed to reimburse the actual costs of the
Services incurred by Shougang Holding by reference to a specified
percentage of the remuneration of the Shougang Holding staff
who provides the Services to the Company. Such percentage would
be determined by reference to the percentage of the time currently
estimated to be devoted by the individual staff members to the
affairs of the Company against the amount of time they would
otherwise devote to the affairs of Shougang Holding as full time
employees of Shougang Holding. The annual cap of the Master
Services Agreement for each of the year ending 31 October 2022,
31 October 2023 and 31 October 2024 is HK$2.88 million.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios as defined
under the Listing Rules in respect of the Master Services Agreement
is more than 0.1% but are all less than 5%, the Master Services
Agreement is subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements, but is exempt from the circular
and the Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 31 October 2018 and 27 October 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

On 23 August 2021, Beijing Jingxi Supple Chain, an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Master
Purchase Agreement with Beijing Shougang under which Beijing
Jingxi Supply Chain agreed to purchase steel products from Beijing
Shougang for a term of three financial years ending 31 December
2023 (the “Master Purchase Agreement”).

The annual cap of the Master Purchase Agreement for each
of the financial year ending 31 December 2021 to 2023 is
RMB1,000,000,000.

Beijing Shougang is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang
Group, which is in turn the holding company of Shougang Holding,
the controlling Shareholder of the Company. Beijing Shougang is
hence a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the Master Purchase Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the annual
transaction amount under the Master Purchase Agreement are
expected to be more than 5%, the transactions contemplated
under the Master Purchase Agreement are subject to the
announcement, reporting and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Master Purchase Agreement and the annual caps thereunder
were approved, confirmed and ratified by the Independent
Shareholders of the Company on 25 January 2022.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 23 August 2021 and the circular dated 24
December 2021.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgHEE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
nonexecutive directors of the Company must review the continuing
connected transactions carried out under the 2018 Master Facility
Agreement, the 2021 Master Facilities Agreement, the Master Services
Agreement and the Master Purchase Agreement during the year and
confirm whether the transactions thereunder had been entered into:

0) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have provided a letter to (the Board of
Directors of the Company) confirming the matters stated in Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected transactions
under the 2018 Master Facility Agreement, the 2021 Master Facilities
Agreement, the Master Services Agreement and the Master Purchase
Agreement took place during the year.

The transactions regarding revenue under sale and leaseback
arrangements set out in note 34(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and the outstanding balance arising from sale and leaseback
business set out in note 34(c) to the consolidated financial statements
were connected transactions which had been approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company.

The transactions regarding consultancy services expenses, management
fee expenses and lease payments set out in note 34(b) to the
consolidated financial statements were connected transactions which
were exempt from circular and shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

The transactions set out in notes 34(d) and 34(e) to the consolidated
financial statements under the heading of “Related Party Transactions”
did not constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

As far as the transactions set out in note 34(a) to the consolidated
financial statements are concerned, the remuneration of the Directors
as determined pursuant to the service contracts entered into between
the Directors and the Group were connected transactions which were
exempt from any disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to the facility letter entered into between SCG Finance
Corporation Limited (“SCG Finance”) and Chong Hing Bank Limited
(“CHB") on 23 December 2020 in relation to a revolving term loan
facility of HK$70,000,000 (the “Facility”), Shougang Group and
Shougang Holding shall remain as the largest shareholder (directly
or indirectly) of the Company during the term of the Facility. Breach
of such condition will constitute an event of default upon which
CHB may cancel the Facility or terminate the Facility and demand
all outstanding amount under the Facility be immediately due and
payable. The availability of the Facility is subject to CHB's periodic
review and overriding right of repayment on demand. The Facility
was terminated on 23 December 2021, and the Facility was repaid
in full on that day.

Pursuant to the facility letter (the “Facility Letter”) entered into
between the Company and Chong Hing Bank Limited on 28
December 2021 in relation to a one-year revolving term loan facility
in the amount of HK$80,000,000 (the “RTL Facility”), the Company
has undertaken to, throughout the term of the RTL Facility, procure
that Shougang Group and Shougang Holding shall remain as the
largest single shareholder (directly or indirectly) of the Company
and maintain control over the management of the Company. It
shall be an event of default under the Facility Letter if the Company
breaches such undertakings and upon the occurrence of which, the
Bank shall be entitled to (i) cancel the RTL Facility or terminate the
RTL Facility; and (ii) demand all outstanding amount under the RTL
Facility be immediately due and payable.

Pursuant to the facility letter (the “2022 Facility Letter”) entered
into between the Company and Chong Hing Bank Limited on
22 March 2022 in relation to a revolving term loan facility in the
amount of HK70,000,000 (the “2022 RTL Facility”) which will
expire on 23 December 2022, the Company has undertaken
to, throughout the term of the 2022 RTL Facility, procure that
Shougang Group and Shougang Holding shall remain as the largest
single shareholder (directly or indirectly) of the Company and
maintain control over the management of the Company. It shall be
an event of default under the 2022 Facility Letter if the Company
breaches such undertakings and upon the occurrence of which, the
Bank shall be entitled to (i) cancel the 2022 RTL Facility or terminate
the 2022 RTL Facility; and (ii) demand all outstanding amount
under the 2022 RTL Facility be immediately due and payable.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgHEE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to 51 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 52
to 99 of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire
at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

1. The special resolution of the Proposed Change of Company Name
to change the English name of the Company from “Shougang
Concord Grand (Group) Limited” to “Capital Industrial Financial
Services Group Limited” and adopt the Chinese name " & EE %
SRR EEABR AT for identification purpose only, has been
approved by Shareholders on the special general meeting held on
25 January 2022.

2. The Company and Chong Hing Bank Limited entered into a facility
letter in relation to a revolving term loan facility in the amount
of HK70,000,000 on 22 March 2022, which will expire on 23
December 2022.

By Order of the Board
Xu Liang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

i
pwec

To the Shareholders of Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

The consolidated financial statements of Shougang Concord Grand
(Group) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 130 to 270, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
20271,

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBAMBES

BASIS FOR OPINION (Continued)

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Provision for expected credit losses of receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements

o Impairment assessments of goodwill

Key Audit Matter
HRETTER

EENERm@m

RIEBB G ASEMNCEX S AER
STRD AT IR - BN BES
C WEBTTRARNEMEXBERE -

FAREFISEE
AREFTZEERERMNERHE  RA
HAMRAGEMBRERNEAR/EENS
He BEEHRERMBABRE AV B ®
KRHABRRETREN - HMATEHE
LEFREEENER -

BMESEFPENNAREFTFTES AN
™

o EROEZHETZEKFAEZAMRE
EEEERE

o EEREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RITHEFT N EERRETSE

Provision for expected credit losses of receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements

EXROIHZHE N2 BRI IBZ BRI EE R

Refer to Notes 3.1(b), Note 4(a) and Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
FHLHEG AP BEREMF3.1(0) « BizF4@) RHIEE20 °

Our procedures performed in relation to the expected credit
loss allowance of receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements included:

AITHERBELHIA T 2 BEFIR 2 ARMEEEERER

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of the receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements amounted to
approximately HK$1,350,372,000, net of provision for e
expected credit loss (“ECL") of HK$25,757,000, which
represented approximately 58.1% of the total assets

of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2021,

a net provision for expected credit losses of receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements of HK$2,751,000

has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. o
RZBZ—F+ZA=+—H ERELHELTHETZE

W FRIE A5 8R40 R P #51,350,372,000t (IR B A B /65
B(EBREEEEDEEE®25,757,000T) - & &S
EBEENS81% HE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—AL
FE - BEROEZHETRKFIBAZEHEEEEES
JRERABHE2,751,000TE RS 2 E RS R NTER ©
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Understood, evaluated and validated on a sample
basis the key controls over the expected credit loss
assessment of the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements, including the reversal of brought forward
provisions, and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors;

M TR A RBEEESEOARHIET 2 B
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETBR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBMBES

FRETEIE @)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RITHEFT N EERRETSEE

Provision for expected credit losses of receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements (Continued)

EREIHZ R N2 BN IBZ BRI E BEE R A i ()

The Group assesses whether the credit risk of receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements have increased
significantly since their initial recognition and applies a
three-stage impairment model to calculate the ECL. The
Group measured expected credit losses based on an
individual assessment of each borrower, after considering
their credit profile with reference to credit ratings assigned
by independent credit-rating agencies.

ERENHEROMELTHIET 2 BERENEERR S
NI ERLARZ S KM@ - I%%_%&ﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁ
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ*%%o EEERERRERANEELS
B ERZERANERR G - 2REEETREE
Wit EEXR KRG ERAGEEE -

The measurement model of expected credit losses involves
significant management judgement and assumptions,
primarily including the following:
RHEEEBENT SRE K E KK E IR A B R RE
FERFELAT @A :

(1)  Criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk, or a default or
impairment loss was incurred;

() EEEERRETBEEMNSE SR REEEANE
%

(2) Economic indicators for forward-looking
measurements;

(2) BB EMLEZRAE

(3)  The estimated future cash flows for credit impaired
receivables in stage 3.

() F=EREZLEEERENEREFENMGETAREKR
BIME ©

In addition, the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements and provisions are significant to the
consolidated financial statements and the estimates of ECL
involved a significant level of judgement and assumptions
made by management and all these are subject to certain
level of estimation uncertainty and inherent risk of
subjectivity. In view of these reasons, we identified this as
a key audit matter.

BEoh - BREIA L EEIA T 2 R FRIA KRB B EiR S B i
BEMEBEA > MEEEAMGATAREEBERAE
HERIZER A RRE - EFHEERREX —ER
BRI HREEMEETEEARATE - ENZEFR
B - AT ULIEB R R R ERT FE -

o Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
expected credit loss allowance of receivables under sale
and leaseback arrangements to assess the effectiveness
of management's estimation process;

o FHMABEHHEEREMETHIET ZEBYRIEZ BEE
%%E%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%'%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁw
B

o Evaluated the significant judgements and assumptions
involved in the expected credit losses measurement
model, including management’s assessment of
credit risk of each borrower, considering their credit
profiles, historical repayment patterns, publicly
available information of these borrowers, reports from
independent credit rating agencies and forward looking
factors such as market conditions and economic growth,
and assessed the reasonableness of the judgements and
assumptions adopted, including the reversal made;

s REEZRBRANGCELEE BEEFRKX  ZEHE
RARRFAGEER  BUGEETREEBENRSE AR
miGRR REEIEREREEERE - FFAEEHREE
EBERAEEISENERAGNER  BEEEEY

BEERAGERRAOFTE - KT PTER A 2B & fRR
MA@& BIEPTER M

o Evaluated the appropriateness of management
assessment of the ECL on credit impaired receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements in stage 3,
taking into account the legal possession status and
other uncertainties on realising the relevant underlying
assets; and

s RERZZBAMMNBIRABAEREENHEMTHE
EMRER  FEERBERTEENAE=ERNE
BEEZHIE T2 BB EEERERYGRIENTARE
EEBE R

° Performed recalculation of the ECL model to assess the
mathematical accuracy.

e ([FHREHEEEBEEREN: - DAGT il & filr 2= A
M

Based on our procedures performed, the significant
judgements and assumptions adopted by management in the
ECL assessment were supportable by available evidence.
BERTARROET  BEEENGBEREEEERTR
MEVE R A R BRRADEIIRAEBE S -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBAMBES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETBIR

FRETSEIE @)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RITHETT N EERRETSEE

Impairment assessments of goodwill

BB B E A

Refer to Notes 2.10 and Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
FELHERE P BREWNE2.10%MIFE18 -

As at 31 December 2021, the goodwill of the Group
amounted to HK$61,497,000 related to business
acquisitions in the previous years.
RZBZ—F+-_HA=+—H  EBEEEIZBERBYK
61,497,0007C * EBEFEEBWEER -

The Group's goodwill was allocated to three subsidiaries,
being the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.
EEE B REZ=MBAR(B BEEEHNAE
EIRANME AR EETEENRNTRERBR) -

The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least annually.
In carrying out the goodwill impairment assessments,
management determines the recoverable amount of
each group of cash-generating units (“CGUs") by using
value-in-use calculation (“VIU"). In assessing the VIU,
management applied the discounted cash flow method.
These assessments involved significant management
judgement and estimates in the discounted cash flow
calculation and the application of assumptions in the
models, including interest rate spread and gross profit
margin for the coming five years, terminal growth rates
and discount rates used in the projection periods. Based
on the management'’s assessment, there is no impairment
required for goodwill for the current year.
EEEELFFRRA —REERE - HETEHERER
i EREEACREREBE(EREBEDEESAR
ReEFEMN((REEFEMLDNAKOEHE - BEE
RARRBRELTEEREE - ZFHEFRAR
BenBstEPEREEAHE R REREFRA
BR BRAKREFOHNRZEREMNE - BAHRFMAA
RIPBERERPRE - RBEBEONGE  AFEHE
BAELRE -
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Our procedures performed in relation to management'’s
goodwill impairment assessment include:

AITRERERERERNGRRONEF B

o Obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of goodwill
impairment assessment and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors;

s EREREHBBRENGETHAIBEZERNERE
FFo WEEZERMGEA T EEENEE REMREERR
EEHKFHEERRERMAEEE AR

o Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
goodwill impairment to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

o FMEBEHEEBRENGONER KM EERRE
EFHEFF B RE

o Evaluated and tested, on a sample basis, the key
controls over the goodwill impairment assessment;

o HEGHE MRBREEHREREMEHNEEESEE

o Evaluated the composition of the Group’s future cash
flow forecasts in developing the VIU calculations of each
group of CGUs, and the process by which they were
drawn up, including comparing the forecasts to the
latest budgets approved by management;

e Mt EEXEHRBENREELBELZERAEBENE
MEBTZ B (BREEEERIOMECRERTEA
L8 2 KRR RETEAES

o Involved our internal valuation experts to assess the
discount rates applied by management in the valuation;

s RBHEERZ2EFHBEEETHERMEANUER
SE( .

S



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETBR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBMBES

FRETEIE @)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RITHEFT N EERRETSEE

Impairment assessments of goodwill (Continued)

BB B EF S ()

We focused on this area due to the size of goodwill
balance and the impairment assessment involved
significant judgement and estimates made by
management.

HREEESRZRER  BREMEIREEBELNE
AHER R AEE - B AT SR RIS -

o Challenged management'’s key assumptions in the
assessment including the interest rate spread and gross
profit margin for the coming five years in the forecasts,
the terminal growth rates, by making reference to the
historical performance and future business plans of each
group of CGUs and benchmarking the assumptions
used with our market analysis;

s KBEXEFREELBMNBERE IARKER
BIARKITHOTISOMAAMRERONELR  ERER
BRIMEMAEIERRE  BEBARRAFOMNEEZR
EME - RIPEREK

o Evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed by
management around the interest rate spread and gross
profit margin for the coming five years, terminal growth
rates and discount rates to ascertain that the extent
and likelihood of such changes have been appropriately
considered; and

o GIAEEEURKRAFHNMNEEZERENE  KILER
EREBRETIHBUESN - NEEXZSESHOR
HEEZRZRERARENL : &

o Checked the mathematical accuracy of management’s
value-in-use calculations.

s RYUEEEBEREEAENHEERE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
judgements and estimates made by management in relation
to the impairment assessment were supportable by available
evidence.

IRIBFTEREEVIR T - ANTTRIRE IR E LR E Rl 2 HIET & 4
AR BXE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

m Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited Annual Report 2021

HfER
EARESAHLMELAT - BfE0R
EERANNAERES  BETREGAMBR
REBR MO EBAHRE -

BPEEEMBEHRENBERL NRERME
B BT TEZFEMESRRTMER
HYEERE KM ©

=11

BAERMYREVBHREROET  RANE
TEMEEMES  EIHBES ZEHEM
EERBEGAEMBBRIBMAERIER
TARTEROBEAGEERNEBXEUTFE
EXBRRAMBER

ERBACHITHIE  MRRMABSEM
EEFEEABRRL  RMAFEREZE
B fELE  RPRBEEMARS -

EERAEERGSYBRRAX
ENEE

BERAERABARBBEEGHMAGRM
HCE BB HRE LR KB B (R ARG #
BEEMTENGEEMBEHRE  XHEARRD
RESEMBRROBE N FEBRRGFK
B8 5R 1 28 B A B K 8E RR BRI AT 7R O 19 B 2

=

ERBEEMBHRERE  EFRAME &
SESELENEN  YEERBRATHE
HSERERHNER  URERFELE
REFER BRIFEEAENK EEEBR
HIFLIEE - HHBEEMBEROBRIE

REEBERAREE BESEMNYBE®REE
A



AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBMBES
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
BURHBMBESE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF ZE MBS IR AERN
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EFuwm

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, WEAIEEERBNZIEH - RIFEFTIILLE
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit BEHAHGARERRNEBEAZAEE -
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and  MEMKEIEET E1E - K FIEZHEIIRE S
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our fHAlELLEZIE @ BRIDEAREB T AF AR
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about ~ FEELFIH @ KEFTHER MBI T - R
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that AEBHAERMREFERESFTEEXRNE
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse T4 BHBBELN AR - RIFRAE T E
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh — FE¥R&EFBRZEE ©

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent HEBIZHMBENBTHEEABAAR

auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho. KK °
PricewaterhouseCoopers EOERKESTHMBBAR
Certified Public Accountants b E -7

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022 B —E-__F=A=+HH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEETHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E—ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE BT T BT
Revenue under sale and leaseback EREBELTEIET 2 W
arrangements 5 91,104 78,691
Revenue from supply chain management REHEHEETIEER K
business 5 1,803,045 4,634
Consultancy service income and property ABHARBWARYMERE
leasing income A 5 3,854 2,053
Total revenue el 1,898,003 85,378
Cost of sale and leaseback arrangements and & 14 B8 Z2F Iz 54 s AR 15
consultancy services BN 8 (12,373) (11,618)
Cost of supply chain management business i #8 & I8 S # R 8 (1,780,530) =
Gross profit EF 105,100 73,760
Other income HAtn g A 6 5,998 12,388
Other gains, net Hfth Wz 7 F 58 7 77 13,734
Selling expenses HER 8 (2,780) (1,420)
Administrative expenses THHEX 8 (60,938) (68,079)
Changes in fair value of investment KEWMEZ AR EEY
properties 17 5,244 (1,000)
Changes in fair value of financial assets FRBEREREAABEREY
at fair value through profit or loss CREEZANEEY 24 1,492 272
(Provision for)/reversal of provision for JE R SR IR (E (B ), R
impairment of receivables, net B[] 558 10 (2,927) 5,916
Operating profit KRR 51,266 35,571
Finance costs BB AR 11 (3,530) (1,676)
Share of profit of associates FEMREE R E) R F 19 2,328 1,258
Profit before income tax RR PR 18 86 B & F 50,064 35,153
Income tax expense TS i X 12 (7,571) (16,959)
Profit for the year FERF 42,493 18,194
Profit is attributable to: BTN AT REEER
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIESZEDN 27,294 5,980
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR = 15,199 12,214
42,493 18,194

m Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited Annual Report 2021



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REREHBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z—T - —&F+-A=+—RHItEFEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B BET T BT
Profit for the year FERF 42,493 18,194
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Htt2mE(EH8) s
Items that have been/may be reclassified to ~ EAE FIFEE T D 4HE
profit or loss: Bwm A -
Changes in fair value of debt instruments FREM R E W ESTE
at fair value through other AREREBEZEBIA
comprehensive income ZAREEH) (397) (173)
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of & B E A 2 E W IR
debt instrument at fair value through "’*LTEJEEEZFFIE
other comprehensive income Freg it =185 12 (29)
Revaluation of buildings upon transfer mE Jﬂ%& S A
from property, plant and equipment and CREEEERE
right-of-use assets to investment REMEREHETF
properties 56,353 -
Income tax relating to the revaluation of EHAEMEFZAEN
buildings (14,079) =
Items that will not be reclassified to ST EE P EE B
profit or loss: EH -
Currency translation differences EHmE R 40,069 92,120
Share of currency translation difference of ~ FE{F F#EZED 16
associates for using equity method BE N NREEnEERE 2,236 5,273
Other comprehensive income for FEHMEHEKE
the year 84,194 97,191
Total comprehensive income for the year F£E2H NG EE 126,687 115,385
Total comprehensive income R ATEMZEKE
attributable to: e
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIES PN 92,680 83,230
Non-controlling interests SRR HE = 34,007 32,155
126,687 115,385
Earnings per share BRER
Basic and diluted (HK cent) R R EEE (B AL) 14 0.68 0.15
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be it 47 & % [ W 2% 3% & B2 BB B Bt 7% — 6 B
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. A e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI &

At 31 December 2021 R =T —-—F+-HA=+—8H

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
=2 BETT BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BWERFZE 15 1,516 22,371
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 16,807 39,543
Investment properties KEYE 17 144,498 23,700
Intangible assets B EE 18 67,107 68,364
Interests in an associate R ERE 2 19 92,930 91,362
Receivables under sale and leaseback EREMELHETZ
arrangements FEU B 20 319,749 771,927
Debt instrument at fair value through FRHEM KRR
other comprehensive income AR ERBZERIAE 21 - 15,886
Financial assets at fair value through FRBRERRANERE
profit or loss ZERMEE 24 4,339 2,847
Prepayments T RRIR 22 4,226 4,201
Deferred tax assets FEEFRIEE E 29 2,661 2,399
Total non-currentassets FnmEER® 653833 1,042,600
Current assets REBEE
Receivables under sale and leaseback EREHELHETZ
arrangements FEU A 20 1,030,623 608,522
Inventories FE 23 3,542 =
Trade and bill receivables FEWE SRR EREE 22 31,489 36,132
Prepayments, deposits and other TERIE - Be REM
receivables FEM R IE 22 219,013 155,401
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EMEIER 25 387,095 318,818
Total currentassets nBEES® 1671762 1118873
Total assets EEMALE 2,325,595 2,161,473
EQUITY R
Share capital [N 30 39,846 39,846
Reserves f## 1,497,811 1,405,791
Capital and reserves attributable to ERARRFEABREREAR
owners of the Company & 1,537,657 1,445,637
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR R = 352,722 318,352
Total equity AR 1,890,379 1,763,989

m Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited Annual Report 2021



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

maMBRR R

At 31 December 2021 R - -—¥+-H=+—8H

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BETT BT
LIABILITIES 8f&
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Secured bank borrowings BRI TER 28 94,319 146,995
Security deposits received ERFERS 20 - 5,952
Lease liabilities HEB®E 16 13,686 =
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIEEE 29 10,850 -
Total non-current liabilities FnmamesE 00 118855 152,947
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hib N RIERETER 26 68,502 62,014
Current tax liabilities BENEATIE B (& 31,425 31,346
Secured bank borrowings BRI TER 28 196,603 143,308
Security deposits received ERFZRS 20 6,098 5,952
Contract liabilities BHIEE 10,115 =
Lease liabilities HEBE 16 3,618 1,917
Total current liabilities noeames 316361 244,537
Towlliabilites ames 216 397,434
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 2,325,595 2,161,473

The consolidated financial statements on pages 130 to 270 were ZEZBEWR_-_T-_—_F=A-+HBHMEF130
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and were signed  ZE270B Z#r&a M HmE - WH MIEEREK

on its behalf. BE o
Xu Liang Tian Gang
%he FH Rl
Director Director
= =

a7 A B 25 K 0 3% LB Y B R — B B

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBBR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

2T

—F+=A=+—AILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AR AER
Property  Investment  Contributed Share Non-
Share Share  revaluation  revaluation surplus Translation options Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reseve  eamings  Sub-fotal interests Total
ke RORE NEEMEE REERGE S\RHEE AEGE BRERE ABEE  REEA N SRR it
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETr ESTr  B%Tn  B4Tn BMTn A%t BBt B¥Tn BMTn B%Tr BBt BETn
(Note (al) (Note ()
(Bt(a) ()
Balance at 1 January 2020 “3C35-f-BEH 39846 766,818 7392 587 115,576 (78,199) 686 44,580 457863 1,355,149 388349 1743498
Comprehensive income 2ENRE
Profit for the year FRRA - - - - = = = = 5980 5980 12214 18194
Other comprehensive income/(loss) K2R/ (58)
Currenqy translation difference ERpEZE = = = = = 73,498 = = = 73498 18622 9,120
Share of curtengy ranslation difference ~ BAFAEEES £
of anassociate by using equitymethod ~ BERFIEMAEEEE = = = = = 3954 = = = 3,954 1319 5273
Changesin fai value of debt instruments ~ BEEM2ANEEL L E
atfair value through other REZEBIEZDR
comprehensive income 29 = = = (173) = = = = = (173) = (173)
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of HEEBAMIANER
debt instrument at fai value through MEREERIAR
other comprehensive income BRTEDE = = = (29 = = = = = 29 = (29
Other comprehensive incomef(oss) for FERM2ERE/ (BB
the year - - - (202) - 7145 - - - 71250 19,941 97,191
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for ~ £E2 W/ (58) 4%
the year - - - (202) - 71452 - - 5,980 83,230 32,155 115,385
Transactions with owners in their EEEAGIEEEASH)
capacity as owners EHRS
Dividend paid Bfik& = = = = = = = = = = (4329) (4329)
Lapse of share options BRELH = = = = = = (686) = 636 = = =
Acquisition shares from non-controling ~~ REFEHEREZKE
interests ity - - - - - - - 7258 - 7,258 (16,005) (8,747)
Capital reduction in a subsidiary —RHBAARE - - - - - - - - - - (31818 (81818
Subtotel hat - - - - - - 68 7258 68 7258 (10215)  (948%4)
Balance at 31 December 2020 ZRZBE+ZAZT-
b ] 39846 766,818 7392 385 115,576 (747) - 51,838 464529 1,445,637 31835 1,763,989
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

2T

RERERER

—F+=A=+—HILEE

ARAHEARE
Property  Investment ~ Contributed Share Non-
Share Share  revaluation  revaluation surplus ~ Translation option Other  Retained controlling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings  Sub-total  interests Total
R RGEE NEERHE REERRE HABHEE AEEE BRERE HERE  REEA Mt EERER a3t
HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BMTn  EkTr BBTn BBTR BETR BMTn AMTn BMTan BETR EETn ERTn BMTR
(Note (a) (Note (c))
(H(a) (G0
Balance at 1 January 2021 “3--5-f-B&H 39,846 766,818 1392 385 115,576 (747) - 51,838 464529 1,445,637 31835 1,763,989
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Proit forthe year FEEA - - - - - - - S U U 1519 42493
Other comprehensive income/(loss) K2R/ (58)
Currenqy translation difference RRREEE - - - - - 32379 - - - 33719 7,690 40,069
Share of currenqy translation difference  BREREREHE-H
of an associate by using equity method ~ BHEDAISEBHEEE - - - - - 1677 - - - 1677 559 2236
Changes n fair value of debtinstrument BB 2ARKRAAE
atfair value through other REZEBIEZ AR
comprehensive income 2 - - - (397) - - - - - (397) - (397)
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of HEEBEMIANER
debt instrument at fai value through MEREEHRIA
other comprehensive income KEAZERE - - - 1 - - - - - 12 - 12
Revaluation of buldings upon transfer B%  HRERRENR
from property, plant and equipment PREEEEAERE
and right-of-use assets to investment nEREfET
properties - - 42,274 - - - - - - 4,274 14,079 56,353
Income tax relating to the revaluation of BB EfHET ZHI5H
buildings - - (10,559) - - - - - - (10,559) (3,520) (14,079)
Other comprehensive incomel(oss) for FER2ERE/ (BB
the year - - 31115 (385) - 34,056 - - - 65,386 18,808 84,194
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for ~ £E2EhKE / (F8) 4%
the year - - 31115 (385) - 34,056 - - 27,29 92,680 34,007 126,687
Transactions with owners in their EEEAGEEEASH)
capacity as owners EHRS
Capital injection in a subsidiary R-RNBAREE - - - - - - - (660) - (660) 363 (297)
Subtotal Nt - - - - - - - (660) - (660) 363 (297)
Balance at 31 December 2021 Z3Z-%+Zh=+-A
] 39846 766,818 39,107 - 115,576 33,309 - 51178 491,823 1,537,657 352,722 1,890,379

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREBER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E—ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Notes:

(a)

The contributed surplus reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 1991 over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange, and the transfer and utilisation as mentioned in Note (b) below.

A special resolution was passed by shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 6 June 2008 and completed thereafter
that an amount of approximately HK$425,259,000 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company as at 31 December 2007 be reduced,
with the credit arising there being transferred to the contributed surplus reserve
of the Company. Upon the said transfer becoming effective, an amount of
approximately HK$311,818,000 standing to the credit of the contributed surplus
reserve of the Company has been applied to eliminate the accumulated losses
of the Company as at 31 December 2007. The Company has complied with
the requirements of section 46(2) of The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended). Details of which were set out in the circular of the Company dated 9
May 2008.

The other reserve mainly represents a deemed capital contribution. The disposal
of 40.78% equity interest in Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited was
completed on 8 January 2019. The difference between the carrying amount
of non-current asset classified as held for sale and the sales proceeds, which
amounted to HK$44,580,000 has been recognised in equity as a deemed capital
contribution from the intermediate holding company upon completion of the
Disposal with Shougang Holding. The property revaluation reserve amounted to
HK$18,673,000 and translation reserve amounted to HK$17,670,000 derived
from share of associate’s reserves in prior periods was reclassified to retained
earnings upon disposal.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERE

e R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ =T =-—F+=-A=1+—HILLFE

2021 2020
—B=-—F —E_THF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T BT T BT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRERE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations rEmE,/ (FRA)BRE 33 73,584 (128,774)
Interest paid EfTHE (12,747) (11,371)
Income tax paid ERPTEH (11,881) (6,198)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBHE(FA)
operating activities BE&FA 48,956 (146,343)
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHRERE
Proceeds from redemption of term deposits  f& [l #1124 HAFR #2318 = & A
with initial term over three months KT B E RIS IR - 1,888,015
Dividends received from an associate B U —EEE AT 2R B 2,996 1,863
Interest received B U F 8 3,821 10,636
Net cash flow from dissolution of an R —EBE ARz
associate Heme F58 - 1,667
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BB KR
and equipment and intangible asset NEREE 2SR - 1,882
Payments for acquisition of shares of W iE — R B A Rk 2
a subsidiary INE:N (297) (8,747)
Payments for term deposits with initial #45 BARR 8 38 = 16 A &Y
term over three months TEBFERZ AR - (1,793,545)
Proceeds on disposal of debt instruments HEEREMEER R
at fair value through other AREREBEZEBIA
comprehensive income T8 508 15,957 15,506
Payments for property, plant and L/ E YN G L= AN
equipment (1,179) (46)
Payments for intangible asset B EEZ NN (34) -
Net cash generated from investing REZBHHMBRESFR
activities 21,264 117,231
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E—ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Cash flow from financing activities RETHRERE
Repayment of bank borrowings BEERITER (141,674) (470,963)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIE TR RIR 148,382 283,683
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEEE (2,567) (2,346)
Payments to non-controlling interests [ FE 22 A 2 A K (4,162) (81,818)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBfAREFE @ (271,444)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReERBLEEEBEHE M
cash equivalents (ORi2) 358 70,199 (300,556)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ RFEHZIRE NIREHE
the year B H 318,818 607,782
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREH) & (1,922) 11,592
Cash and cash equivalents at end of RELKZRERBSEE
the year EHAH 387,095 318,818

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its controlling shareholder,
which is defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange as a person which is entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power at general
meetings of an issuer, is Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited
("Shougang Holding”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, and the ultimate holding company of Shougang
Holding is Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a company established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its significant subsidiaries are provision of sale and
leaseback arrangements services, property leasing services, supply
chain management business, assets management and consultancy
services.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB")
as the primary economic environment in which the Company’s
subsidiaries operate is the Mainland China (for the purpose of this
report, “Mainland China” refers to the mainland of the PRC and
does not include Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income and investment
properties which are carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group'’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) New standards, amendments and interpretations
adopted by the Group
The following amendments to standards apply for the
first time to financial reporting period commencing on
or after 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 16

AR BWELERFE 1698, 2185]

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

BBV BwEERFG - A GFAERIFE 395 -
BERMIEMELERETH - BAEMBIHREER
FAT RERBVEWREERE 1658 21EF]

The amendments listed above did not have any material
impact on the amounts recognised in prior period and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.
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Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations (b)

not yet adopted

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEX

mEMBHREME

DT BB E @)

2.1 mEBEZE @)

s RERANEYFT 2R - BRT R
=g

Effective for
accounting

periods beginning
on or after

RT5 Bz AEEZ
Rz BB ENR

Amendments to Accounting
Guideline 5

ERECIEETPACH)

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BB EMEERFEIR 2 1BE]
Amendments to HKAS 16

BB GFERAFE 165 2 E5]
Amendments to HKAS 37

BB G ERFEI7RZERT

Annual Improvements
FRBGE

Amendments to HKAS 8
BB EAESR 2187
Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
B 5k

EREEAF IR RES
ERIMER LR 257 2 EFT

HKFRS 17

BRP B HREERE 175

Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations
HEZERIEH 2B EE

Update reference to the Conceptual
Framework

BB SIER 2 R

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

ME - BERRE - (EREREAZ
FriS 5018

Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling
a Contract

BIRAH - BITARZKAR

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020 Cycle

EEMBHRELEN T \FE
:%:EE@%Z&E&L

Definition of Accounting Estimates

GrtART 2 EE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

23
b=[113

2 BRR BB

Insurance Contract

{% /V\ = ’i’j

2021 EEHRE

1 January 2022

—E-__F—HA—H
1 January 2022

—E__%—H—H
1 January 2022

—ET-=—%—H—H
1 January 2022

—F-_—_F—A—H
1 January 2022

—_E__%—HA—H
1 January 2023
—F-=%—A—H
1 January 2023
—=%—H—H

1 January 2023
—=%—H—H

éﬁﬁ(%@)ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁm



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments and interpretations (b) MARERMWFHER - EFTR
not yet adopted (Continued) 2 ()
Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RT5BEHsHHEE
Rz E T BB EN
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current 1 January 2023
or Non-current
BEAGTHERE 1R 2 EFT BESBEARDIIERD —E==F—A—H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — 1 January 2023

BEBREESH
Amendments to HKAS 12
BEGTERF 125 2185]

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

&SR RS R 1057 &
ARG EAF 285 2 1&5]

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December

Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

MBHRERNEY -ERAHEERER —T-_=F—H—H
BEGRZEHERZ LR

Deferred Tax relate to Assets and Liabilities 1 January 2023
arising from a Single Transaction

RE-QZELZEENBERBZ —E-=F—H—H
RIERIA

Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Ventures

REEERHBENFXEERARZMELZ FEX
BEHERIRA

AEEVERFRKETE
BMHELFNR_-_T_—F+
“A=t-HHREHRHER

2021 reporting period and have not been early adopt HAEMB TG LR - S5

by the Group. The Group is still assessing what the

EAERT 2B - NEED

impact of the new standards, interpretations and SR - 2B R

amendments will be in the period of initial application.

CEINSEPN SRR S i

It is not yet in a position to state whether these new VR R o REBIKRERT

standards, interpretations and amendments will have a
significant impact on the Group'’s results of operations

and financial position.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity where the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(0

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit
or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity-accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.10.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified or permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired

business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

contingent consideration arrangements; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the

subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable

assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

. consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired

entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity

interest in the acquired entity.

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a

bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m
POLICIES (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Managing Director of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$. The
functional currency of the Company is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate
to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
net basis within administrative expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain
or loss and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equity instruments classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BABMBEREME
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m
POLICIES (continued)
(iii) Group companies (iii) EEQF

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

N BB AR EINNEER
PEBIINER(ZEXBHR
BEEBREBREWIRCHR
WEE)NEERIBMRR -
HAREATHARABREREINE
o

o EBUMBRRKRZEIINE
= R BB TR % M R
LR B Y YT B i

e  BEENERNEXTS
R EXRBE (FRIE
ZERWIFEERR S
EHBTEXREYE
MEEMEA - AIEZ
BRT - XN BERXR
ZAPBRE) &

s FAREMELMERZE
B EL A 2 T Y B

7 ©

RREGEERER  BES
SNE BT EFER A K
ERZEREZHHERB 2
ERrEMERTAEL Y
EXEERNEMEEKER
R - R EBIEHRE
BAKKREFE M2 E
fERE - HEELEZRE
MoBERD  EREERE
mZ—H#D e

RIKRBEINEBMELENRE
BRAARERAE  BRIESE
SNEBNEERAR WK
WhERBZS -

201 ERE EENS(EEAERAT m



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m

POLICIES (continued)

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m
POLICIES (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the
case of leasehold improvements and certain leased plant and
equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of terms of

the lease of the land or 50 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of terms of

the lease or 5 years

Motor vehicles 4 years
Furniture, fitting and 3 to 10 years
equipments

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Investment properties, principally the residential property
units, are held for long-term rental yields and are not
occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they are
carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are presented
in profit or loss as part of consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RERE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m
POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Goodwill (i) B/E

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, which is not larger than an
operating segment.

(i) Software platform
The acquired software platform is stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost over their estimated lives of
5 years.

Goodwill that has an indefinite useful life is not subject to
amortisation and is tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

0]

(i)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains, net together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains, net. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains, net and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains, net in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement (Continued)

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments at amortised cost and at FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m
POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting
but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
They are generally due for settlement within 30 to 90 days
and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The group holds the trade receivables with
the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, calculated on the first-in-first-out basis, comprises
costs of purchases including the purchase price and other
directly attributable costs. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable estimated variable selling
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m
POLICIES (continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement FaRERERZZVH  BHeak
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on HeZBEEEREFHERE LM
hand and deposits held at call with financial institutions. HREBATTR -

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. TmR DR RER ©

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new BITHRND B EL ZIEER AR
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from 2= MBI VB P15 3038 2 HURL (B0 BR
the proceeds. FiIg) o

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s ERSRERARBEARAFRET
equity instruments, for example as the result of a share buy- BE(ERO@BEAEIMEE) 2
back plan, the consideration paid, including any directly HREEBEMNEEEEGE/KX
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is RANKRFAER)) BARRFRHAA
deducted from equity attributable to the owners of the EhERIEREGFRMHNBERER
Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or DT SHE BT BT o

reissued.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services ZENIE AR R FEERAIMA
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year FERHEZBmEKBRBHRZNE
which are unpaid. Other payables are presented as current B o BRIFH M B FRIBN IER S
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after HMie12@ A AR EER - TAIZ2
the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair PmmE B & - HtbERFRIEYH
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the BARERR - BEERERERFE
effective interest method. SERB ARG & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance
costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and
the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish
all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m

POLICIES (continued)

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m
POLICIES (continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the
property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Short-term obligations

Short-term employee benefits are recognition at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employee (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leaves) after deducting any amount already paid.

Pension obligation

The Group operates a defined contribution plans for
its employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions to publicly
or privately administrated pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating
to employee services in the current and prior periods.
The contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
PRC government, the subsidiaries in Mainland China
participate in local municipal government retirement
benefits schemes (the “Schemes”), whereby the
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees
to the Schemes to fund their retirement benefits. The
local municipal governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of those employees of
the subsidiaries in the PRC. Contributions under the
Schemes are charged to the consolidation statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

There were no forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in such contributions) to offset existing
contributions under the defined contribution schemes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m

POLICIES (continued)

(iii) Profit-sharing and bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

(iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is
within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of terminations benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present value.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount
rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price which is the
amount of consideration to which the Group is entitled to in
exchange for transferring promised services or goods to the
customer. The Group allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation based on the relative standalone
selling prices. Revenue for each performance obligation is
then recognised when the Group satisfies the performance
obligation by transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

(@) Revenue under sale and leaseback arrangements
The Group enters into sale and leaseback arrangements
with individual customers, in which, the Group acts
as buyer-lessor and the customers act as seller-lessee.
As the transfer of the asset does not qualify as a
sale in accordance with HKFRS 15, the transaction
is in substance a collateral financing and the Group
recognises a receivable from sale and leaseback
arrangements and related interest revenue is recognised
over the lease period using the effective interest rate
method.

(b) Property leasing income
Property leasing income from investment properties is
recognised on a straight line basis over the terms of the
respective leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(0

(d)

(e)

Consultancy service income

Consultancy service income is generated from advisory
services to the customers in relation to the financing
activities. The revenue is recognised either on a straight
line basis or at the point of performance obligation
have been satisfied base on the contract terms.

Supply chain management service income

Supply chain management service income is generated
from the provision of steel buying agency services in
the PRC. The revenue is recognised at the point of
performance obligation have been satisfied.

Revenue from trading of goods

The Group engages in trading of steel materials in the
PRC. Revenue is recognised at the point in time when
control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customers and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products.

2.24 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at FVPL
and FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit
or loss when the right to receive payment is established. This
applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits,
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of an investment. In this case, the dividend is recognised
in OCI if it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

o the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m
POLICIES (continued)

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for
these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the group under
residual value guarantees; and

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m
POLICIES (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate HENTEKAHEEME NN ET
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, ABEIR o B AR HEE &N E
which is generally the case for leases in the group, the (EEMHEE—RBEILERR - 8l
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate {7 AARE ARG & RF R - BIER
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the AR AT RO EIR IR R IR UG
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the O R KRG B ARGEGCRE
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with EEBEEUNEEMTEERNA
similar terms, security and conditions. SR FE o
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group RETEEZERFE  KEE
e where possible, uses recent third-party financing e EFREMEBERT - ERMER
received by the individual lessee as a starting point, EEASIESNE=T78
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since BRHERELHARURE
third party financing was received, and BRSE=TRENKREE

RHFES - &

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, e HEESHLEFERAE WF
country, currency and security. H-BR BEERER-

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the fist & 51| £ A8 A PI 335 8 3T BAgh & sk

individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) HEIE SRR R HE RN

which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the = BEMNFEREBSHEC - A

group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine SEERFERAZMNEERLBEE

the incremental borrowing rate. FERIG T -

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance HENRNE S REEK AR 2 BE

cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the O - BEKANER RN EER

lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of ek - BEUAS S HE B ERTED

interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each AR = — 3 -

period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the FAEEERKATE B8UT

following: #IA :

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability, o VRFTEHEARNSE

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement e MHEBHIZAZNAE
date less any lease incentives received, AEENFRERINHEE

A
e any initial direct costs, and o  AMFMEENRAE &
e restoration costs. o BIERAK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m
POLICIES (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its
land and buildings that are presented within property, plant
and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-
use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a
purchase option.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the statement of financial position
based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTHTHEHEEZE@m
POLICIES (continued)

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in WFBIMA R B EBEREFEZEAN
the change in fair value of FVPL. BEREBEsE&MEE - BlFt AERIE

RERAABRES AR ARD -

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost (other ERERF AT E MR HK AR
than sale and leaseback arrangements) and financial assets STENEREE( A EREEREDO
at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest method is M) MBEBEM 2K ERAD
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income. RERENESHBEENERAE
B AR R A E M A8 — &6
5 o
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest FEWABREESREENRER
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except HEAERFERGE - BEEERE
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. EERENSREERIN - HRH
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate EERENSREENRERNX
is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset FERMNZ & /A E R IR E SRR (0
(after deduction of the loss allowance). BRIBAEERIE)
3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREE
The Group’s financial instruments include debt instruments AEEzeRTEBESRAME
at FVOCI, receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements HEEZEANBERECEKIA -
and trade and bill receivables, other receivables and deposits, EREHELHEIA T 2 EYGRIA K E
term deposits with initial term over three months, cash and WESEFRREWER - HME
cash equivalents, secured bank borrowings, other payables, WA RIES - WA HAMR B3R = (&
security deposits received and other deposits received. The ANESRER RekBHEeFHEE
risks associated with these financial instruments include B - BEEARITER - AMERK
market risk (i.e. foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair H BRRBEREREWEMIZE
value interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and 2 HZEEMIAEHE I ARE
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are FE s E ke (BIAME R PR - IRE TR
set out below. The management manages and monitors these ERARENERR AR EAE
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented KRR  EERBREREBE SR
on a timely and effective manner. % o TXEHF| A FRIEZERR 2

R - EEEEEMERZER
B - DARELR KBS B RO REVE S
21T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Market risk

The normal operations and investments of
the Group are mainly in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, with revenue and expenditure
denominated in HK$ and RMB which are
primarily transacted using functional currencies
of the respective group entities. The Group is
exposed to the United States Dollars (“US$")
denominated cash and cash equivalents and
the debt instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”), HK$ are pegged against with
US$ under the Linked Exchange Rate System,
and therefore, the Group does not have any
significant foreign exchange risk in respect of
transactions or balances denominated in US$.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of market interest
rate on variable-rate receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, cash in banks, and
secured bank borrowings as disclosed. It is the
Group’s policy to keep majority of its receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements and bank
borrowings at floating rates of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRENE

3

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to variable rate receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements and bank
borrowings.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, the management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates had been
50 basis points (2020: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2021 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,784,000 (2020: pre-tax
profit would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,141,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRENE
3  FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UHEBREE@®
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THiEEESR(E)
The Group is exposed to equity price risk AEEBEREEMES R
through its investments in listed bonds and BRAFEHF 2K EME
equity securities. The management manages HRABKRERER - BB
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of BRBgFsEETRR

investments with different risks. The Group's
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments of entities operating in Hong Kong
which are quoted in stock exchanges in Hong
Kong. The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to other
price risk. Management closely monitors the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should that needs arise.

At 31 December 2021, if the prices of the
respective equity instruments at fair value through
profit or loss had been 10% (2020: 10%)
higher/lower, pre-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2021 would increase/decrease
by HK$434,000 (2020: pre-tax profit would
increase/decrease by HK$285,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

The Group’s exposure to other price risk for debt
instruments at FVOClI is not included in the above
analysis as the management considers that such
exposure is insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the cash at banks, debt
instrument at fair value through other comprehensive
income, term deposits with initial term over three
months, trade and bill receivables, deposits and other
receivables as well as credit exposure to receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management
has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group
would assess the credit quality of each potential
customer and define limits for each customer.
The Group also demands certain customers to
place security deposits and/or pledge assets with
the Group at the time the sale and leaseback
arrangements is entered into. The Group would
also review the repayment history of customers
payments for each customers with reference to
the repayment schedule from the date of sale
and leaseback and entrusted loan was initially
granted up to the reporting date to determine
the recoverability of receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements and entrusted loan
payment receivable. Furthermore, the Group
would assess and review the fair value of the
pledged assets continuously to ensure the value
of the relevant collateral could well cover the
borrowings granted to the customers and any
outstanding receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BABMBEREME
3  FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEREREE@m
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERBS(E)

The credit quality of the deposits and other
receivables has been assessed with reference to
historical information about the counterparties
default rates and financial position of the
counterparties. The Group considers that credit
risk associated with deposits and other receivables
is low with reference to historical information
about the counterparties default rates.

The Group applies expected credit loss (“ECL")
model for impairment assessment. The Group
considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis. Certain receivable with significant
credit risk have been credit impaired as at 31
December 2021 and 2020. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the year ended date with the
risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information, especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating
o external credit rating

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the counter party’s
ability to meet its obligation

o actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the same counter

party
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e %R E MR
3  FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UHEBREE@®
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B E bR E @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERBEE)
(i) Risk management (Continued) (i) REREEE)

e significant changes in the value of the s BEREMMNER
collateral supporting the obligation or in mBEXE=H
the quality of third-part guarantees or credit EREZHEE
enhancements ARBEERE

1t

e significant changes in the expected e HWIFHEHERER
performance and behaviour of the counter RITREEERX
party, including changes in the payment 2 REEHE
status of customers in the Group and NE PR ER
changes in the operating results of the KB T ¥ F 75

counter party.

ECL model for the receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, as summarised below:

The receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements that is not credit-impaired
on initial recognition is classified in “Stage
1" and has its credit risk continuously
monitored by the Group. The ECL is
measured on a 12-month basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

ECL model for the receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, as summarised below:
(Continued)

o If a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to “Stage 2" but is not
yet deemed to be credit-impaired. The ECL
is measured on lifetime basis.

. If the financial instrument is credit-impaired,
the financial instrument is then moved to
“Stage 3". The ECL is measured on lifetime
basis.

. In Stages 1 and 2, interest income is
calculated on the gross carrying amount
(without deducting the loss allowance). If a
financial asset subsequently becomes credit-
impaired (Stage 3), the Group is required
to calculate the interest income by applying
the effective interest method in subsequent
reporting periods to the amortised cost
of the financial asset (the gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) rather than
the gross carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HAEMBERENZE
3  FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HERMEE@®E
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B EEEEZE @)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERBEE)
(i) Risk management (Continued) (i) REREEE)

ECL model for the receivables under supply chain
management business, as summarised below:

o The receivables under supply chain
management business includes the
trade and bill receivables and the other
receivables in relation to the purchase cost
paid on behalf of the customers.

o The receivables that is not credit-impaired
on initial recognition is classified in “Stage
1" and has its credit risk continuously
monitored by the Group. The ECL is
measured on a 12-month basis.

o If a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to “Stage 2" but is not
yet deemed to be credit-impaired. The ECL
is measured on lifetime basis.

. If the financial instrument is credit-impaired,
the financial instrument is then moved to
“Stage 3". The ECL is measured on lifetime
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

B 75 B i ()
3.1 iR bR ZE @)
(b) EEEKH)

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

The impairment of the receivables under sale
and leaseback arrangements and supply chain
management business was provided based on the

(i)

b IR ()

EREHELHE R EE
B RTIA T 2 YR
BRI =Z&RIER K2

“three-stages” model by referring to the changes Z VIR RARSE
in credit quality since initial recognition. EE=Z B IRMER
1 o

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by
the Group in addressing the requirements of the
standard are discussed below:

)

Significant increase in credit risk (“SICR")

The Group considers the receivables to have
experienced a significant increase in credit
risk when backstop criteria have been met.
A backstop is applied and the receivables
considered to have experienced a significant
increase in credit risk if the borrower or
customer is past due on its contractual
payments.

Definition of default and credit-impaired
assets

AREEBEAZH
SR B HIN R R
SR T -

(1) EERBRAEE
mIEERR
W& hn )
REDREBEE
o AEERRZ
EUFENEER
B BB K& &
o e il 5 AR A K
BEPMEKNNRK
Ea AlER
BRESEHEK
REBEEREE
B2 A EE
o e

(2 EBHONDELERE
EREBENTE

The Group defines a financial instrument as EERAXIEP
in default, when the borrower or customers B & & 5} B BR
is more than 90 days past due on its #ERFRBO0R -
contractual payments or the counterparty is HEFHIEER
in the process of liquidation or insolvency. HHWES - K
EEBHeMmIA
EERAEN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Risk management (Continued)
The key judgements and assumptions adopted by
the Group in addressing the requirements of the
standard are discussed below: (Continued)

(3) Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs,
assumptions and estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month
or lifetime basis depending on whether
a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred since initial recognition or whether
an asset is considered to be credit-impaired.
The ECL are the discounted product of the
Probability of Default (“PD"), Exposure at
Default (“EAD") and Loss Given Default
("LGD").

(4)  Forward-looking information incorporated
in the ECL models

The calculation of ECL incorporates forward-
looking information. The forward-looking
factor included the market conditions
and economic growth. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and ECL for the receivable portfolio.
Judgement has been applied in this process
of determining the key economic variables
and their associated impact in the loss rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on term deposits with initial terms
over three months and bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

The Group only invests in debt securities with
low credit risk. The Group’s debt instruments
at FVOCI mainly comprise listed bonds that are
graded in the high credit rating and therefore are
considered to be low credit risk investments.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in Mainland
China, which accounted for 100% (2020: 100%)
of the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements, trade and bill receivables as well as
deposits and other receivables as at 31 December
2021.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
related parties accounted for 44% (2020: 50%)
of the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements as at 31 December 2021.
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B 75 B i ()

(b) EE=REREE

MR F I RBEREE
ARREETRERRT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREMEE

3

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021 as 36% (2020: 34%)
and 96% (2020: 98%) of the total receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements was
due from the Group’s largest sale and leaseback
customer and the five largest sale and leaseback
customers. The Group’s five largest sale and
leaseback customers are spread across diverse
industries such as manufacturing industries and
property development. Over 99% (2020: 99%) of
balance of the sale and leaseback customers have
good repayment history with no record of late
payment. For those sale and leaseback customers
with late payment, the management of the Group
has delegated a team to monitor the level of
exposure to ensure that follow up actions and/or
corrective actions and/or legal actions are taken
promptly to lower the risk exposure or to recover
the overdue balances. Furthermore, the Group
would negotiate with certain customers with
late payment by means of debt restructuring, to
recover the overdue debts by instalments.

For some receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements the Group may obtain security in
the form of guarantees, term deposits, deeds of
undertaking, pledged of land and building as well
as secured over the leased asset which can be
called upon if the counterparty is in default under
the terms of the agreement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group has four types of financial assets that
are subject to the ECL model:

. receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements;

. trade and bill receivables;

. debt investments carried at FVOCI; and

deposits and other receivables.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group regularly monitors the internal credit
rating based on available information at each
reporting date for its receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements and entrusted loan
payment receivables. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk
and ECL for receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements and entrusted loan payment
receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

3  FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UHEBREE@®
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B B = (@)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERBEE)

(iii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) £MEERE(E)
Receivables under sale and leaseback EROMELZHE T ZJE
arrangements (Continued) WA (48)

The Group writes off a receivable under sale EEAENETREROME
and leaseback arrangements when there is BERAEREENREB
information indicating that the sale and leaseback 3 % PR A B i e Y
borrower is in severe financial difficulty and there BRAT - flanE&EE
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the BRAEFRIEEA
sale and leaseback borrower has been placed WER i (AR F 2
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy HERE) AEEE
proceedings, whichever occurs earlier. HEREBHLHEET 2
FEWRIE M8 -
As at 31 December 2021 R-B-—-5+Z-A=
+—H
Gross  Impairment
carrying loss
12-month or Average amount allowance
Internal credit rating  lifetime ECL Stage loss rate 2021 2021
12EANEH “®B--F CZB--F
R EETR BHEEER &5 THBAE REAE RESERE
HK$'000 HK$"000
BETR BETR
A3 to Aaa 12-month ECL Stage 1 0.04% 568,500 (249)
A3%Aaa REAEREEER F—&
B3 to Baal 12-month ECL Stage 1 0.62% 772,413 (4,765)
B3%Baal REAERHEERR &
C3to Caal 12-month ECL Stage 1 5.35% 15,291 (818)
(3%Caal REABRBEEREE F—R
1,356,204 (5,832)
Credit impaired Stage 3 19,925 (19,925)
EERE E=/
1,376,129 (25,757)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME
3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBEREE@E
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued) 3.1 M EbsEE @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERBEE)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) £MEERE(E)
Receivables under sale and leaseback EREIELHET 2 &
arrangements (Continued) WA (48)

As at 31 December 2020 RZZTZFF+=—A=

+—H
Gross Impairment
carrying loss
12-month or Average amount allowance
Internal credit rating lifetime ECL Stage loss rate 2020 2020
12 A2 8 “E-TF —T-IZF
NEEEET R BEEEER &5 THERE FHAE REEERS
HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

A3 to Aaa 12-month ECL Stage 1 0.05% 691,760 (320)
A3ZAaa NEAEGEESR ER
B3 to Baal 12-month ECL Stage 1 0.30% 671,252 (2,017)
B3ZBaal NEAEHEESR £
C to Caal 12-month ECL Stage 1 3.16% 20,418 (644)
CZCaal REAEREEER EF—8
1,383,430 (2,981)
Credit impaired Stage 3 19,451 (19,451)
EERE F=
1,402,881 (22,432)
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and HE-ZE- k=%
2020, there was no movement between stage 1, —ZEF+-A=+—H
stage 2 and stage 3. IEFE F—H F=
REAEE = A 7 R
) o
During the year, there was a provision for FA - REZAER
impairment of receivables under sale and EBOHEZHETE
leaseback arrangements of HK$2,751,000 WRIEREREEE
(2020: reversal of impairment provision of 2,751,0000c(Z &= F
HK$5,887,000) recognised in profit or loss. F o BOREREEE

5,887,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RERE
3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREREE@m
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERBEE)

Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade and bills receivables.

Given the track record of regular repayment of
trade and bills receivables and good credit profiles
of customers, the directors are of the opinion
that the risk of default by these customers is
not significant, taking into account forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors.
Therefore, ECL rate of trade and bills receivables
amounted to HK$22,000 (2020: HK$Nil) was
recognised as at 31 December 2021. During the
year, impairment provision on trade and bills
receivables of HK$22,000 (2020: HK$Nil) were
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt instruments at FVOCI

All of the Group's debt investments at FVOCI
are considered to have low credit risk, and the
loss allowance recognised during the period
was therefore limited to 12-month expected
losses. Management consider “low credit risk”
for listed bonds to be an investment grade credit
rating with at least one major rating agency.
Other instruments are considered to be low
credit risk where they have a low risk of default
and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(o)

Credit risk (Continued)

Deposit and other receivables

Deposit and other receivables mainly include
purchase cost paid on behalf of customers
under supply chain management services in
which the Group was acting as an agent and
other receivables. Given the track record of
regular repayment and good credit profiles of
customers and counterparties, the directors are
of the opinion that the risk of default by these
customers and counterparties is not significant,
taking into account forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors. Therefore, ECL of
deposit and other receivables amounted to
HK$174,000 (2020: HK$Nil) was recognised as at
31 December 2021. During the year, impairment
provision on deposit and other receivables of
HK$172,000 (2020: HK$Nil) were recognised in
profit or loss.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents and credit facilities deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRENE
3  FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UHEBREE@®
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () ARBELEPSR(E)
The following table discloses the Group’s remaining TEREBEXNEEETESR
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BEZHTEHEEA - It
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the RIBHEAREBE R A # E K
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on BEemaGEsRFERAHAZ
the earliest dates on which the Group can be required KRB RERH - A5
to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment Mg @ TwRRITES A A %
on demand clause are included in the earliest time band BETOEERN BBEAR
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to EREBKZZBRITERY
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non- STAGRERHETEE o HMmIE
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed MEeMBEZIHRAR
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and BERNBEH - LXRBERN
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows BRASBRERE o WAL
are floating rates, the undiscounted amount is derived MERFEME - AIRELIR
from weighted average interest rate at the end of B RR RS H A R 2
reporting period. FEHFERFTE -
Weighted On demand Total
average orlessthan 3 months 1-5 undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate 3months  to 1 year years  cash flows amount
mE  BERER =f8A -£  REEES
THRE  FE=MEA BE-F B RESE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BT E¥TRn  B¥Tr  BETR  BETR
Non-derivative finance Ficeras
liabilities
Other payables EhfERE - 560 40,189 - 40,749 40,749
Security deposits REES 5.00 - 6,098 - 6,098 6,098
Lease liabilities HEAE 4.09 921 3,348 14,907 19,176 17,304
Secured bank borrowings BEARRTREN 429 112,416 91,710 98,365 302,491 290,922
As at 31 December 2021 R-B=-£
+ZRA=t-H 113,897 141,345 113,272 368,514 355,073
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRENE
3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBEREE@E
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued) 3.1 M EbsEE @
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () ARBELEPSR(E)
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  orlessthan 3 months 1=5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year years  cash flows amount
M BERER =f8A -5 REEHE
TRE  TR=MEA B F EIE RELE RAEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr  A%Tr BT BETr AT
Non-derivative finance FESREE
liabilities
Other payables AR 508 - 4,880 13,231 - 18,111 18,111
Security deposits RERS 5.00 = 5,952 6,250 12,202 11,904
Lease liabilities HEERE 432 586 1,369 - 1,955 1917
Secured bank borrowings BEARIER 436 95,904 55,942 156,132 307,978 290,303
As at 31 December 2020 i S <3
+-R=1+—-H 101,370 76,494 162,382 340,246 322,235

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
3 months” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aggregate
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted
to HK$85,315,000 and HK$78,170,000 respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the Directors believe that it is probable that the banks
will not exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that these
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHE W
3  FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEEEE@®
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B EEEE@®
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () ARBELEPSR(E)
The following table details the Group’s aggregate TRFINAEBRHBEERE
principal and interest cash outflows for bank FEER(ARERERE
borrowings (with a repayment on demand clause) P RITER AR E RFEIR
based on scheduled repayments. To the extent that SMEAE - WA ERED
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted ME - ARBRSHERRSE
amount is derived from weighted average interest rate HR A5 R 2 N T F K5t
at the end of reporting period. Ho
Weighted
average Total
interest ~ Lessthan 3 months 1-5 contractual Carrying
ratt 3months  to1year years  cash flows amount
il TR =fiA -£  gHRe
Sk =) 2-F ERE  RE4E REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  A%Tr BT BETr AT
Secured bank borrowings with HiEBREXEE
repayment on demand clause ~ {E5 2B &
BAER
As at 31 December 2021 R-B=-F
+ZA=t-H 2.57 81,793 2,242 3,055 87,090 85,315
As at 31 December 2020 RZZZTF
+-A=t-H 2.61 71,701 2,274 5,520 79,495 78,170

3.2 Capital risk management

32 EXERmERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders, to support the
Group'’s stability and growth, and to strengthen the Group'’s
financial management capability. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

The Directors review the capital structure regularly and
manage its capital structure to ensure an optimal capital
structure and shareholders’ returns, taking into consideration
the future capital requirements of the Group, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures and
projected strategic investment opportunities. The Directors
monitor capital mainly using net debt to total equity ratio and
current ratio. These ratios as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
were as follows:

REMB®/REMEE

B 75 B i ()

EEKFRAEERRESHFR
BHEERSRE  BHELRRH
M REHRBRRERE - EHRER
BARBREEEEARRE - U
RGEFRIPIE 2 BEARRE LR D
W BFTREBEHFREERE
BERRRPLRERES - K=
B_—HF_F_FTHFT_H=+
—HB - ZFLENT

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Total borrowings R 290,922 290,303
Total equity (Note (i) wa gz (T EEG)) 1,890,379 1,763,989
Gearing ratio (%) (Note (ii)) & B B L (%) (M EEGi) 15 16
Current assets MENE E 1,671,762 1,118,873
Current liabilities mENEE 316,361 244,537
Current ratio (%) BN E (%) 528 458

The Directors considered that the Group maintained healthy
capital as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the Group has
excess of current assets over current liabilities.

Notes:

(i) Total equity equals to all capital and reserves of the Group
including non-controlling interests.

(ii) Gearing ratio equals total interest bearing borrowings divided by
total equity and multiplied by 100%.

EERR ARAKEZRBEE
BaRBAE  AEER-_T=—
FR-F_FF+-_A=+—H#%
RBEER -

()  BESHEERAKERERA R
o BRI -

iy EEBBLERBENRTEEREE
B A4 IR LA100% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRENE

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

(i)

3 HBEREREE@m

33 AREME
(a) Financial assets and liabilities (a) EWMEERERE
Fair value hierarchy (i) 2AREZRE
This section explains the judgements and REERBRETELRE
estimates made in determining the fair values BMEFRANBEER
of the financial instruments that are recognised MtENE@MIANR
and measured at fair value in the consolidated Tt B AT YRR 2 B 12 £k
financial statements. To provide an indication e REAAREEA
about the reliability of the inputs used in BB ASIEN S
determining fair value, the Group has classified M AEBEKESH
its financial instruments into the three levels TESEREFTEAT
prescribed under the accounting standards. An RER =R - R
explanation of each level follows underneath the AR EBIN T RAR ©
table.
The Group's financial assets that are measured at RZZEZ—F+=A=
fair values at 31 December 2021: T—BAEENUARE
AECERBE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-& ] F=R @zt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT BYTRT  BMTR
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVPL BRBREERN
BEREZ SR
BE 4,339 - - 4,339
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME
3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBEREE@E
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 A2REME@
(a) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) EWMEEREE(R)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) 2REZEBEGE)
The Group's financial assets that are measured at RZEZEF+-A=
fair values at 31 December 2020: +—HAKEURRE
FIECEREBE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— E_H FE=M &t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BAETT AT  AEBTT  EETT

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVPL BBBERERAR
BERE &8/
BE 2,847 - - 2,847
Debt instrument at FVOC| BREMEE YR
BARBEREZ
BEHEIE 15,886 - - 15,886
18,733 - - 18,733
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 HE_ZT-—F+=A
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: =+T—HIEFEF—
Nil). T BoRRE=H
HAHEER (2 =F
FfE) o
The Group'’s policy is to recognise transfers into REEBERZERR
and out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end WEMRARERER
of the reporting period. Bl 2 2 E A i
4o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBREME
3  FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBEBREE@®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREME@E
(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) =MEEREFE(HE)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) 2AREZREGE

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments EF—H: FEMS

traded in active markets (such as (m2RHE
publicly traded debt, and equity B EB &K

securities) is based on quoted market KEH)E
prices at the end of the reporting ENESmT
period. The quoted market price BEMRARE
used for financial assets held by the Ry EHR

Group is the current bid price. These §) T 4% TR B
instruments are included in level 1. HIER o A&

EESEN-0k

B & EFT A

#) T 3% R B
B -%ETL

BRAE—
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments EoH WIERIER

that are not traded in an active MiEEBEW

market is determined using valuation ST A

techniques which maximise the use NRERA
of observable market data and rely HERE
as little as possible on entity-specific E o RE
estimates. If all significant inputs BRERNTHEE
required to fair value an instrument are FATEHE
observable, the instrument is included % 8% M
in level 2. FAlge Dk
BEBMNE
SEAHET o fid
FFTETIAR
REMHEE
NN
HigH R

BRI

AlzZz T A5

AFBE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for unlisted equity
instruments.

In relation with debt instruments at FVOCI
and financial assets at FVPL, the fair values are
determined by using quoted market prices. In
relation with equity instrument at FVOCI, the
fair value was determined by income approach.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used), as well as
the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

REMB®/REMEE

B 75 B i ()

(a) TRMEERERE(H)

F=HK: W—IEKZ
HE A A
R IEAR
BRI ERM
5K G
i BT
BRAE=
HoFELE™
A& T A AP
B UL ©

MBEBREMEEREIL
NABEREZEETIAE
MEBEBEEFREAAE
BEZEMEEMS -
ARERATSREE
TE o LB BEM I
HIRARERRIE 2 B
TEME @ 2AREHFAS
IWAEEETE - AEER
B FTEMRT RAB R
JAEH RS o FEHAR
ZIEFTINR &%

Al g sHEEHEET R
EHIMER o MZIA ST
BE 2B REERR
A%HM - BEEE
TN E B K 1 1 HAR A

7
e

AEEBY ERHEER
ERERR 2 AR ER
g - TRIRBBIM
BEZEEREERAR
BELERMERZMG
B REABE) 2
BR - URARERE
P~ ERE R R
(F—REFE=AUR
BERnEFERABE
ABRREDH)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(iii) Valuation inputs and relationship to fair
value (Continued)

Financial assets Fair value as at
SHEE DAE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

R-BE--§ i
+=R=+-H +-RA=1-8

B 7% B b B B @)
3.3 D2REME@®@
() 2RMEERSE@E
(i) FEBARBEREDAR

BH2ZBR(E
Relationship of
Fairvalue  Valuation technique  unobservable inputs
hierarchy  and key inputs to fair value
RERIR BEERR\UE

DRAERE TEEARE EAREZRE

Financial assets at FVPL Listed equity Listed equity
BREREEALBRE securities: securities:
LEREE - in Hong Kong: ~in Hong Kong:

HK$4,339,000 HK$2,847,000
ERRARES IikAES:
-REE ! -RNEE -
#%4,339,000 52,847,000

Debt instrument at FVOCI - Listed Bond:
BREMREREEAR =in Hong Kong:
ERE/EEIA HK$ 15,886,000
LS

-REE

7115,886,0007C

(b) Non-financial assets and liabilities
See Note 17 for disclosure of the investment properties
that are measured of fair value.
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Level 1 Quoted bid pricesinan  N/A
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BEMSMEEAE

Level 1 Quoted bid pricesinan  N/A

R active market TER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement
in applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The provision for expected credit losses of receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements is based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The impairment
loss recognised or reversed is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows with the consideration
of expected future credit loss of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group applies a three-stage impairment model to
calculate the expected credit losses and the impairment
model that involved significant judgement and assumption
from the management. In determining the credit risk stage
of each borrower, the Group takes into consideration
the credit profiles, historical repayment patterns, publicly
available information of these borrowers, reports from
international credit rating agencies and forward looking
factors such as market conditions and economic growth.
The Group measures expected credit losses based on
individual assessment of each borrower, after considering
their credit profile with reference to credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. Judgement is required
to determine whether a borrower experienced significant
increase in credit risk.

4

REMB®/REMEE

FESHEE R

RRGAMBREAF B EN R
BEE  REHITROSNERER -
BB E IV SR AR B 8 R
8 -

At KAV R AR - HNERBE
R HEMBEAR  BEATEEAREE
KU BEEERBERBERT  RRBEE
B2HRREMHZES -

EREMRZHAT 2 BUWFIARTE
HEEEERELDERARENE
(2 RIEMIBR RN ERRIEL - RE
BEERAREDEE BRI EREE R
TANBHAREEBRREER
HEEEAARESRRENESR
Fc

AEERA=EERERLAEHR
BHEEEE  BREELSRE
EEELMERAE M RF - £
ERERANEERBRRERE - &
SEZEEZEERANEESE
BEETRN - ZFERANRH
ARER  BEREEFEEENER
ARG S LR R FRTIE
HEE - AEBEZEBZERAN
EEER  EREERANERG
it 2REREEFREBNEE
ARt ERMERERE - A&H
ANEEBRANEERRESHE
E IR ONE 1R HI T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 FESIHESTRHAE @
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any AEESFAGNHERRESEM
impairment on an annual basis. For the years ended 31 BE - RNBE_E-_—FR_F_
December 2021 and 2020, the recoverable amount of cash- EF+_A=+—HIEFE ' Re
generating units (CGUs) was determined based on value-in- EEBM(REEESMDMATK
use calculations which require the use of assumptions. The SeEIREFEEFCRRZNER
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial BEFEET - ;TEEAERER
budgets approved by management covering a five-year BiEN D F RV BEENR SR
period. ETEA o
Details of impairment charge, key assumptions and impact of BWEER  FEREIRETEMEK
possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in Note 18. AREE T EFENME 181
B o
Significant judgements are required in determining the EEMGHRERTEEEEERH
provision for income tax. There are many transactions and B - TAREKBEFEEHEZRS
calculations for which the ultimate determination is uncertain Nt BEMHERET DA TN
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax MZFFEENRERBEREG AR
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that AR5 EZ%#%EH%%
were initially recorded, such difference will impact the income T’Eﬁﬁ?ﬂ)&mﬁﬁfﬁﬁ’lﬁﬁ S MR
tax and deferred income tax provision in the period in which FRiSHi s -

such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary BRETEREZHBLEBIBEEENE
differences and tax losses are recognised when management EFMBHEAEREEERRBANRE
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be AR sE AR S AT E) A E’Jﬁﬁ
available against which the temporary differences or tax e = SR ok IR S 1B R T DATERR ©
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation =R IIEE BN E /T@Jﬁﬁm
may be different. AIBEN[A] o

Information about the valuation of land and buildings and BT REFURREY A
investment properties is provided in Note 17. BRI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BABMBEREME
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 FESIHESTRHAE @

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Under supply chain management business segment, the
Group is engaged in provision of supply chain management
services and trading of goods by entering into (i) agency
contracts and (ii) sales contracts with customers, respectively.
In determining whether the Group is acting as a principal
or as an agent under supply chain management business
segment requires judgement and consideration of all relevant
facts and circumstances. The Group is acting as a principal
if it controls a promised good or service before transferring
that good or service to the customer and reports revenue on
the gross inflows of economic benefits. In evaluation of the
Group acting as a principal, the Group considers whether the
Group (i) is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to
provide the specified good or service; (ii) has inventory risk
before the specified good or service has been transferred to
a customer or after the transfer of control to the customer;
and (iii) has discretion in establishing the price for the
specified good or service. Conversely, the Group is an agent
when it does not control a promised good or service before
transferring that good or service to the customer and reports
revenue on the net inflows of economic benefits (that is, net
of the amounts collected on behalf of the principal).

Having considered the relevant facts and circumstances, the
Directors has determined that the Group is an agent for the
supply chain management services under agency contracts
and accordingly, the related revenue is reported on a net
basis.

The Directors has also determined that the Group is the
principal for the sales contract in which the Group are
the primary obligator to provide the promised goods to
customers, are subject to inventory risks before transferring
promised goods to customers and the Group has discretion
in in establishing the price for the promised goods. And
accordingly, the related revenue is presented on a gross basis.

EHEREEEXBHMLET » K
SESRBEBETFIIZ()RES
HMR(NHERL » NEHIRMHE M ERE
EEBERELREMmES EEEASE
EAEHEEEEEZBOEETRE
REZAMIKRBATER - AE
BRAEYEZRAAEHEBEEE NS
e WMAEEEREFER D A
SEma R AT R & m kRIS
2R - RIRNEBERIERTEAIT
EOREEBEMNEHERAZ®RK
@ B AKSERSIEREEA
TER  AEESZEAEERS
(VBLETTIR M35 E & m sk IR T 0 A
HAEBEXERME : (VERATS
BRIETERIRBAIKAZTFE
Brtlgrmyra Rk o Kii)
FHENBA/ETEMIREERE -
Rz - HMAREERZFER DA
o B mn SRS A R SR TS O
2R - AIAEERIERNRIEALT
REFAWRBBFIA) 2 MMz -

REBARBEERERR &
ERAKEEER/RRIEGNRTH
HrEREERBHLEA - B8R
W RE L2 R -

ERBHESNAKBERATFIE
HEAFERBEEIREME &R
EFPBREAREmATEEFER
et B REMIERE AEEMEBR
BRT  EERAEEBEERZE
HEAKWBETHEEA - Aitt - 4
PR S IR AR E RS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Managing Director, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of services provided. No operating segments identified by
the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

The Group is currently organised into four operating divisions: sale
and leaseback arrangements services, property leasing services,
assets management and consultancy services and supply chain
management business.

Sale and leaseback arrangements service is engaging in collateral
financing activities. Property leasing service is engaging in rental of
properties. Assets management and consultancy service is engaging
in provision of referral and corporate financial advisory services.

During the year, the Group renamed the supply chain management
services to supply chain management business and changed of
its identification of this segment. The Group extended its supply
chain management business to trading of goods. Since the trading
of goods is a new revenue stream for the year, no prior period
segment revenue information is restated for comparative purpose.

Segment results represent the profit or loss of each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, (loss)/gain on
disposal of debt instruments at FVOCI, reversal for impairment
losses in debt instruments at FVOCI, changes in fair value of
financial assets at FVPL, finance costs, and share of profit of
associates. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRENE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2EER @
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by THRREBREEDBRAZ WD
operating and reportable segments. Segment revenue reported Bl WREREEIN - LHL2ERZ D
above represents revenue generated from external customers. BRHEGRBINARS - RAFE RSB
There were no inter-segment sales in the current and prior years. TEEWES 2 FEAHEE o
Assets
Sale and management
leaseback Property and  Supply chain
arrangements leasing  consultancy management
services services services business Total
E&EH nE  EEEER e
ZHRG HER® RS EEER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
During the year ended BE=-%=- ﬂf
31 December 2021 +=B=+-
LEE
Revenue under sale and EREHTH
leaseback arrangements HT 2 W 91,104 - - - 91,104
Revenue from supply chain KRB {tEHEE R
management services R 2 Ynza - - - 14,772 14,772
Revenue from trading of BmE 5K
goods - - - 1,788,273 1,788,273
Property leasing income MEHRERA 712 733 - - 1,445
Consultancy service income A FRAKA - - 2,409 - 2,409
Segment revenue 7 Al Es 91,816 733 2,409 1,803,045 1,898,003
Segment results HEEE 67,501 796 (136) 8,525 76,686
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBREME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SHER@
Assets
Sale and management
leaseback Property and  Supply chain
arrangements leasing  consultancy management
services services services business Total
E&EHE mEx  BEEBER HrEsE
RS HERH 5 RS BT fmEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BETIT BETIT BT BT
During the yearended EHZE_ZT_EF
31 December 2020 TEEHET=E
LFE
Revenue under sale and EROHETH
leaseback arrangements AT 2z 78,691 = = = 78,691
Revenue from supply chain 2 & { & & & 3%
management services AR5 2 W - - - 4,634 4,634
Property leasing income MEBRERA - 339 - - 339
Consultancy service income  #& s ARTEUA = = 1,054 660 1,714
Segment revenue o b 78,691 339 1,054 5,294 85,378
Segment results DEELE 65,976 (970) (5,259) 2,431 62,178
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BETBREMH T
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZEER@
2021 2020
=B —-F —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT
Segment results DERELE 76,686 62,178
Unallocated RAE
Central administration costs AR A TR K AN (29,552) (29,648)
Changes in fair value of financial assets BREEREANERECZ SR
at FVPL BEZAREED 1,492 272
(Loss)/gain on disposal of debt instruments ~ H&EBEBEM 2 EREFIEA L EE
at FVOC| BrEBITAZ (BB, s (12) 29
Other income (Note) E U A (B5E) 1,055 2,711
Reversal for impairment losses in debt BREMEERERANEBREY
instruments at FVOCI BB TEZ RERERE 18 29
Finance costs B E A A (1,951) (1,676)
Share of profit of associates FE(RER & R F] 2% A 2,328 1,258
Profit before tax SR 5% AT A 50,064 35,153

Note: Unallocated other income represents interest income from debt
instruments at FVOCI, bank deposits held by investment holding
companies and government grant received from the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the Employment Support
Scheme.

st ROBEEMEAESBEMEEKRE

ARERBZEHFTAZFBWA &
BEEBRQRMAFRITERRBRIRMRB
XGHEaEARMNTREBRMFKERZ
BUF RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBREME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 2 EBE R ()
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by LT RIEEEHRAZHmDHEH 2
operating and reportable segments: rEBEERBEIN
2021 2020
S —EeEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Segment assets DEEE
Sale and leaseback arrangements services E1& BIHELBERE 1,699,823 1,576,469
Supply chain management business HEREIRFER 325,913 274,395
Property leasing services MM ER 38,784 24,718
Assets management and consultancy services & & 1 & & 58 RS 58,696 71,175
Total segment assets DEPE EMETE 2,123,216 1,946,757
Interests in an associate R—REEE R R 2 s 92,930 91,362
Debt instrument at FVOCI FEREMEEREZEALBEREZ
BEEIE - 15,886
Financial assets at FVPL BRBRREANERE LS/
BiE 4,339 2,847
Other unallocated assets HEMARD A EE 105,110 104,621
Consolidated assets REEE 2,325,595 2,161,473
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BET T
Segment liabilities PHEE
Sale and leaseback arrangements services E& DL BERS 292,669 292,052
Supply chain management business HERE R 42,003 19,223
Property leasing services YA E R 169 224
Assets management and consultancy services & & & 1 I X 780 IR 7S 673 1,395
Total segment liabilities DESEEEEE 335,514 312,894
Unallocated secured bank borrowings AOE SRR ITER 85,315 78,170
Other unallocated liabilities HEthRoBLBE 14,387 6,420
Consolidated liabilities meRE 435,216 397,484
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
interests in an associate, debt instrument at FVOCI, financial
assets at FVPL and other unallocated assets (including
primarily unallocated property, plant and equipment, cash
and cash equivalents and prepayments).

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated secured bank borrowings not for sale and
leaseback arrangements services and other unallocated
liabilities.

BAPBRERS
B E R @)
RERSBEERAIBIEHIRE

Vi

PMEEREANBETEZHBAEM - T
BRER-—HEBEAB2ED &
BEMEERSRAAEREZE
BIAR FEBEmRRAAERE
ZERMBEREMRDEEE(E
ZEERDEME - BEMEE -
ReMREEFEHRBEARBENR
) e

/

- FEAREHSETEEHIE T
BREIBERLEREREZARD
FEEHMRITERREMRDE R

&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2ER @
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-—-S+ZA=Z+—-HLFE
Assets
Sale and management
leaseback Property and Supply chain
arrangements leasing consultancy management
services services services business  Unallocated Total
EREE  WEHE EEEER 133
ZHRH P 4 8 P 7 EEEYR L st

HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
ARt BRIz BRTxn  BRTx BRTn  B%Tx

Additions to non-current assets  JERENEE 2 E

(Note) (Fis &) 1,142 3 - - 34 1,179
Depreciation of property, plant 1% B R R{E

and equipment il 294 289 175 102 454 1,314
Amortisation charge on intangible /& E# 45 R

asset - - - 2,927 - 2,927
Interest income from bank RITER - MR ER

deposits, term deposits with 8= A E
initial term over three months ~ FH KB BEM
and debt instruments at FVOCI ~ 2EUYEEIRAAE

REEBIAL
MEBA 1,884 - 177 893 867 3,821
Provision for impairment loss of ~ &&BIALHET
receivables under sale and BN FIB 2 RfE
leaseback arrangements, net EEEETE 2,751 - - - - 2,751

Provision for impairment loss FEWE ST R EK
of trade and bill receivables ZEOREMEK

and other receivables FEREEBRE - - - 194 - 194
Reversal of provision for FREMZEKS
impairment loss of debt BAREREL
instruments at FVOC| BRTEZAE
BRERRD - - - - 18 18
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZEER @
Other segment information (Continued) Hth 75 50 & B @)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-_ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE
Assets
Sale and management
leaseback Property and  Supply chain
arrangements leasing  consultancy  management
services services Services business  Unallocated Total
ERER  PEHE  EEEER fitpes
ZH R % AR BRER KA @t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ABTT ARTR  ABTT  B%Tr ARt ARTR

Additions to non-current assets  JEREIEE 21N

(Note) (Bt ) EY) - - = 14 46
Depreciation of property, plant 1% B RkR{E

and equipment ik 334 87 163 386 1,150 2,120
Amortisation charge on intangible &/ EEZEE R

asset - - - 2,956 - 2,956
Interest income from bank RITFH - NHRER

deposits, term deposits with HBB={HANTH
initial term over three months BHREREM
and debt instruments at FVOCI ~ 2EUGSIR AL

RE/EBIAL
MEKA 1,719 - 1433 5,869 1,615 10,636
Reversal of provision for EREHLHE T
impairment loss of receivables  JEMFIE 2 A fE
under sale and leaseback BiEAERnTE
arrangements, net 5,887 - - - - 5,887
Reversal of provision for FREMEPAKE
impairment loss of debt BAREREZ
instruments at FVOC| EBIRZAE
BREGERD - - - - 29 29
Note: Non-current assets exclude goodwill, interests in an associate, financial Mzt : ERBEETBERSE  RN—HEBRER
assets, deferred tax assets and right-of-use assets. Rz SRIEE  REMBBEEMN

REREERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information
The Group operates in two principal geographical areas —
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue from external customers by location of the
relevant subsidiary’s operations and information about its non-
current assets by location of assets are detailed below:

7 B E # E)
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EEDEFRDEECEMFRIAT ¢

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets (Note)
REMREF zWE TENE E ()
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--F —ZT-FTF B —T-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT BET T BT
Mainland China AR 1,896,703 84,756 117,318 19,702
Hong Kong BB 1,300 622 38,532 38,902
1,898,003 85,378 155,850 58,604

Note: Non-current assets exclude goodwill, interests in an associate, financial
assets, deferred tax assets and right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRENE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZEER @
Information about major customers ERFXEEFZEH
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total LWTAREEFERBEZ®RS I - ¥
revenue of the Group under reportable segments for the REEBWEERNM0% A LTS ¢
corresponding years are as follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —E-TF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Sale and leaseback arrangements services: EREBIHALHERE
Customer A EPA (Note) (Fff=E) 32,434
Customer B %P8 (Note) (Fff=E) 15,965
Customer C BFC (Note) (P &E) 11,796
Customer D EFD (Note) (P &E) 8,638
Supply chain management business: HPEEE IR R -
Customer E =PE 668,488 =
Customer F EPF 291,429 =
Customer G EPG 266,857 -
Customer H EPH 256,015 -
Note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total MizE - MHEEEEESREEAKRER10%
revenue of the Group. LA
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities BAEEEHNEEZNE
As at 31 December 2021, contract liabilities amounted to RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—H 6488
HK$10,115,000 (2020: HK$NiIl). There was no revenue recognised BEAAE10,115,000 L (ZE-ZF : &
that was included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning WZIL) - MERFIFAGHNAGEH
of the year. B B BRI AR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHE W
6 OTHER INCOME 6 HitlgA
2021 2020
—B-—-F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Interest income FIE WA
- bank deposits —RITERK 3,184 4,053
— term deposits with initial term over -~ VIR HARR A A = & A &Y
three months TE HATF 5K - 5,603
— debt instruments at FVOC| - EREMEPERSEALE
Fa¥E 2 B T A 637 980
3,821 10,636
Government grant (Note) BT s b (BT ) 1,883 1,309
Others Ht 294 443
5,998 12,388
Note: During the year, no government grant was received from the Government Mz : GR - TERBRIRIEEIGEHEES
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the Employment FATRERMFERBFHE(ZE
Support Scheme (2020: HK$918,000). The remaining subsidies and — T4 B%918,0007T) - E# A
awards of HK$1,883,000 (2020: HK$391,000) was received from the B Bl A B HE P ARG 2 R K SR
relevant authorities in the PRC which is an incentive payment to the 75#5 1,883,000t (=TT F : B
Group whereby no future related cost is required or expected to be made. 391,0007) * RRAAEEZ 2 A E
© - BABRTEF TSR E & ERRK
MRAR AR ©
7 OTHER GAINS, NET 7 HitWz= 38
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Loss)/gain on disposal of debt instruments  HEZEBEME2ERIZIZALE
at FVOCI BREZEBIAZ (BB, Wa (12) 29
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWZE - BB RS HE A RER
equipment and intangible asset, net BECEBEETE (1 (10)
Recovery of receivables under sale and W e SERIMEHE B & R H L BEE T
leaseback arrangements previously written- 2 JEURFIE
off 90 13,715
77 13,734
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME
EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BRMEESZHAX
2021 2020
—B-—-F —ETHF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cost of goods sold $HE P Ak AR 1,778,325 =
Cost of sale and leaseback arrangements E1E BT BER AN 12,373 11,618
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S5 R 2 B
— Audit services - BT RS 1,200 1,200
- Non-audit services - JEEET R 940 710
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) 1B B & F sz (15E9) 38,453 40,888
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BB kR EITE (FizE15)
equipment (Note 15) 1,314 2,120
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 16) f# & EITE (Fi:E16) 3,799 3,403
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18) & E#$5 (Fi7E18) 2,927 2,956
Legal and professional fees FERREEER 3,337 3,339
Consultancy and management fees charged & 842 B U ER B0 75 7 K B 7 28
by Shougang Holding (Note 34) (Ff5E34) 2,880 2,880
Short term lease expenses HHHEER 602 821
Insurance RB 465 497
Annual listing fees FELTER 579 554
Building and management fees BFERERE 475 476
Printing and stationery ENfpl K2 32 B 173 293
Exchange (gain)/loss, net PE 5 (Wzs) B BIFEE (1,214) 125
Office expenses MAEHRZ 2,870 2,729
Others HAith 7,123 6,508
Total (including cost of sale and leaseback AR (B IS 12 B 8 MR AR
arrangements and consultancy services, TERCAR ~ MBS E IR E A -
cost of supply chain management business, &R & 1TEFI)
selling expenses and administrative
expenses) 1,856,621 81,117
Note: During the year, cost of sale and leaseback arrangements included MizE : R SEEAZHRABERITER
HK$9,441,000 (2020: HK$10,192,000) interest on bank borrowings (Note B A9, 441,000 (Z T2 F B
11). #10,192,0007T) (Ht&E11) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT)

BEERAAX(BIEESHMH)

2021 2020

—E-—F =T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BET T

Wages, salaries and other benefits TE - HeRkHMER 33,704 39,210

Directors’ fee ExHe 1,190 1,005

Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIRTEAFT B 5K 3,559 673

Total employee benefit expenses EERAMMZ BT 38,453 40,888
Five highest paid individuals EEEEHFAL

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included two directors (2020: three directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in the disclosures above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2020: two)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

TR AKELRESHEERREMS
ERX(CT_TF=REF) FHEK
FHMSFBENLELXHE - RAFE
N BEEHFEETFHNBRT=2ALCE
—TF MB)UFARREZTIERST
BAR - BEMEFRDT

2021 2020

—EB-—-F —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEET T BT

Wages, salaries and other benefits I& - #HehEMER 4,679 2,455
Retirement benefit schemes contributions BAREFIETEI R 50 36
4,729 2,491
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT) (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
Directors and whose remuneration fell within the following bands

is as follows:

mEMBHREME

EERANBEZ(BEESHMH)
()

ZARSHA L@
MeNFUTHEENANIFEESS
FEEABMT :

2021 2020

—E-—F —EFTHF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 T2 %1,000,0007T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 75 #51,000,001 T 2= % 1,500,0007T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 75#1,500,001 7028 %2,000,0007T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 75 #2,000,001 728 %2,500,0007T 1 =

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
Directors of the Company or the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

FR - AREYENEAME TAR
RAEEFRNAERRSFRBER/MAIR
MMARE B & 2 R AERABERAE -

(PROVISION FOR)/REVERSAL OF PROVISION FOR 10 FEURFRIERI(E (BE) BER

IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES, NET EIp=:3E:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Impairment loss (provided)/reversed: REEE (B, #. -
— Receivables under sale and leaseback - BB EALHEIE T EKGIR
arrangements (2,751) 5,887
- Trade and bill receivables - BWE SRR R EWEE (22) -
— Other receivables - H b Uk FIE (172) -
- Debt instruments at FVOC| - FEREM KSR AR EE
BrEBHIA 18 29
(2,927) 5,916

2021 EEHE a%m%mr&mam



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBEREMFE
11 FINANCE COSTS 11 RAERK
2021 2020
—E-—F a3
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Interest on bank borrowings RITIERZFE 12,747 11,733
Less: amounts included in cost of sale B BERFASREETHRAZ
and leaseback arrangements FIE (9,441) (10,192)
3,306 1,541
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 224 135
3,530 1,676
12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 FEHiREZ
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Current tax: BIEATRIA -
— Hong Kong -HE 2 5
= The PRC - 11,117 9,115
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 11119 9120
Deferred income tax (Note 29) BEFTER MR (3548 7,839
Income tax expense FrigFif X 7,571 16,959
Notes: st
(@  On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland (@ RZE—NF=A=+—8' ' BBILE

(b)

Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on
28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profit of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for 2021 (2020: 25%).
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12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The taxation for the year is reconciled to profit before income
tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

12 FEHEZ@
FEMBREESESSE KSR BT

SR ANEFE BRI T

follows:
2021 2020
—F=—F —F-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Profit before income tax B PTAS T A4 A 50,064 35,153
Tax calculated at the PRC statutory income ¥ BIIAE TSR R 25%
tax rate of 25% AHEZBIR 12,516 8,788
Tax effect of amount which are not TEET 8RB AR AR,
deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable (TRERT) RS £
income:
Share of results of associates ey NI O (582) (315)
Expenses not deductible for taxation Itk b2
purposes 1,032 227
Income not subject to taxation HAGWA (1,555) (1,079)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax  ARFERIELFTSH M T IAE B
was recognised 307 5,642
Recognition of tax loss (Note) TR IE B 18 (T E) (2,630) -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax loss h 8 %t gl A& FERRHO B B &5 18 (2,100) =
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REAMANEEBEEEE B
operating in other jurisdiction NATRIBE 2 &8 343 2,430
Withholding tax on dividends of the PRC B B A RIAR B 2 TR0
subsidiaries 240 1,266
Expense for the year FERY 7,571 16,959

Note:

B et

HREREEEEEES PR —FHOUH
REKERE  A5EBEEHT EAAEROH
HEE YRAERUESHELERBEEIEKHE
MERTEESN - At - RZZ = —FRZREE
BREIRIET A& E 5 %2,630,0007T °

Following a significant improvement in financial performance in supply chain
management business segment in 2021, the Group reviewed previously
unrecognised tax losses and determined that it was now probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. As a
consequence, a deferred tax asset of HK$2,630,000 was recognised for these
losses in 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

13 DIVIDENDS 13
The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend in the total
amount of HK$11.95 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: HK$NIl), payable to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company at the close of business
on Friday, 27 May 2022. Based on 3,984,639,703 ordinary shares
of the Company in issue, such a final dividend would amount to
HKO.3 cent per ordinary share. The final dividend is subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The final dividend proposed after 31 December 2021 has not been
recognised as a liability as at 31 December 2021.

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE 14

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

RE
EEgRGERREERE T —F+
A=t HIEFEZRABREEHE
1195 BT (CTE-TF  BET L)
FR-_E-_—_FRA-_TLtHEHHR)
EERBAERRERINAABIREREM
W2 o AR AE BT 2 @R
17 4#8273,984,639,703 0% © AR S
15 BT BAR0.38 1l - ZAHKREA
FRABRTZALTREBF RS L&
E#E R-E-——F+=-A=+—
HEBRKRE 2 RARENRZZEZ—F+
—AZt+—BHIkERAEEE -

BRAEF

ARAFHE AREERERN NS
BNTSERATEEAE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EToFF
Profit attributable to owners of the PA/NCIESTEDNY eyl
Company (HK$000) (BT T 27,294 5,980
Weighted average number of ordinary IR N AR B (FAR)
shares (thousand) 3,984,640 3,984,640
Basic earnings per share (expressed in FRERZF) (FRAEL)
HK cent per share) 0.68 0.15

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. No
diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 as there was no dilutive potential shares
during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEBBRERS
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 V¥ - BERRXRE
Furniture,
Leasehold Motor fitting and
Buildings  improvements Vehicles equipment Total
g RIE - #E
s EETS HE R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT ERTT ERTR BETT AT

At 1 January 2020 R-B-ZF-f—-H
Cost B 22,299 857 2,036 6,904 32,096
Accumulated depreciation ZETE (927) 311) (1,252) (4,237) (6,727)
Net book amount IREFE 21,372 546 784 2,667 25,369
Year ended 31 December 2020 BZE_Z-E&+CH
=t+-HIEE
Opening net book amount FUERFE 21,372 546 784 2,667 25,369
Exchange difference ERER 381 = (9) 40 412
Addition NE - = = 46 46
Depreciation charge HEER (585) (266) (569) (700) (2,120)
Disposal HE - - = (1,336) (1,336)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 21,168 280 206 717 22,371
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZF+ZH
=+-8
Cost B A 22,720 860 2,050 5,130 30,760
Accumulated depreciation ZEtinE (1,552) (580) (1,844) (4,413) (8,389)
Net book amount REFE 21,168 280 206 717 22,371

2021 FEHE ﬁﬁﬁ(%)ﬁlﬁ/&ﬁ



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

15 %% - BERRE@®

Furniture,
Leasehold Motor fitting and
Buildings improvements Vehicles equipment Total
Eizh - RE- -£B
EF MERE AE &L @t
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
BETT BT BE¥Tn BT BETn
At 1 January 2021 R-B--f-f—-H
Cost A 22,720 860 2,050 5,130 30,760
Accumulated depreciation ZETE (1,552) (580) (1,844) (4,413) (8,389)
Net book amount IREFE 21,168 280 206 717 22,371
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_-%#+ZA
=t-BEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 21,168 280 206 717 22,371
Exchange difference X E5 77 - - 78 155
Transfer to investment properties BREERENE
(Note 17) (PzE17) (20,874) - - - (20,874)
Addition NE - 1,028 - 151 1,179
Depreciation charge HEER (371 (301) (206) (436) (1,314)
Disposal HE - - - (1 (1
Closing net book amount FREEFE - 1,007 - 509 1,516
At 31 December 2021 R=ZB--%+=A
=t+-8
Cost %N - 1,889 2,060 5317 9,266
Accumulated depreciation ZEE - (882) (2,060) (4,808) (7,750)
Net book amount REFE - 1,007 - 509 1,516

At 31 December 2020, all of the Group’s buildings were located in
Hong Kong and Mainland China with the remaining lease terms of
40 and 30 years.

Depreciation expense of HK$1,314,000 (2020: HK$2,120,000) was
charged in administrative expenses.

m Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited Annual Report 2021

RZEBE_ZTEFE+_A=+—H &&£H
FrERFAMNRE SRR AM - Fék
FEHA A40%F K304 -

WERXZAE®1,314,000 (= =F
1 B#2,120,0007T) B 5t ATTE RIS
ﬁq °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRENE
16 LEASES 16 #HE
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) REESHMBRRRERZ
statement of financial position k|
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the Ra BRI E AT EE S48
following amounts relating to leases: 258
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Office premises YN 16,807 1,837
Land use right + {5 P A - 37,706
16,807 39,543
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current portion mENE S 3,618 1,917
Non-current portion FEmENE S 13,686 =
17,304 1,917
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the land use HE-_ZE-_—F+-A=+—HILHF
right being part of commercial building property amounted B HBoRFEEFYENTHERES
to HK$37,155,000 was transferred to investment properties #37,155,000 cE EEEREWE (M
(Note 17). E17) o

2021 FEHE ﬁ%ﬁ(%)ﬁl@@ﬁm



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

16 LEASES (Continued)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

(9)

statement of comprehensive income
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows
the following amounts relating to leases:

16 HE @)

(b)

RESEERERERZ
T8
RAEEERSERIFATEEER
B2

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-TF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FEREEEREEZEA
assets
Office premises N 2,754 2,205
Land use right o {8 PR A 1,045 1,198
3,799 3,403
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEMNE
(included in finance cost) Gt AREKA) 224 135
Expenses relating to short-term leases REAEEER
(included in administrative expenses) GPNTE G 602 821

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
December 2021 was HK$2,567,000 (2020: HK$2,346,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Company leases various properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 1 year to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRENE
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 REWZE
2021 2020
—B-—-F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At fair value RARE
At 1 January m—H—H 23,700 24,700
Transfer from property, plant and BYE  BERERBEEA
equipment (Note 15) (Fit3E15) 20,874 =
Transfer from right-of-use assets (Note 16) B AEEEE A (FE16) 37,155 =
Revaluation upon transfer from property, B - WEREEAR
plant and equipment and right-of-use FREEEEARER
assets 56,353 -
Changes in fair value recognised in the RiEa 2l ERER
consolidated statement of AR
comprehensive income 5,244 (1,000)
Exchange differences MEH ER 1,172 =
At 31 December W+Z—A=+—H 144,498 23,700
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive MIREMERGELEARSRERZE
income for investment properties: Ll
2021 2020
—B-—-F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Rental income e UA 1,445 339
Direct operating expenses from properties ~— EEM S WA E 2 BELER A
that generated rental income (115) (82)
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no unprovided RZB-Z—F+-A=+—0 " Kx5H
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2020: VEBBRREERREZRBERD
Nil). EBCE_TF 8-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e %R E MR
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWZE @
Fair value hierarchy NAEEE
The following table analyses the investment properties carried at TRERHEBEFEDTERALBEIRONIR
fair value, by valuation method. B -
Significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)
ERELBEBARB(E=ZR
2021 2020
—E-— —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Recurring fair value measurements LEMRARETE
Residential property units located in Hong R EB(EEYHEEN
Kong 38,400 23,700
Commercial property units located in {37 7 HR [ A b ) P SR 2R FE A
Mainland China 106,098 -
144,498 23,700
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year. RERN - B—R BF_H/RE=F2HE

W EEEETS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRENE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 BEYE @)
Commercial
Residential property units
property units located in
located in Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
NREBN LRPERIH
FEYESEN WEWESEN et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TT BETT BETT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BEZE_—ZE_-_TF+_-#
= 'l' HIEFE
Opening balance at 1 January 2020 RZZE-TF—H—HH
FUER 24,700 - 24,700
Changes in fair value recognised in the  RérE 2ERERERZ
consolidated statement of AL
comprehensive income (1,000) = (1,000)
Closing balance at 31 December 2020 H-ZT-ZTF+—F
=t —BZFERER 23,700 - 23,700
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZ_-_ZE=-—F+_#
=+—HLEFE
Opening balance at 1 January 2021 R-ZE_—F—HA—HH
FUER 23,700 - 23,700
Transfer from property, plant and BWE BB REEHEEA
equipment (Note 15) (F7E15) 14,363 6,511 20,874
Transfer from right-of-use assets BEAEEEEA
(Note 16) (Mt7E16) - 37,155 37,155
Revaluation upon transfer from property, B#1% - BE RREA R
plant and equipment and right-of-use FREEEEARER
assets 37 56,316 56,353
Changes in fair value recognised in the ~ R4R4& 2 EURZFRER
consolidated statement of “REE
comprehensive income 300 4,944 5,244
Exchange differences EHZERE - 1,172 1,172
Closing balance at 31 December 2021 RN-ZZE=-—¥+=A4
=t+—BZFERER 38,400 106,098 144,498
2021 FERE

EEMAS (£ ERAT m



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Group’'s own
occupied properties were transferred to investment properties.
Market comparable approach has been adopted for valuing the
abovementioned properties. One of the key inputs used in valuing
the properties were the price per square feet or price per square
meter, which are HK$23,723 per square feet and HK$63,496 per
square meter, respectively.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2021 and 2020 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on those dates by Greater China
Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected with the Group. Greater China Appraisal Limited
is a registered firm of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and
has appropriate qualifications and experience. The valuation was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same location and conditions and where
appropriate by capitalisation of rental income from properties.

Market comparable approach has been adopted for valuing the
Group's residential and commercial property units. One of the
key inputs used in valuing the Group’s residential and commercial
property units was the price per square feet or price per square
meter, which ranged from HK$17,014 to HK$23,921 per square
feet (2020: HK$17,014 to HK$23,561 per square feet) and
HK$65,011 per square meter (2020: not applicable) for residential
and commercial property units respectively. An increase in the
price per square feet and per square meter used would result in an
increase in fair value measurement of the residential property units
and commercial property units, and vice versa.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWHE @)

RER - HERMTEZS) -

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

TRE[BERMAOTERIABARZSE
“RREME -

The following table analyses the level 3 investment properties
carried at fair value, by valuation techniques.

Relationship of
Fair value at Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs to
Property 31 December technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs  fair value
R+=A=+-AH BEEZEBRANE
E ZAfE hER ELEERANE BIBFRAUEEER HONEZRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
8% -“T-®F 8% TR
HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$ HK$
BRI  A%TE BET BET
Residential property 38,400 23,700  Market comparable Market unitsales ~ 17,014to  17,014to  The higher the unit selling
units located in approach price 23,921 23,561 price, the higher the fair
Hong Kong value
REBNEENEEN 38,400 23700 THLEE 5 EfE(E 1704 17014 EBUEEES ARE
23,921 23561 B
Commercial property 106,098 - Market comparable Market unit sales 65,011 = The higher the unit selling
units located in approach price price, the higher the fair
Mainland China value
fir R B P93t ) 7 5% 106,098 - TBREE miEEER 65,011 - BUEEYE - AnE
NREN it

20215 EHRE HENS(EEERAT m



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRENE

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18 BREEE

Supply chain
financing
Goodwill platform
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) Total
WE AEEBETA )
(B £ (a)) (B =E (b)) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETIT BETIT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZB-ZSHF—H—H
Cost DN 56,660 12,589 69,249
Accumulated amortisation SR = (1,216) (1,216)
Net book value EEEFE 56,660 11,373 68,033
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE—ZE-8&
T=ZA=t+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FURREFE 56,660 11,373 68,033
Disposal e = (556) (556)
Amortisation charge 44 S FH = (2,956) (2,956)
Exchange difference X Z% 3,372 471 3,843
Closing net book value EREMEEE 60,032 8,332 68,364
At 31 December 2020 RoE-SHF
+=A=+—H
Cost D% 60,032 12,738 72,770
Accumulated amortisation R = (4,406) (4,406)
Net book value FRENFAE 60,032 8,332 68,364
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-—=E—-—&
+tZA=+—BLFE
Opening net book amount FRREFE 60,032 8,332 68,364
Addition NE - 34 34
Amortisation charge i A - (2,927) (2,927)
Exchange difference MEHZRE 1,465 171 1,636
Closing net book value EREMEEE 61,497 5,610 67,107
At 31 December 2021 RoEBE-—F
+=A=+-8
Cost D% 61,497 13,083 74,580
Accumulated amortisation Bk - (7,473) (7,473)
Net book value EEFE 61,497 5,610 67,107

Amortisation expense of HK$2,927,000 (2020: HK$2,956,000) was

charged in administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 EEEE @)
BESEFANLREEE LR
ERERN IR R ZBERH o 3
BEARME @ AEEKEFED
RERRRSELBEUSIBASEL
BUAR Y ZFReELEM
SR eEEBMARNNAIRE S
HEZEMREEETLER - A%

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis or when
there are indications the carrying amount may be impaired.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group allocates
its goodwill to the relevant CGUs or group of CGUs, and
compares the recoverable amounts of these CGUs or group
of CGUs to their respective carrying amounts. A summary of
goodwill allocation for each group of CGUs of the Group is

as follows: EEERNRCELBMNEESR
BB :
Assets
Sale and management
leaseback and Supply Chain
arrangements consultancy =~ management
services services business
segment segment segment
E&EHE BEEEER ftpe i
ZYERBIW  EAREIB EEXKIH
South China Shouhua Beijing Jingxi
Leasing Fangtai Supply Chain Total
EAEE BELZR LREAMHER #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BETR
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-EF
—H—H 49,366 911 6,383 56,660
Exchange difference M N E 2,938 54 380 3,372
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZfF
+=ZBA=+-—H 52,304 965 6,763 60,032
Exchange difference b =58 1,276 24 165 1,465
At 31 December 2021 R=-Z=-—#
+=ZA=+—H 53,580 989 6,928 61,497
Goodwill impairment assessment EE R E

The recoverable amount is calculated based on the higher of
value-in-use calculation or fair value less costs of disposal.

A EERIAEREEAETR

b

ﬁo

201 ERE EENS(EEAERAT m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 EEEE @)

Goodwill impairment assessment (Continued)

The recoverable amount of South China Leasing is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The value-
in-use calculations used cash flow projection based on
financial budgets prepared by management covering a five-
year period. The interest rate spread in the value-in-use
calculations is 2% (2020: 2%). The discount rate used of
approximately 11% (2020: 11%) is pre-tax and reflects the
specific risks related to the relevant business.

Any reasonably possible change in any of these key
assumptions would not result in an impairment of the
goodwill.

The recoverable amount of Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain is
determined based on discounted cash flows calculations.
This calculation uses cash flow projections based on five-
year financial budgets, with reference to past performance
and expectations for market development, approved by
management. The annual revenue growth rate during
the projection period is 3% (2020: 3%) whereas the cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated with
an estimated terminal growth rate of 1% (2020: 1%). The
discount rate used of approximately 17.5% (2020: 17.5%) is
pre-tax and reflects the specific risks related to the relevant
business.

Any reasonably possible change in any of these key
assumptions would not result in an impairment of the
goodwill.

The Supply chain financing platform is a software platform to
support the supply chain management business of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the directors were not aware of
any events or changes in circumstances which would indicate
that the carrying amount of the intangible assets may not be
recoverable.
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19 INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 R—HE
AT AERER —"FT—_—F+=-_A=

2021. The entities listed below have share capital consisting solely +—

of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group. The
country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place
of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is the same
as the proportion of voting rights held. All of these associates
are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated

financial statements.

AR
M ELBERTAEEE
B PIRTREIE ERLHIAER -
FrBEZEME N R EAER
B E AR ©

REMB®/REMEE

L N PR £

AZBEAR - THERBAZE
AP A EEEERA -
BEE -

DARERA

Place of
business/
Nature of Principal country of Effective % of
Name of entity relationship  activities incorporation ownership interest Carrying amount
EEBY
ERsH BENEE TEXBED HERRYER FAEREZEREAL REE
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZRC-f —T-FF CZBI-Ff —T-FF
% % HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
RERTIEMEIXEEEE  Associate Investment The PRC - = - -
LEERAEE) (“Shouhe management
Venture Capital”) (Note)
FETIEMEIZREERE HERA REER e
tX(BERA®)
(r&faz)) ()
REBEREERARA Associate Provision of ~ The PRC 41.41% 41.41% 92,930 91,362
(Beijing West Business factoring
Factoring Company services in
Limited*) ("Beijing West PRC
Business Factoring”) NG PAFR B 3
REABEREERAF R RS
(TRERERIE])
92,930 91,362
Note: PtsE

On 15 December 2020, Shouhe Venture Capital was dissolved and all the
investment cost was returned to the Group.

*  For identification purpose only

MNZZE-_ZE+_A+HA  EMAEIZEEL

AASERERBREKA -

* EHRBFIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBEREMFE
19 INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19 R—EBE QT 2R @
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cost of investments in associates: REE QTR ZRERA :
As at 1 January Hn—HA—H 91,362 88,361
Dissolution of an associate during the year ~ F R — BB E A& - (1,667)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 91,362 86,694
Share of operating profits FEAG £ & 5 T 2,328 1,258
Share of other comprehensive income FEAR E Ath 2 E 2,236 5,273
Dividend received B B (2,996) (1,863)
Interests in an associate R—REBE QAT 2 &S 92,930 91,362
Goodwill e
As at 31 December 2021, included in the cost of investment in RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—"H BR

Beijing West Business Factoring, an associate of the Group, is
goodwill of approximately HK$26,376,000 (2020: HK$25,748,000)

arising from the acquisition during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBEREME
19 INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19 R—EBHE QT2 R @
Summarised financial information of the material FEHRENTNEERME
associate
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material AR NS B 3 E & A B B 75 B R
associate is set out below. ZHHWT -
Beijing West Business Factoring RABERE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT
Current assets mENE E 926,280 637,602
Non-current assets EMBNEE 12,423 12,358
Current liabilities MEAE (777,982) (473,460)
Net asset BEFE 160,721 176,500
Less: Non-controlling interests o IEERRE R - (18,050)
160,721 158,450
Revenue Wiz 212,492 343,531
Expenses, including income tax X (BIEFTISH) (206,869) (340,311)
Profit for the year FEmF 5,623 3,220
Profit for the year contributed to the owner ~ RIE ERIBEE AEBIREEZHF
of Beijing West Business Factoring 5,623 3,039
The information above reflects the amounts represented in the FREH R RARERENVERE
financial statements of Beijing West Business Factoring (and not WEeBRAFAERELRSE) BN
the Group’s share of those amounts) adjusted for differences in EBHEZBENTNSTBREREETT

accounting policies between the Group and the associate. HEE o

2021 FEHE ﬁ%ﬁ(%)ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBREME
19 INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19 R—EBE QT 2R @
Summarised financial information of the material FEBREQNTNTEERBEE @
associate (Continued)
Beijing West Business Factoring (Continued) RABERE(H)
Movements of interests in Beijing West Business Factoring are as RRARFERECE=SEOT ¢
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-THE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST T
Interests in an associate R—EBE AT ZER
At 1 January Hn—A—H 91,362 86,788
Share of results e 2,328 1,258
Dividend received BB (2,996) (1,863)
Exchange differences E X =% 2,236 5,179
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 92,930 91,362
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented Fir 2 71| B 75 & R 1 2 B2 50 P g £ R I8
to the carrying amount of its interests in Beijing West Business 2 BREE C HIRMT -
Factoring is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Summarised financial information B ERBE
Opening net assets on 1 January R—A—BZE9EEFE 158,450 150,229
Post-acquisition profit for the period BRI B 15 5 A 5,623 3,039
Dividend paid BERRE (7,236) (4,498)
Exchange differences PEH =58 3,884 9,680
Closing net assets FREEFE 160,721 158,450
Group's share in % REERGEES T 41.41% 41.41%
Interests in the associate kN o - ey 66,554 65,614
Goodwill & 26,376 25,748
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ A=+—HZKEE 92,930 91,362
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 RECEIVABLES UNDER SALE AND LEASEBACK
ARRANGEMENTS

20

mEMBHREME

EREEREEE N 2 BWFKIA

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Current assets MENEE 1,030,623 608,522
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 319,749 771,927
1,350,372 1,380,449

At 31 December, the Group'’s receivables under sale and leaseback

arrangements were repayable as follows:

RT-A=+—8 A5EEROHELR
BER T Z BUGRIREET

2021 2020
—E--F —ETF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST
Within one year —FR 1,030,623 608,522
Between 1 and 2 years —EWF 296,499 576,436
Between 2 and 3 years WE=4F 23,250 195,491
1,350,372 1,380,449

Overdue receivables under sale and leaseback & 1% 8170 22 BE T8 T JE Y38 EAZ I8
arrangements - -
1,350,372 1,380,449

2021 EEHE a%m%mr&mam



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBEREMFE
20 RECEIVABLES UNDER SALE AND LEASEBACK 20 EREETHET Z2EWRRE
ARRANGEMENTS (continued) (48)
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Analysed as: DT
Current receivables under sale and EREELHIE T YT E IR
leaseback arrangements (=18 A W EB)
(receivable within 12 months) 1,054,994 629,626
Non-current receivables under sale and SR EIHELHEIE T EUWIER B
leaseback arrangements FIEFP+ZE A& EK
(receivable after 12 months) 321,135 773,255
1,376,129 1,402,881
Provision of impairment loss allowance BEE B (25,757) (22,432)
1,350,372 1,380,449
Fixed-rate receivables under sale and EREELHEIE T EYE B FUE
leaseback arrangements 702,706 862,040
Variable-rate receivables under sale and EREALHEIE T RYE S TR
leaseback arrangements 647,666 518,409
1,350,372 1,380,449
The interest rates represent prevailing People’s Bank of China MERER B —FRIZ_ZZTF
Renminbi Lending Rate (“PBC rate”) or Offshore Chinese Renminbi + - A=+—HHREXRBEITFEHA
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“CNH HIBOR") as at 31 RRITARBEZRFE(TARRITER
December 2021 and 2020, respectively. MEDIBEEBEARITRAEARKEFE

(FERITRAEARBHFE]D -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

20 RECEIVABLES UNDER SALE AND LEASEBACK 20 EREEZHETN 2EWKIE

ARRANGEMENTS (cContinued) (&)
Effective interest rates per annum of the above receivables under MAFE » Ll E®&BIHAZHEIE T EK
sale and leaseback arrangements for the year are as follows: FIEZ BERENEMT :

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BETT

Effective interest rates
Fixed-rate receivables

Variable-rate receivables

BEERF=
e E B RIR

FEWOF B ARIR

5.0% to 12.0%
5.0E%12.0E
5.5% t0 6.7%

5.5E%6.7E

5.0% to 12.0%

5.0EE12.02
5.5% t0 6.7%
5.5E%6.7E

Interest rate of variable-rate receivables is reset when there is a

ERUCE BREMFERRITARRITE

AFELEBBRITAZARE R SR

BHHER -

change of the prevailing PBC rate or CNH HIBOR.

R—_EBE-_—F+_-_A=+—8 " &%
EfAZHERA~NERZENE@ES
#243,289,000C(ZE —ZF : HE
321,283,00070) EHEA FIRITIERR
FAEEMNREERTERZ KT =
28) o WMIFAERIBITERE BRI -

As at 31 December 2021, carrying value of the receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements of HK$243,289,000 (2020:
HK$321,283,000) have been pledged against specific bank
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 28). The pledges will be
released upon the settlement of bank borrowings.

EREEZHENEKE
BEGERESE

(i) Movement in provision of impairment loss (i)
allowance for receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements

HK$'000
BT T
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZTF—H—H 49,588
Net reversal for the year FREREENHE (5,887)
Write-off =] (22,557)
Exchange differences fEHZER 1,288
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZB_ZEF+_A=+—HK
—E-—%—H—H 22,432
Provision for the year F SR 2,751
Exchange differences HEH =5 574
At 31 December 2021 R=-B-_-f+=-A=+—8 25,757

2021 ERE éﬁﬁ(%)ﬁlﬁ/&ﬁm



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

20 RECEIVABLES UNDER SALE AND LEASEBACK
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

()

(ii)

Movement in provision of impairment loss
allowance for receivables under sale and

leaseback arrangements (Continued)

The provision for receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements amounted to HK$25,757,000 (2020:
HK$22,432,000) of which an amount of HK$19,925,000
(2020: HK$19,451,000) is related to credit-impaired
receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements and those
borrowers were either under severe financial difficulties,
placed in liquidation or in legal proceedings. In the opinion of
the directors, these amounts cannot be recovered due to the
debtors’ default in payment.

Security deposits received

Security deposits of HK$6,098,000 (2020: HK$11,904,000)
have been received by the Group to secure the receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements and classified into
current liabilities and non-current liabilities based on the final
lease instalment due date stipulated in the sale and leaseback
agreements.

20

EREEZ PR N 2 BWFRE

()
()

(i)

EREEZHENEKRE
RESRREZE @

EROALTHIE FNEUGRERES
25,757,000 0 (T - T 4F ¢
E#522,432,0000T) @ HAR B
19,925,000 c (ZE -4 : B
19,451,00070) B3 £ ZERED
EREALHE T RKIBERE
MmAAREE R AR EBRENHFRE -
EITBRNESERAERD -ESR
RE - BAEBANELY  ZEXR
RN Al E

BEREARRE
AEEBEEWRBRRERSBE
6,098,000 (ZE T4 : B
11,904,0007T) ' tEAE#REHAL
PEIE T EWRIEMER - WIRIEE
#EERHRFTA B EE S X
HIHAmMEEREARDAER
EMBEE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Analysed as: DR
Security deposits received ERRER S
- due with one year - —F A E|H 6,098 5,952
Security deposits received BRRFRS
- due after one year - —F 15 - 5,952
6,098 11,904

In addition to security deposits, the receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements are secured over the leased assets
mainly real estate, machineries and build and transfer project
of a scenic belt as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 RECEIVABLES UNDER SALE AND LEASEBACK

ARRANGEMENTS (cContinued)

(ii) Security deposits received (Continued)
The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral
of the receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements
in the absence of default by the lessee. Estimates of fair
value of collateral are made during the credit approval
process, determined using valuation techniques commonly
used for the corresponding assets. These estimates of
valuations are made at the inception of sale and leaseback,
and management would review it periodically. The Group
also takes into consideration the financial positions and
the guarantors of the relevant customers and the expected
timing, legal possession status and other uncertainties on
realising the pledged assets in the impairment assessment.

21 DEBT INSTRUMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEMBHREME

EREBRHE N ZEWFRKIER

()

(i) SHRBEE W@
fHAEMAL L - AEEFE
ERBERRSERERLIE T
BN ERR - NEHBHE
2 EIERM DA A LR
RRRAE S ANGEERE - %
SEEMH TR E R RRRREE
- WHEREEREN - NAE
SHER - AEENGERIERES
Z BB HRR R AR A A R BB B IR
RAEBHSE  RRE A
RE A FHEERE -

ZEREMEZEBREIAER
HzEHTA

2021 2020

—E-—F —EFTHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Listed bond, with fixed interest of 5.30% EWmES - BRERS530E - 15,886

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had disposed
of a listed bond with sales proceed of HK$15,957,000 (2020:
HK$15,506,000).

The fair value of an investment in a listed bond is determined by
reference to the quoted market bid prices available and a loss on
changes in fair value on a listed bond of HK$397,000 has been
recognised in other comprehensive income during the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: loss of HK$173,000).

Details of impairment assessment and risk exposure are set out in
Note 3.1.

HE-_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HLHF
B AEEERELEWES  HEMS
FRIE A #15,957,0007T(—F — T4 ¢
75 #15,506,0007T) °

IHEFRENAREBEHIZENFSHT
SEANEREET  VEREE_ZT—
—E+ A=+ BHULEFENEME®E
KWER EMEFAABELHEREIE
397,000 (ZE T F : BRI
173,0007T) °

B T K B B ik O 2 515 R B A
3.1°

20215 EHRE BEREAS(ZE)ERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBEREMFE
22 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES AND 22 BWESRIARERZEEUR
PREPAYMENT, DEPOSIT AND OTHER JEAEE - REREMEIRSR

RECEIVABLES b= |
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Trade and bill receivables RUE 5 BR 7k & R U ZE 1% 31,511 36,132
Provision for impairment loss allowance B E B (22) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 31489 36132
Prepayments (Note (i) TE A SR IE (B 5 ()) 16,251 22,742
Other receivables (Note (ii) Lt JE W R 2 (PR (i) 205,714 135,950
Deposits e 1,448 910
Provision for impairment loss allowance BB EIE R (174) -
254,728 195,734
Non-current JERED 4,226 4,201
Current D 250,502 191,533
254,728 195,734

Notes: st

(i) As at 31 December 2021, prepayment of HK$7,000,000 (2020:
HK$17,142,000) was paid to the supplier in relation to the supply chain

management services.

(i) As at 31 December 2021, other receivables of HK$203,783,000 (2020:
HK$132,746,000) was receivable in relation to the purchase cost paid on
behalf of customers under supply chain management services in which

the Group was acting as an agent.
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iy M-E-_—F+-A=+—8 HibEk
FIEAK203,783,000C(ZE-FF B
¥132,746,0007T) R EBASEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAPBRERS
22 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES AND 22 BERESRAREWREZEEUR

FEAFE - ReEREMERR
5 (&)
() EWEBESERREKERE

PREPAYMENT, DEPOSIT AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a) Trade and bill receivables

The credit terms of trade receivables are normally 30 to 90
days as at 31 December 2021. The maturity periods of bill
receivables are normally 6 to 12 months as at 31 December
2021. The aging analysis of trade receivables and bill
receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

RZF=-Z—F+=-A=+—H0 "
ERESERZEEH—RKA30
Z90H - M -_ZE-_—F+-A=
+—HB - BRER I ERHR —&
B6ZE12{ A - IHBEFER A 2RI
B ERREREE Rk TR
™

2021 2020

—EB--F —ETF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within 3 months =@AR 2,966 36,035
4-6 months mZE 7~ {EA 26,768 97
7-9 months +tZN@EA 1,050 -
10-12 months +=+=1@A 727 =
31,511 36,132

Due to the short-term nature of the trade and bill receivables,
their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as their
fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bill receivables
are denominated in RMB.

(i) Movement in provision of trade and bill

RN EWE 2R M ERE BB R
HtE  HRAERGSEEQAR
B8R -

AEERYNE SRR RERER
FREEAARBHE -

() EBRESRIREVERE

receivables BiE2E
HK$'000
BT

At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 R=ZZE=_TF—H—H - ZT=FF+-H
and 1 January 2021 =t+—BER=ZZE=—%—A—H =
Provision for the year FERE 22
At 31 December 2021 R-B--%+Z-A=+—~H 22

2021 EEHE a%m%mr&mam



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

22 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENT, DEPOSIT AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) Other receivables
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, other receivables are
secured, interest-free and repayable within one year from the
end of reporting period.

Analysed by denominated currency:

22

EWESRIAREREEUR
EARE BZEREMERR
18 ()

(b) HibEWRIE
RZZEZ—FR=T_FTF+=A
=+—H  HMERZEBERAEK
- 2B RERHREHRET —F
NEE ©

2021 2020
—E=-— —E-FTF
HK$ Pt 74 286
RMB AR 205,466 135,664
205,540 135,950

(i) Movement in provision of other receivables (i) HMEWRERESS
HK$'000
BT

At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF—HF—H —T-FTF

and 1 January 2021 TZA=t+—BRZZE=_—F—H—H =
Provision for the year FERME 172
Exchange differences bE 5 = RR 2
At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—F+=-H=+-—H 174
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVENTORIES

mEMBHREME

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
BT T

Finished goods LK o

3,542

3,542

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the cost of inventories
recognised as expense and included in cost of goods sold
amounted to approximately HK$1,778,325,000 (2020: HK$Nil).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

24

HEz_Z-_—F+_A=+—HLHF
[ &8 EEE1,778,325,0007T(=
TTF BTN FEXAER R
MY - Wt ASHEEMmAR ©

ZREERBRAANEREEZS
MEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Listed equity securities measured FREEREANEREZ
at FVPL EHRAES
— Hong Kong -BE 4,339 2,847

The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined by
reference to the quoted market bid prices available and gain
on changes in fair value on the listed equities of HK$1,492,000
has been recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: gain of HK$272,000).

Information about the Group’s exposure to price risk is provided
in Note 3.1. For information about the methods and assumptions
used in determining fair value refer to Note 3.3.

EHRAFBLENARBHIZENSFSHT
LEABHREBET  BCREBE_-Z
&+ A=Z+—BHLEFEEMEZR
R ETRARAELHER K S
#1,492,000 (=T =2 F B
272,0007T) °

7N 5% [ Py [ e (B AR LB O AR BE B R B
M3 - BRAEEAAEBRMAERZT
ERBREFR - FLHME33

2021 ERE ﬁEE(%@)ﬁF&@am



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAMIEHRE M
25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 REeRBELEEEH
2021 2020
—E-—F —EToFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Cash at banks and in hand RTERMIE® 387,095 318,818
Analysed by denominated currency: REHEEE T
HK$ i 92,778 72,597
RMB AR 291,912 241,109
uUsbD ETT 2,405 5,112
387,095 318,818

REBZ FEHIRBITRITERENEN
F0.01EXE2.8E(ZZTE-ZF : 0.01E
Z051F)FHE - ARBEEHEA GBI
INEE R At R B A PE BB £ B8 T
AT AR Y SN B 2R 4R Bl UK AR o

The Group’s deposits carry interest rate at prevailing bank deposit
rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.88% (2020: 0.01% to 0.51%) per
annum. The conversion of the RMB-denominated balances into
foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of the Mainland
China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Government of the PRC.

26 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26 HMEMARERETEH

2021 2020
- —T-THE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Accrued salaries and bonuses FERTH & RIEAL 16,624 15,417
Accrued legal and professional fees EEHEEREEER 2,431 2,132
Other tax payables E e IR 10,956 12,408
Interest payables R FILE 539 517
Receipt in advance from customers (Notes (i)) 84t YERE P 2 718 (it 55()) 173 16,078
Others (Notes (ii)) EL A, (BT (i) 37,779 15,462
68,502 62,014

Notes: ek -
(i) The balance represents receipt in advance from customers under supply (i) ERAEBRANEERTREBZHEREER

chain management services in which the Group was acting as an agent. PRISTE T IR EWMERE P 2 7RIA ©
RZZF=Z—F+=-A=+—8 ' st AHfb
HE#25,896,0007L(Z T =T F : B
2,493,00070) BB BEAKEEERIEZH
FESEE IR ARFSTE T B (T B 7 2 SRR AR
Z A8 -

(i)  As at 31 December 2021, included in others HK$25,896,000 (2020: (i
HK$2,493,000) was payable in relation to the purchase cost payable to
suppliers under supply chain management services in which the Group
was acting as an agent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBEREME
27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 27 mEREszeMIA
The Group holds the following financial instruments: AEBBBEATZEMIA :
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Financial assets sRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BHEKAFTECEREE
— Receivables under sale and leaseback - BB EELHE T ERFIE
arrangements 1,350,372 1,380,449
~ Trade and bill receivables - JEE SRR R E K 31,489 36,132
— Other receivables and deposits - Hit eI RIZS 206,988 136,860
- Cash and cash equivalents -BekRe&EEER 387,095 318,818
Debt instrument at fair value through other  FE@EMEEKZIE AR E
comprehensive income BEZEETAE - 15,886
Financial assets at fair value through profit or #EiBEERE AR ERIE 2
loss TRVEE 4,339 2,847
1,980,283 1,890,992
Financial liabilities SRaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RBERAFTECSRAE
~ Other payables - H A e FRIE 40,749 18,111
— Secured bank borrowings - BEEFRITER 290,922 290,303
— Security deposits received - BRREFZ S 6,098 11,904
— Lease liabilities -HEB®E 17,304 1,917
355,073 322,235

201 ERE EENS(EEAERAT m



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRENE

28 SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

28 CEMFRITHER

2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-THE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Non-current portion FEENEAE 2
Secured bank borrowings EIRHRITER 94,319 146,995

Current portion EEAE o

Secured bank borrowings EIRIRERITIE K 196,603 143,308
290,922 290,303

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s borrowings
were repayable in accordance with scheduled repayment dates as

R-E-—FR-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+

— B AEEERE

R HHIERZ

follows: BT
2021 2020
—E-—= —E-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
Carrying amount repayable: FEEIREREE
Within 1 year —F RN 111,288 65,138
Between 1 and 2 years —EWF 94,319 84,419
Between 2 and 3 years ME=4F - 62,576
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 205,607 212,133
Carrying amount of bank borrowings BRAREZRERERZ
that contain a repayable on demand RITEREREE
clause (shown under current liabilities) but ~ (F{EREI & &)
repayable: BEER :
Within 1 year —F R 82,885 72,852
Between 1 and 2 years —EWF 2,430 2,886
Between 2 and 3 years ME=4F - 2,432
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 85315 78170
290,922 290,303
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 SECURED BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the borrowing of HK$85,315,000 (2020:
HK$78,170,000) and HK$205,607,000 (2020: HK$212,133,000)
were denominated in HK$ and RMB respectively.

The bank borrowings pledged by certain assets are disclosed in
Note 31.

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s secured bank
borrowings are as follows:

28

REMB®/REMEE

2EFRITER@
RZEBEZ—F+=_A=+—8 " &
85,315,000 (= —_FF : B
78,170,0007_5)&7%?%205 607,0007T(—
T T #¥212,133,0007T) 2 EX
ﬁ}%w;‘%%&}&%;ﬂé

AETEEBMARITERRH 3R

= o

AEECERRITERERNEZHE D
T

2021 2020

—E--F —ETF

Effective interest rate: BEEF =
Variable-rate secured bank borrowings AN ETfﬁ?EﬁfETﬂﬁ%’\

1.19% to0 5.00%
1.19E£5.00E

1.18% t0 5.00%
1.18[E £5.002

The interest rates for the Group’s bank borrowings vary from
different subsidiaries. The interest rates vary from Hong Kong
banks’ prime rate minus 2.75%, Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") plus 1% to 2.4% and variable Loan Prime rate
(“LPR") plus a percentage spread of 1.15% (2020: Hong Kong
banks’ prime rate minus 2.75%, HIBOR plus 1% to 2.4% and
variable LPR plus a percentage spread of 1.15%). Secured bank
borrowings of HK$85,315,000 (2020: HK$78,170,000) are exposed
to the fluctuations of HIBOR and Hong Kong banks’ prime rate
while the remaining HK$205,607,000 (2020: HK$212,133,000)
are exposed to the fluctuation of PBC rate. The interest is repriced
every month for secured bank borrowings of HK$5,315,000 (2020:
HK$8,170,000), and repriced every quarter for secured bank
borrowings of HK$285,607,000 (2020: HK$282,133,000). The
proceeds were used as funding for sale and leaseback and general
working capital for the Group for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

AEBRTRMNEB AR ZRITERF
EYFRAE - MENFHEBRIT &
BEFRE2.75F - HHEITRZERS
([BERRTRAEREDINMERE24E R
FHERMEREMNER(ERTISRE
AER|)EF1NSEB(ZE_ZF : BF
BITHEEMNERF2.75E - FEETH
EFRBIEZE2A4BERFEERM SR
BARIR EZ1.15F) - B EIFRITER
B 85,315,000t (ZE -2 4F : B
78,170,00070) B& S BB R1TR EHF
BERBABRITHEZNE RS 2 AR
Mme& T 2 A%205,607,000C(—E-=
& ##212,133,0000T) BIZBA R AR
MERF R EE R - BEBRITE
FEH5,315,000c (ZE=FF : B
8,170,000n) 2 M E B AEHEEME
%Eﬁﬂﬂfﬁfﬂﬁ?x,%ﬁ%285 607,000 (==&
T #1282,133,0007T) 2 H B HIJ
BEFEHEE -#HE-T-_—Fk=
—EF+-_A=Z+—HILFE - ﬁfr?%%x
HERAEASEEERRHEES R —KE
BEG -

20215EERE BEROA(RE)ERA2

- AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

28 SECURED BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 28
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no secured
bank borrowings early repaid (2020: HK$168,697,000).

For assets pledged as security for bank borrowing, please refer to
Note 31.

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

2EFRITER@
BHE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—8HL1LF
E - WERPEEERBRITERCE
—EHF : HB#168,697,0007T) °

EEARTEIRFEENTE B2
BAKTEE3N ©

EEFRISM
BREABBRARNEY - & TFIEL
REAEREEDTOUER - THAE
ERARSRUBLRENME 25
7 -

2021 2020

—E-—F 2T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 17,563 13,869
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE (25,752) (11,470)
(8,189) 2,399
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME
29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 29 EIEFRSH @
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) UTHAERRZEIZRERBEE (B
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior BUNERERREFERBEFE 2 &
years:

Provisionof ~ Withholding
loss allowance tax on
for receivables  undistributed
undersaleand  profits of the
leaseback Mainland China Revaluation
arrangements subsidiaries of property Tax loss Total
iRER HEIR
gk WEAR
BT 2 ERE RATER
BEREE BB NESR REES st
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Movements #8
At 1 January 2020 R-E-EE-A-A 20,036 - (9,948) - 10,088
(Charged)/credited to consolidated REEZANER

statement of comprehensive income  (31%) /3t A (6,885) (1,266) 312 = (7,839)
Exchange differences EHEE 718 = (568) = 150

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January R=Z=Ff

2021 TZA=t-BEK
“E--f-H-H 13,869 (1,266) (10,204) - 2,399
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss REHFTA/(0%) 687 (754) 985 2,630 3,548
Charged to other comprehensive ez ARETR
income - - (14,079) - (14,079)
Exchange differences ERZE 346 (39) (395) 3 (57)
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-F
+ZA=t+-H 14,902 (2,059) (23,693) 2,661 (8,189)

201EERE BROBS(EE)ERAF 247




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAMBREMS
29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 29 RIEFTEF (@)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
unutilised tax losses available for offsetting against future taxable
profits for which no deferred tax asset is recognised:

RBEMR - AEEBUA TR AHRA
B R R KRR ERBUE A - B &
EBRELCHAEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT PSR T

Tax losses expiring: RATEIMR A HHIBEE -
Within 5 years AEA 7,345 14,193
Without expiry date mE A 475,173 475,664
482,518 489,857

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the above
tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary difference attributable to the retained
earnings earned by the subsidiaries in Mainland China amounting
to HK$83 million as at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$65 million)
as the Group controls the dividend policy of these PRC subsidiaries
and it is probable that these temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBEREME
30 SHARE CAPITAL 30 R
Number of
shares Amount
BREE ©8
HK$'000
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREESE0.01T 2 LB
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 RZZEZTF—HA—H
and 31 December 2021 —EZEF+ZA=+—H
kZE-—4%+=ZA=1+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETREHR :
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 RZE-_TF—H—H
and 31 December 2021 —ZEZ-ZEF+-A=+—H
kZE-—4%+=ZA=1+—H 3,984,639,703 39,846
31 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 31 EREE
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for non-current ETEMERERDEENERm &
assets are: EREES:
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Investment properties (Note (a)) K& Y (FisE(a)) 38,400 23,700
Property, plant and equipment (Note (a)) W - BB k& ) - 14,549
Receivables under sale and leaseback EREELHIET 2 EUFIE
arrangements (Note (b)) (Pt 5 (b)) 243,289 321,283
281,689 359,532
Notes: PR aE
(@)  The Group's investment properties with an aggregate carrying value (@) BRE#{EHE38,400,000 (= =%
of HK$38,400,000 (2020: HK$23,700,000) and the Group's building F : B¥23,700,000T) 2 A EEIEE
with carrying value of HK$Nil (2020: HK$14,549,000) were pledged MEREEESEEZL(ZE_F
to banks to secure for bank borrowings with outstanding amount of G B¥14,549,000T) Z AN EEF
HK$5,315,000 (2020: HK$8,170,000). EHEFTRIT ERREERTER
5,315,000 (ZE =22 F : B
8,170,0007T) Z I o
(b)  The Group's receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements with (b) BRME{EE®243,289,000L(=F =&

a carrying value of HK$243,289,000 (2020: HK$321,283,000) were
pledged to banks to secure for bank borrowings with outstanding
amount of HK$205,607,000 (2020: HK$212,133,000).

4 B#321,283,000T) 2 AEBER
B ZHEE T 2 BUGRIEE I FaR1T -
EBAREEIRTTEFE205,607,0007T
(ZZ=—=F : #%¥212,133,00070) 2 &
‘TrEﬁ °

2021 ERE éﬁﬁ(%@)ﬁlﬁ/&ﬁm



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 32 BBERERTE

The Company has two share option schemes, which were approved
and adopted on 7 June 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) and 25 May
2012 (the "2012 Scheme”) respectively, pursuant to which share
options may be granted to directors (including executive and non-
executive directors), executives, officers, employees or shareholders
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of its associated
companies and any suppliers, customers, consultants, advisers,
agents, partners or business associates to subscribe for the shares
of the Company. Both share option schemes are valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the adoption date of the
scheme.

The 2002 Scheme was terminated on 29 May 2012, no further
options can be granted under the 2002 Scheme. The share options
granted under the 2002 Scheme prior to its termination shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the 2002
Scheme. During the year, all the outstanding 3,586,880 share
options granted under the 2002 Scheme were lapsed. Accordingly,
no shares of the Company may be issued under the 2002 Scheme
as at the date of this annual report.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the maximum number of shares of the
Company available for issue upon exercise of all share options is
115,219,246, representing 4.31% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the commencement date of the 2012 Scheme.
The total number of shares of the Company issued and which may
fall to be issued upon the exercise of share options to be granted
under the 2012 Scheme to each grantee in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of grant. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the
issue of a circular by the Company and shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting. No share options has been granted under the
2012 Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Under both share option schemes, the exercise price in relation to
each share option is determined by the Board of Directors at its
absolute discretion and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of
share options; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of offer of share options; and (iii) the nominal value of the share of
the Company on the date of offer of share options. Each grantee
is required to pay HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant of share
options. The offer of share options must be accepted within 60
days and 30 days from the date of the offer, under the 2002
Scheme and the 2012 Scheme respectively.

The following table discloses the details of the share options and
movements in the share options under the 2002 Scheme during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

32

REMB®/REMEE

AT 8l

REMERRE S - SBAEZ(TE
BEHREER2RBBEET - HXES
TRORATZERE « (WRELHF W
BE AR A B AR A R B TS B R

EXRARZWHE  (NRBEEORLE
Pt B HA Al (8 & 5 B AN R A A OBk

R ARERAFZFHERME &
(INBHEHLBEREBBRARG®RMN Z
HE - FERABZNBEE1.00TER
EETEREZRE RE-ZFTZ=F
BN —ZFEE IRTZER
EAEDBRIEEEL B E#EET608 &30
B AR -

TREBREZE_ZE_—FR_Z_ZF
F+_A=+—BHILFE —ZTT_F
AHEITETBRE N BREEE) 2 15

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE
Number of share options
BREHA
Adjustment
Lapsed  asaresult At
Exercise price At 1January during of the 31 December
Category of grantees  Date of grant Exercise period per share 2021 the year  rights issue 2021
i R=B=-%
“B--F EREER T=A
ERAER REBH cd BRATREE —-A-H FRER  FHNBEER =t-H
(Note)
(Fif &)
Employees of the Group 14 December 2010 14 December 2010 - HK$0.53 - - - -
13 December 2020
AEEER -t —T-ZE1+ZAR 053
+HH THRZE-Z_ZF
TZA+=H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e %R E MR
32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 32 EBMR#EsHE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_TF+_A=1+—HIFE
Number of share options
BREZA
Adjustment
as a result At
Exercise price At 1 January Lapsed during of the 31 December
Category of grantees Date of grant Exercise period per share 2020 theyear  rights issue 2020
i R-Z_ZTF
ZZ%F HR LR TZA
SN il =k 1T BRIT6REE —A—H FRKY  FHARE =+-H
(Note)
(Ft3E)
Employees of the Group 14 December 2010 14 December 2010 - HK$0.53 3,586,880 (3,586,880) - -
13 December 2020
A5EES Tt —Z-TE1+ZR #0537
+HE THEE-E_%%
TZA+=H
Note: As a result of the Rights Issue which was completed on 31 October 2018, Mizk: BAAEBRERZ=ZE—N\F+A=+—A8
the relevant exercise prices were adjusted from HK$0.54 to HK$0.53 R —EE _FE THEBITEED
under the 2002 Scheme and the numbers of outstanding share options BB 0.54TABEHBE0.537T MK
were adjusted accordingly. TEIEARES B IR E R o
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their MR AR S B KR E AR N 1S
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: TEBE#EESHNT
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
Average Average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
in HK$ per  share options in HK$ per share options
share option (thousands) share option (thousands)
BHBEREN BipkERELY
FHTEE BREHE FIITE(E BB ES A
(B (F4) (B¥E) (F1)
At 1 January n—HA—H - - 0.53 3,587
Lapsed B - - 0.53 (3,587)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H - - = =
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CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

REMB®/REMEE

33 FmEBRERERM:E

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
hr=s BET T ST IT
Profit before income tax Br PT1S T A4 A 50,064 35,153
Adjustments for: A
Changes in fair value of financial assets FHRBEREREARE
at FVPL BREZEREEL
N EEE (1,492) (272)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB R 15
equipment e 1,314 2,120
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 16 3,799 3,403
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 18 2,927 2,956
Loss on disposal of property, plant LEME - BB &K 7
and equipment and intangible HEARBTEEZ
asset, net E5 1858 1 10
Loss/(gain) on disposal of debt HEBSBEMEE
instruments at FVOC| Wt A n ERIE
ZEBIAZ
BB (as) 12 (29)
Provision for/(reversal of provision FEW R IR BB,
for) impairment of receivables, net (BefE #0558 2,927 (5,916)
Changes in fair values of investment WEMEZ ARE
properties # (5,244) 1,000
Finance costs BB 11 12,971 11,868
Interest income M B U A (3,821) (10,636)
Share of profit of associates JE{L B & R B R A (2,328) (1,258)
Net exchange difference & & =R FE (1,214) 125
Operating cash flows before BEEREBA KL
movements in working capital BERE 59,916 38,524
Changes in working capital: EBEEE
Receivables under sale and leaseback EREIELHEIA T K
arrangements FIE 60,291 (5,824)
Inventories TFE (2,393) =
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFIR -~ ke REAM
receivables e R IE (57.433) (175,922)
Other payables and accruals H At JE A5 FRIE [ FE BT
95t 9,117 33,122
Contract liabilities AHAaE 10,115 =
Security deposits received BURE RS (6,029) (18,674)
Cash generated from/(used in) REmR/(FTRA)BRE
operations 73,584 (128,774)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHE W
33 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33 FERETREBRME W@
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(a) Cash generated from/(used in) operations (a) &&B (FTA)RE @
(Continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from EReRERERY  HEWME
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: R E &M 2 FTS RIE RS ¢
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYT T BT T
Net book amount R FE
— Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) — 1% - /= K& (Fi3£15) 1 1,336
- Intangible asset (Note 18) -fmEAE (Kizk18) - 556
1 1,892
Loss on disposals of property, plantand ~ HEWZ - BE MRENA KR
equipment and intangible asset, net BREEEBEFHEMTET)
(Note 7) (1) (10)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HE¥% - BE M RENA KM
and equipment and intangible asset BB ECFERIA - 1,882
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEETHELE2EEEH
activities
This section sets out an analysis of net cash and the I RBEZTEZ—F R
movements in net cash for the years ended 31 December TFTF+A=+—HILFER
2021 and 2020 presented. SEFBNMRES FEESH 2D -
2021 2020
—EB--F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT ok e
Cash and cash equivalents RekR&EMBEIER 387,095 318,818
Borrowings B (290,922) (290,303)
Lease liabilities HEaE (17,304) (1,917)
Net cash REFH 78,869 26,598
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GAMBREME
33 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33 HMEREREKRME @
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METHELAZEEETH @
activities (Continued)
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HitEE RETHELZERE
Term deposits
with initial
Cash and cash term over
equivalents  three months  Borrowings Lease Total
MR
EeRkHe BA=@A
ZEER ZEHEH EE HE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EBTT BRI BRI AT AETT

Net cash as at 1 January 2020 RZBZEF-A-Hx

ReFs 607,782 94,382 (465,557) (4,128) 232,479
Cash flows Beneg (300,541) (94,470) 187,280 2,346 (205,385)
Foreign exchange adjustments MNEFE 11,577 88 (12,026) = (361)
Other charge EER = = = (135) (135)

Net cash as at 31 December 2020 RZE-TF+-A

Zt-RZBLFE8 318,818 = (290,303) (1,917) 26,598
Cash flows BenE 70,949 - 6,708 2,567 80,224
Foreign exchange adjustments SNEFEE (2,672) - (7.327) - (9,999)
New leases g - - - (17,730) (17,730)
Other charge HiER - - - (224) (224)
Net cash as at 31 December 2021 A

o e K gt 387,095 - (290,922) (17,304) 78,869

2021 EEHE a%m%mr&mam



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

34 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE 34 BEANLTIRE
RIELTRAUNZER » AR ZEBRK
RABMER - mEMERISEHRE
BARAR (BT EEBRE T 2 &
BRBET22EMBAR - Hitt - &
NRARAEEZEMEEER AR RE
MEBAR(GREAIEMER]ZE - &
B E N H A BT AR e
EITZR P REHRBENT

The Controlling Shareholder of the Company defined under
the Listing Rules is Shougang Holding which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned enterprise
under the direct supervision of the State Council of the PRC.
Accordingly, the Company and the Group are controlled by
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
as “Shougang Group”). The transactions and those balances with
Shougang Group and other PRC government-related financial
institutions are disclosed below:

(a) Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel includes directors (executive,
non-executive and external directors) and the senior
management of the Group. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee services is shown

(a) EEEEAEHM

TZEBRABBRESEMTE
= FATESRINFES) A
SESREEAR - BHEERBCE
N ENEEERABHMMO TR

below: e
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Wages, salaries and other benefit T8 - HoRHEAMET 9,634 8,237
Retirement benefit scheme contribution — EREFIFTEIH 50 50
Total employee benefit expenses BERMFAZ L% 9,684 8,287
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME
34 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued) 34 FBEEATIRE @
(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EHREALTZRS

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLEFE

2021 2020
:g: - ﬂi — 7 - $
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETFT
Revenue under sale and leaseback EREERHEET 2l&E
arrangements (Note (ii)) (M)
Subsidiaries of Shougang Group EEESE =N 38,536 53,295
Associate of Shougang Holding b v ﬁ’ﬁ*éﬂ 800 =
39,336 53,295
Consultancy services income e ON( L)
(Note (i))
Associate of Shougang Holding B 2 B A A 2,191 1,003
Management fee expenses (Note (i) &2 & B (B ()
Shougang Holding S 2,880 2,880
Lease payments (Note (i)) HE SR (FEEG))
Subsidiary of Shougang Holding BT B A A 2,346 2,346

2015 ERE BREOS(EE)ERAF 257




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRENE

34 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (Continued)

34 BEEATIRE @

(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EEREALTZRS (&)
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+—HLEE
2021 2020
—B-—fF —_T_FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Technical support services expense 9l 2 B AR A A (R EE (i)
(Note (i))
Subsidiary of Shougang Group EEESE =N 647 =
Sales of property, plant and HEME BERZBEUAR
equipment and Intangible asset &&= (M =E())
(Note (i))
Subsidiary of Shoucheng Holdings BIRERARARZ
Limited LN - 1,882
Notes: B 5

(i) The transactions were carried out in accordance with the relevant

lease and other agreements.

The transactions were carried out in accordance with relevant sale
and leaseback and loan agreements summarised as below:

M

Pursuant to the sale and leaseback agreement, South
China Leasing provided sale and leaseback amounting to
RMB20,000,000 to Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co. Ltd,
an associate of Shougang Holding, for a term of 18 months
commenced from June 2021.

The Company entered into the master facility agreement
with Shougang Group Co., Ltd., pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to provide or procure
its subsidiaries to provide the uncommitted facilities to
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. and/or its subsidiaries in an
aggregate principal amount of up to RMB5,000,000,000
for a term of 3 years commenced from June 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (Continued)

Included in receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements of the Group as disclosed in Note 20, there
are receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements from
subsidiaries of Shougang Group with total carrying amount
of HK$568,252,000 (2020: HK$691,440,000) as at 31
December 2021.

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s financial assets at
FVPL included listed securities of 12,370,000 shares
(2020: 12,370,000 shares) of Shougang Century Holdings
Limited (“Shougang Cent”, formerly known as Shougang
Concord Century Holdings Limited) with carrying amount of
HK$4,268,000 (2020: HK$2,746,000), and 46,000 shares
(2020: 46,000 shares) of Shoucheng Holdings Limited
("Shoucheng”) with carrying amount of HK$71,000 (2020:
HK$101,000). Shougang Cent and Shoucheng are associates
of Shougang Holding.

Apart from the transactions and balances with the Shougang
Group as disclosed in Note 34(b) and 34(c), and the
investments in related companies as disclosed in Note 34(d),
the Group has entered into various transactions in its ordinary
course of business including deposit placements, borrowings
and other general banking facilities, with certain banks and
financial institutions which are government-related entities.
As at 31 December 2021, 100% and 98% (2020: 99% and
97%), respectively, of bank balances and bank borrowings
are held with these government-related financial institutions.

REMB®/REMEE

34 BEAEALTHEE®

R—ZE-_—F+=_HA=+—H "
R F20 M HENAEEE 1%
CAZEEETEKRERERS
BEMEEC HEAREREHEEL
BB TRERZBEREEGEABE
568,252,000 0 (Z T =—Z4F : B
691,440,0007T) °

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—8"
AEBFBEZERALBRIE
ZERMEERELMESFEER
RElEARAA(THERK]
e REEEEARAG)Z
12,370,000 & (ZE=FF :
12,370,000R% f%17) BR EI (B A /& &
4,268,000 (ZZE_FF : BK
2,746,0007T) & & 2 iR B PR A A
(&R ) 2 46,0008 (% (==
ZEF 46,0000 M0 EREE A
71,000 (ZEBF - B
101,0007T) - HERFEEEEER
BEMERZBE QT -

% B 51 34(b) X 34(c) P % 55 22 & 5
EEZR P R#EH KM E34(d)AT
WBERBEARZREIN  AEE
REABEBKBRES EBRTHERS
BB A TRITNEMBHET LS
HR S  BEFER - ERkEM—
MRBITRE -M-_T——F+_-A#
=+—8  RITEGERBITERD
PSRN EES KBS
100% % 98% (ZZE—Z 4 : 99%
$97%) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AP BRERS

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 35 EEENRER(EELQTEL
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF (5£622F)5£3831% * AEI(HE
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE BEERNZER)RHI(F622GE)
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF EEBETRAMRENEE

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING

RULES)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the %Zi_g::¢+:ﬂ —t—HLFE
year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below: EEERESTHRAB ZH M40
—F i
Salaries  Contributions
and other  to retirement
Fees benefits benefit scheme  Total 2021
ek ZEPHE*U e
we HtEF SrEfNR —EB-—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BET T BETT
2021 —B--F
Executive directors of the KATHTES
Company
Xu Liang * 2 - 3,360 18 3,378
Tian Gang (Note (i)) B PR () - 2,236 15 2,251
Su Guifeng (Note (ii)) BRI S2 (PE (i) - 672 3 675
Li Jing (Note (iii)) 1) - - - -
Non-executive directors of the AATFHITES
Company
Huang Donglin A 247 - - 247
Zhang Jianxun (Note (iv)) SR E) (BT EGv)) - - - -
You Wenli (Note (v)) SR (B (v)) - - - -
Independent Non-executive FARBIFYTES
directors of the Company
Tam King Ching, Kenny EHRIE 264 - - 264
Zhang Xingyu ok & 264 - - 264
Ng Man Fung, Walter (Note (vi)) 32 (Bif3E (vi) 204 - - 204
On Danita (Note (vii)) RRRAR (M EE (vii)) 204 - - 204
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson (Note (viii)) & JKZE (F 5% (viii)) 7 - - 7
Total emoluments B < %8 1,190 6,268 36 7,494
Notes: BiaE -
(i) Tian Gang was appointed on 24 March 2021. (i) HRR T =——F=A=+HAEZE -
(i) Su Guifeng resigned on 19 March 2021. (iy #MEBR-_ZT=_—F=A+NLBEEIT-
(iiiy  LiJing resigned on 24 March 2021. (i) ZTBER_E-_—F=ZA_F+WUHBHT-
(iv)  Zhang Jianxun was appointed on 24 March 2021. Under the engagement vy SREINR-_ZT-_—F=A-+HHEZ
letter, Mr. Zhang will not receive any emolument. E RIFZREE - %Eﬁ‘ﬁ?‘a’[_ﬁﬂﬁlﬂ)l{{ﬁﬁiﬂ
(v) You Wenli resigned on 24 March 2021. (v) MXBR-ZE-_—F=A - +MABHT -
(vi)  Ng Man Fung, Walter was appointed on 19 March 2021. (viy ENERZZT-—F=ZA+IABZE-
(vii)  On Danita was appointed on 19 March 2021. (Vi) BRBER-ZZF-_—F=ATNLBEZE-
(vii) Wan Siu Wah, Wilson passed away on 8 January 2021. (i) CRIEER-F=—F—FA/\BE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAMBRERS

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 35 EERARER(F A QARG

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF (56622%F)53831% - A FI(HE

THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE EEFRER)RH(F622GE)

(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF EERB EmRAAENREE)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) ()

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING

RULES) (Continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the HE_Z_ZEF+_A=1+—HLFE

year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below: BEEERESTTHRAB ZHFHH T &0

T

Salaries Contributions
and other to retirement

Fees benefits  benefit scheme  Total 2020
ek RIRIEF) HEr
we HAbi@F| EfSR —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BETT BT
2020 g 33
Executive directors of the KARHYTES
Company
Xu Liang %" 2 = 3,360 18 3,378
Su Guifeng izt = 2,883 18 2,901
Li Jing = = 990 14 1,004
Non-executive directors of AAFFHTES
the Company
Liu Dongsheng (Note (i) ST A (H 7)) 58 = = 58
Huang Donglin BEAM 190 = = 190
You Wenli R — - - —
Independent Non-executive ZAATBIFHITES
directors of the Company
Tam King Ching, Kenny i 252 = = 252
Fei Jianjiang (Note (vi)) B 2T (M) 55 = = 55
Zhang Xingyu (Note (vii) o 8 & (B R (vil) 198 = = 198
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson Bk 252 = = 252
Total emoluments [t 1,005 7,233 50 8,288
Notes: PHEE
(i) Liu Dongsheng ceased to be managing director and was appointed to (i) BRANRZE—NENRA=Z+TZBTER
be non-executive director on 22 August 2019. Mr. Liu was subsequently BEEREBUEZTAIENTES - 2k
ceased to be non-executive director on 21 May 2020. EHEBER-_ZE_ZTFRA-_+—BATHA
EMITES -
(i) Su Guifeng was appointed on 19 September 2019. (iy BHEER-_T-NFALA+ILAEZEE-
(iiiy  LiJing was appointed on 22 August 2019, (i) FTHER_ZE—NAFNA-_T+-_HEZE-
(iv)  You Wenli was appointed on 31 May 2019. (iv) ?’?Y%@E’:‘:?—ﬂiﬂﬁ =+—BEZ
o
(v)  Yip Kin Man, Raymond resigned on 1 January 2020. ) ERRWR-_Z-_ZTF—H—HEIE-
(viy  Fei Jianjiang resigned on 20 March 2020. Vi) BREIN-Z-_ZTF=A_+HE/E-
(viy  Zhang Xingyu was appointed on 20 March 2020. (i) RESHR-_Z_TF=A-_+RABZEE-
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THE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEREME

36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are

as follows:

Place of incorporation

or establishment/

Issued and
fully paid share
capital/register and

36

N-_E—

—Fk=

ARBETEMBRE 2FE

E-F

T EF+ A=+

—HAZTEMBARFEAT :

Proportion of ownership

Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
TMRILRAL, ERTRBERE/ XRAfERER
WEARER Bew R EHRA B 2L bl TEEK
(Note (i) 2021 2020
(MG =B=-% —ZT-TF
Direct subsidiaries
EENEAR
Gold Cosmos Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Note (iv))
tBERBRAR B #0000 (HEGV) REZR
Jeckman Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
("BVI")
EBRUES 100%7T REZK
(RBREa#E])
SCG Investment (BVI) Limited BVI HK$100,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RBRLES 78#100,0007C REZRKR
Indirect subsidiaries
EENEAE
Grand Park Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
HBEREBR LA BE BT NERE
Long Cosmos Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of
administrative and
management services
RFREBRAA 0 BT RETBRERRY
Lyre Terrace Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Property investment
ERERARAR B #5%1,000,0007T NERE
On Hing Investment Company, Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 (ordinary) 100% 100%  Property investment
HK$2,000,000 (Note (v)) (Note (v)) and investment
(non-voting deferred) holding
ZEPEERRA B H1,0007T (MHEE(V)) (M)  MERERREER
(LK)
#12,000,0007T
(BRFEELTR)
Linksky Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
ERBRAF B BT NERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 36 AARETEME QT ZFF1E @
THE COMPANY (continued)

Issued and
Place of incorporation fully paid share
or establishment/ capital/register and  Proportion of ownership
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
MR ILRAL, BERTRERRE LN ESs 2oL
WEARER B TR EHRA B2 LAl TEEK
(Note (i) 2021 2020

(MG =B=-F -FT-TF

Indirect subsidiaries (Continued)

e B 2 ) (4)
SCG Capital Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEROGRERRAA B B0 RERR
SCG Finance Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100% 100%  Provision of financial
services
BEROGHBERRA B B0 RESRRL
SCG Financial Investment Limited BVI US$1,000 0% 100%  Investment holding
(Note (viii))
RERLES 1,000%7T  (MHE(vii) RERK
SCG Leasing Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$2 0% 100%  Inactive
(Note (viii))
BEREOAHERRAR B BT (B (viii) Tmex
South China International Leasing Co., The PRC (Note (i) US$162,000,000 75% 75%  Provision of sale and
Ltd. ("South China Leasing”) (Registered capital) leaseback services
BAEREERRAR(EAMEE]) B 162,000,000% 7T REHERDBRY
(AR )
Tin Fung Investment Company, Hong Kong HK$975,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited (ordinary) (Note (v)) (Note (v))
HK$210,000
(non-voting deferred)
REEXERAT B #51975,0007T (MEE(V)) (M) EEeZ
(BBK)
#1210,0007T
(BERFEELTR)
Valuework Investment Holdings BVI Us$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
RERLES 10057 REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 ARBREEME DT 215 @
Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company Principal activities
LN Ess 2oL
2 thl TEXH
2021 2020

“E--F TR

e RS MR
36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Issued and
Place of incorporation fully paid share
or establishment/ capital/register and
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital
HEMALHHL BRITRBERE,/
WEAREE R HMREHRAR
(Note (i)
(BEE(G)
Indirect subsidiaries (Continued)
EHEE A R (&)
Ecko Investment Company Limited*  The PRC (Note (iii)) HK$261,700,000
(Registered capital)
HRRMEREEARARRR B E() 261,700,000
(FEfBARA)
Beijing Shouhua Fangtai Investment ~ The PRC (Note (iii)) RMB70,000,000
Management Co., Ltd.* (Registered capital)
("Shouhua Fangtai”)
IREERZRAERERA B (P i) AE#70,000,0007T
(l&Er%)) (FEfBARA)
Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain The PRC (Note (jii)) RMB60,000,000

Management Co., Ltd.*
("Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain")

T RR A EEERER AR B (P i) AE#60,000,0007T
(e matrEsE])

Notes:

It

) All issued share capital are ordinary shares unless otherwise stated.

(ii) This entity is sino-foreign equity joint venture.

(iii) These entities are limited liability enterprises.

(iv) These entities have become direct subsidiaries during the year.
(v) Interests only refer to ordinary shares which are voting shares.

(vi) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Jt = & # 2 2 AE A 7 (Beijing
Shougang Fund Co., Ltd*), a non-controlling shareholder of BEIJIhg Jingxi
Supply Chain, to acquire the remaining 30% equity interest with the
consideration of HK$8,747,000. After the acquisition, the Group owns
100% equity interest on Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain.

(vii)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Fangyuan Financial (Hong Kong) Limited, a
non-controlling shareholder of Shouhua Fangtai, to acquire the remaining
13.29% equity interest with the consideration of HK$297,000. After the
acquisition, the Group owns 100% equity interest on Shouhua Fangtai.

(vii)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, these entities were
deregistered.

*  For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results or assets and
liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries that have

mEMBHREME

36 XRBREEMBLATZFE @

EREFINESRBEARE 2 RAK
EENABEIEREZASENER
B - EER /I EMIHE R R FIEH
TRIEBRITE -

TA 7 67 & 8 SR By % B P9 ) By ) O 2 B
BRRFATAERES o

BREARFERBEZZFZENE

material non-controlling interests RAEFHE
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of TREFEEERNFERER I AEHE
the Group that have material non-controlling interests: FEEWB AT ZFFIS
Proportion of ownership
Place of interests and voting rights  Profit for the year

establishment  Principal held by non-controlling allocated to non- Accumulated non-

Name of subsidiary ~ and operation activities interests controlling interests controlling interests
BIR FERERFSREE PEREFERES
WELRARE EEME FEXH BERREEZILH ZEERA RAFERES
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
B —“T-TF —¥--f “T-TF B —T-TF
% % HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
YT AT B%Tn ANt
South China Leasing The PRC Provision of sale 25 25 15,199 12,887 352,722 318,749
BhHE F and leaseback
arrangements
services
REERDA
TR
Beijing Jingxi Supply ~ The PRC Provision of - - - 49 - -
Chain F supply chain
TR R e management
services
Rt e
EIRRT
Individually immaterial - (397)
subsidiaries with
non-controlling
interests

{ERIFFEAT A
iR B AR

352,722 318,352

201 ERE EENS(EEAERAT m



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 36 AATEEME QT ZFF1E @

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

South China Leasing is the non-listed company established in

Mainland China and provides sale and leaseback services in
Mainland China.

The Group has indirect ownership interest of 75% (2020: 75%)
in South China Leasing at 31 December 2021, which is held by
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group. The remaining 25% non-
controlling interests is held by Shougang Holding.

Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain is the private company established in
Mainland China and provides supply chain management services in
Mainland China.

The Directors conclude that the Group has a sufficiently dominant
voting interest to direct the relevant activities of both subsidiaries
on the basis of the Group’s absolute size of equity interest and the
relative size of the interest owned by the other equity owners.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out

BREERFERERZHZENE
NGIEES1C )
mAHEARPRAMKY ZIELTA
Al AR B A IR & 14 [0 FH AR FS o

AREBR-_T-_—F+=-_A=+—8BR
MAHEHETS% (T —ZTF : 75%)
MEFEEED  mEAHEmtAER
ZHE2EWBARFER ° 5 125%IEE
Mot il B I ARIE S -

b 7P e 8 A 1 AP B O M AR S22
ART] - PAFR B A HR 4 £ 55 B 38 AR
f% o

BExzEmr ERAEEZBEKE
MR R EMAAEA ARA Z A s
RE AEERARHTIEHRTE
LAtESI mEM B AR BREES °

BRBEEAFER S 2 AR ENE
REAMBERBZHEIIMT o T3XHE

below. The summarised financial information below represents ZHBERMBEEEAARRALHEN S
amounts before intragroup eliminations. B o
South China Leasing mAFHEE
Summarised balance sheet EEEEREBE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Current assets mBNEE 1,210,825 702,932
Current liabilities mEAE (218,894) (188,935)
Currentnetassets nBEEFE 991,931 513,997
Non-current assets EMBNE E 531,552 913,946
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (112,595) (152,947)
Non-currentnetassets FrmEEFE 0 41897 760,999
Net assets EEFEE 1,410,888 1,274,996
Accumulated non-controlling interests BErEERER 352,722 318,749
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 36 AARETEME QT ZFF1E @
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries that have BEEARFERERZIFZENE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) A B ()
South China Leasing (Continued) 5 HE (5
Summarised statement of comprehensive income ZHKEREE
2021 2020
—E--F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue Yas 91,816 78,691
Profit for the year FERER 60,656 51,548
Other comprehensive income E 2 E I E 75,372 77,988
Total comprehensive income 2HEN AR 136,028 129,536
Total comprehensive income allocated to DECEIFERER 2
non-controlling interests 2EW LT 34,007 32,384
Summarised cash flow ReEREmE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Net cash generated from operating activities #& & /&S FTISIR & /F58 77,146 51,937
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing X & EBATS,(FTA)E & F58
activities 742 (7,282)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEE AR FE (658) (99,872)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BWERA (L) F8E 77,230 (55,217)

2021 EHE ﬁ%ﬁ(%)ﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁ



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37 ARBMBARRTRK

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY fBERE xR
2021 2020
—E-—F =T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Assets BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries, net (Note) R E AR 2 & F58 (M) 521,484 509,068
Amounts due from subsidiaries, net (Note) UL B A B ZIEFE 58 (M 5+) 1,098,786 563,203
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1,620,270 1,072,271
Current assets REEE
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables — FE{tFRIE - 24 K H b fE W 0B 193 193
Bank balances and cash RITEFENIR® 102 202
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 295 0 39
Total assets EEHAE 1,620,565 1,072,666
Liabilities &&
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowing HRITIEK 80,000 =
Other payables and accruals H A sRIBE R ERTE A 119 102
Total liabilites L 8,119 102
Net current (liabilities)/assets RERE) AEFE 000000000 (79824 293
Net assets EEFE 1,540,446 1,072,564
Capital and reserves AR & e
Share capital [N 39,846 39,846
Reserves (G 1,500,600 1,032,718
Total equity R 1,540,446 1,072,564
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREME
37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37 XPBIBRRERR

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY REEEBR@®

(Continued)

Note: As at 31 December 2021, the amounts due from subsidiaries with e RZZE—_—F+=—A=+—8 ' EKH
carrying amount of HK$1,098,786,000 (2020: HK$563,203,000) is BARIFIEREEB%1,098,786,000
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. In the opinion of the T(ZZT T4 : #¥%563,203,0007T)
Directors, the Company will not demand for repayment within one year REER 2ERERERER -ES
from the end of reporting period and the amount due from a subsidiary is RE ARRABTIERBEHHKRE
therefore considered as non-current. Interest-free advance is measured at —FANRBERER AHRABER
amortised cost and the related effective interest income of HK$8,628,000 —FENBARIREAERE - 222
(2020: HK$35,105,000), which is non-distributable, was recognised in TIRBEHEK AT EMAEBERF B I
profit or loss for the current year and accumulated effective interest AB#8,628,000L (ZTE T F : B
income of approximately HK$148,637,000 (2020: HK$140,010,000), 35,105,0007T) & IEH DK B ERAF
which is non-distributable, was recognised in retained earnings. EERRARERM 25T BRI SRAL

7&51£148,637,000C (Z T =T 4F : Bl
140,010,0007T) A3EH 5k A B RARE
BRIRER -

Movement in the Company’s reserves ARRIEERE
Contributed Share
Share surplus options  Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
RiEE SABHRE BRERE EIRE  REEN @zt

HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTT BT ERTR  ARTn A%t BRTx

At 1 January 2020 RZZ-2E—-F—H 766,818 113,441 686 (11,356) 90,394 959,983
Lapse of share options BIRELS = = (686) = 686 =
Exchange difference arising on BERZJIEREEL

translation into presentation EAZERE

currency - - - 34,496 - 34,496
Profit for the year EEEF - - = = 38,239 38,239
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZF+-A=1+-A 766,818 113,441 - 23,140 129,319 1,032,718

Exchange difference arising on BEREIIEHRESEY

translation into presentation B EE

currency - - - 12,406 - 12,406
Profit for the year ERRN - - - = 455,476 455476
At 31 December 2021 R=2=-%+=A=t+-B 766,818 113,441 - 35,546 584,795 1,500,600

2021 ERE %EE(%@)%F&@EM



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

38 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Given the development of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
in early 2022, a series of tightened precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented across
Hong Kong and the Mainland China. The Group will pay close
attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and
evaluate its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group. As at the date on which this set of financial
statements were authorised for issue, the Group was not aware of
any material adverse effects on the financial statements as a result
of the COVID-19.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IFEUBRE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=1+—-HLEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—T—+tF ZT-)N\F ZT-NF —T=TF ZB--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFr  B¥Tr  BETr BETx
RESULTS #i5
Revenue gy 109,512 96,623 77,702 85,378 1,898,003
Cost of sales HER AR (50,380) (42,427) (20,058) (11,618)  (1,792,903)
Gross profit EM 59,132 54,196 57,644 73,760 105,100
Other income HAb A 4,389 15,620 21,191 12,388 5,998
Other gains, net H AWz 58 285 2,824 1,094 13,734 77
Selling expenses HERX (993) (418) (402) (1,420) (2,780)
Administrative expenses THREX (40,530) (58,798) (65,232) (68,079) (60,938)
Changes in fair value of REMEZAAE
investment properties o 10,781 3,147 2,400 (1,000) 5,244
Changes in fair value of financial BRBEEREANE
assets at fair value through BESREEL
profit or loss RAEES 67 (641) 204 272 1,492
Reversal/(provision) of impairment RERERR(BE)
of provision, net R 672 1,242 1,887 5,916 (2,927)
Finance costs AR (2,445) (5,823) (5,987) (1,676) (3,530)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates FE(RE AR (B518),/
gl (11,947)  (122,547) 2,614 1,258 2,328
(Provision)/reversal of impairment —ABENE 2 s
of provision on interests in an ZRERERE),
associate [0l (9,626) 75,640 = = -
Profit before income tax BR BTS84 A ) 9,785 (35,558) 15,413 35,153 50,064
Income tax expense g Rt 2 (12,206) (14,531) (14,830) (16,959) (7,571)
(Loss)/profit for the year FEER),&H (2,421) (50,089) 583 18,194 42,493
Attributable to: AT AL :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NCIES YN (11,332) (58,882) (7,921) 5,980 27,294
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR M A 8,911 8,793 8,504 12,214 15,199
(2,421) (50,089) 583 18,194 42,493
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TEHERE
As at 31 December
Rt=-A=+—8°
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E—+tF ZET-)\F —T-NF —T-TF BZ-F
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BEFT  BEFxT  ABTx  A%Tr B%Tx
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
Total assets BERAR 2,630,955 2,218,214 2,294,032 2,161,473 2,325,595
Total liabilities BEER (1,051,498)  (592,124)  (550,534)  (397,484)  (435,216)

1,579,457 1,626,090 1,743,498 1,763,989 1,890,379

Capital and reserves attributable to RAREEAENL

owners of the Company [ AN R (o 4 1,281,917 1,339,688 1,355,149 1,445,637 1,537,657
Non-controlling interests s 297,540 286,402 388,349 318,352 352,722

1,579,457 1,626,090 1,743,498 1,763,989 1,890,379
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